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e
Five Years Financial Summary

TEHBERE

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and AT AXREEBE L EMBEEZE M
total equity of the Group for the last five financial years, as  #%& -&&E BELRBRAEFZEERBE T
extracted from the Group’s audited financial statements, is set R AEE 2 KEZTERE

out below:

(A) RESULTS ¥#&

Year ended 31 December
BZEZt-A=1t-HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—Z-NFE —T-=F —ZT--F —T——-F —T-TF
TER TET TET TET TET

Revenue g
- Continuing operations* ~BELEER 481,571 322,896 188,702 727,500 908,744
- Discontinued operations** ~ — 2 4% |F 5+ - - 361 236,620 69,899

(Loss)/Profit before income tax B TSR A B L&
from continuing operations %7 (&%) /&7l (377,592)  (343,589)  (383,915) 105,303 192,926

Income tax credit/(expense)  FIEREE,/ (FAX) 3,925 (3,922) 1,377 (81,155)  (100,247)

(Loss)/Profit after tax from BiiaEEREER

continuing operations (EB1B) /&7 (373,667)  (347,511)  (382,538) 24,148 92,679
Profit from discontinued BRIFE G A
operations - - 5,204 8,939 216

Loss/(Profit) attributable to R R
non-controlling interests B/ CiF) 26,335 24,056 33,085 (7,471) (13,684)

(Loss)/Profit attributable to the AN IR ARELS

owners of the Company (B8B)/&Fl (347,332)  (323,455)  (344,249) 25,616 79,211
* Continuing operations for the year ended 31 December * HE-_Z—NE+-A=+—Hi
2014 represented the production and sale of coal and FEZHEBESEESRBEERME
trading of purchased coal (2013, 2012, 2011, 2010: the BERANBAKKRES (ZZE—=
production and sale of coal). F B B —FERF

—EF AEREERRK)

**  Discontinued operations for the year ended 31 December > HE_T-——HF+-F=+—HIt
2012 represented coalbed methane related business FEZORIEERAEERBRAE
(2011: Trading of purchased coal and coalbed methane B(ZE——F BAEKRES M
related business; and 2010: Trading of purchased coal). BRABER: — T —ZTF - BAE
KEH) -
4 Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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Five Years Financial Summary

T EHBERE

(B) ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND TOTAL EQUITY EE BEERRARZHEE

As at 31 December

R+t=A=1+-H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-MF —T-=F ZT--f ZT——F ZT-TF
TER TEX TET TET TET

Non-current assets ERBEE 1,266,545 1,400,060 1,375,767 1,467,251 1,213,153
Current assets REEE 1,140,579 1,234,757 1,969,701 1,651,210 1,247,873
Total assets BEE 2,407,124 2,634,817 3,345,468 3,118,461 2,461,026
Current liabilities REARE 1,513,545 1,396,475 1,660,043 1,057,664 882,266
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 118,201 73,097 203,314 198,622 211,222
Total liabilities BaffE 1,631,746 1,469,572 1,863,357 1,256,286 1,093,488
Total equity BAERAE 775378  1,165245 1,482,111 1,862,175 1,367,538
- attributable to the . YNCIE¥=PN A

owners of the Company 763,188 1,124,706 1,425,177 1,772,723 1,254,387
- Non-controlling interests — RIS 12,190 40,539 56,934 89,452 113,151

BESFERERAT 2014FE5H 5



Chairman’s Statement

ETEHE

| am pleased to present on behalf of the board (the “Board”)
of directors (the “Directors”) to the shareholders the report
on the results of Rosan Resources Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014 (the “Year").

BUSINESS AND MARKET REVIEW

During the Year, the Group continuously faced the ongoing
difficult and dynamic business environment. With the weak
global economy as well as the recent economic downturn of
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), different industries
in the territory were confronted with different challenges,
especially for the coal industry. In addition to the slowing
down of economic growth of the PRC, the coal industry also
faces the increasing awareness of general public to boost
the use of alternative clean energy sources. Coupled with
the incentives and subsidies from the PRC government to
the alternative energy industries, the demand for coal in the
PRC declined as a result. Furthermore, as China is the largest
importer of coal in the world, the decline in the demand of
coal in the PRC led to a decline in demand of coal worldwide.
These factors led to a drop in the price of coal in the PRC and
in the world. It is expected that China’s coal consumption
and demand will not increase significantly in the foreseeable
future.

In the year 2014, in order to assist the coal industry to
overcome the vigorous difficulties, the PRC government
has considered different measures to reduce the supply of
coal in the domestic market by limiting coal production and
controlling the volume of coal import. However, the overall
supply of coal in the PRC market was still higher than the
demand. It is expected that such situation will not change
significantly in the short term. Therefore, the coal price did not
show a remarkable improvement during the Year. As the price
of coal has not substantially improved in the Year, the revenue
of the Group was still limited.

In addition to the coal mining business, the Group has also
been seeking for and considering suitable opportunities for
making new investments and extending business horizontally,
so as to target to grow into a diversified range of businesses,
which in turn may lower the risk of the Group from the coal
industry.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

TAZREREZ (B e ([EEET])
MARMBRREZREEREREGRAA
([R&QF]) R EWMEBEAR (FHAE
BEE-F-HF+T-_A=T—HLLF
BXRFE]IXFR]) 2FKERS -

R R™EEE

FA AEEESAGSENE LT nE
L2 BERB - AR EBREERB M FE
ARKME ([HFE])IHLETE BR
ARTERGEH T EBE - LERRIRT
X o WHMNP B IR R - RIKITRITE
HBRARRESUEERBERRFERNED
MERBERASERERITRGE TRB L
AL ERBEERRKOFRTE 5
RPBEREERSANKIEDR  hE
BRBR T BEREIRBE R F KR Dt
FHREREHPEAR2RERER NF-1A
ARARARRFBERIEE LT RG IS
AIEETTe

R-T—NE REERITERRRIK
wB FEBAEZ BHEL T RER BB
R Bl AR R A e P2 ) O BRIR BB AR K
BAmIZRR 2 HE- A+ BEHEAN
BRRBERBHEBIDANE R AL BERE
EHEEHANGRENE B RERFR
WEBRERT -BRRERFAREXNE
BTt AEBZWADABIR -

R RFAREBIN AEB TR —BES KL
ZRABERBETHREUNRERNRRE
% AERERZ TEEBH R Ema
R ERRITERARE TR 2R



Resumption of all the Group’s coal mines

In May 2014, an accident occurred in a coal mine of the
Group, which caused the suspension of all coal mines of the
Group for around two months since then. Four of the five coal
mines (except Xiangyang Coal Mine) have resumed operations
in July 2014 and Xiangyang Coal Mine has also resumed in
November 2014. Subsequent to the resumption in operation of
Xiangyang Coal Mine, all of the five coal mines of the Group
have resumed operations. The Company expected that in the
coming vyears, if there is no suspension of coal mines, the
Group may improve the production volume of coal.

Liquefied natural gas ("LNG"”) tank containers related
business

On 10 September 2014, the Company entered into a joint
venture agreement with two independent third parties
(collectively, the "JV Parties”) to establish the joint venture
manufacture company (the “Manufacture Company”) and
the joint venture sales company (the “Sales Company”),
details as stated in the Company’'s announcement dated
10 September 2014, to explore the businesses (the “LNG
Businesses”) in (i) manufacturing and selling of LNG tank
containers; and (ii) developing and selling of natural gas and
energy from clean sources.

The management of the Company believes that, exploring
the LNG tank containers, natural gas and clean energy
related businesses may allow the Group to diversify its current
principal business, thereby diversifying the Group’s single
market risks from the coal industry and to optimize our
product mix in order to improve the Group's performance.
Given the potential of the PRC economy and the increasing
public’s awareness in the use of clean energy, the participation
in LNG tank containers related industry may enable the
Company to seize the market opportunities.

As the date of this report, the establishment of the said two
joint venture companies has yet to complete. The Board
will review the status from time to time and may adjust the
investment strategy whenever required.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETEHE

Achievement of the pre-determined targets by the
software company

The software company, Beijing Baiyitong Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (“Baiyitong”) (Jt R{E&H BRI B R 2 7)), of which
the Group has 34% equity interest, has early achieved all the
agreed predetermined performance target (i.e. the number of
customers) during the Year. However, Baiyitong is still in the
early development stage and no profit could be contributed to
the Group. The Board will review the status from time to time
and may adjust the investment strategy whenever required.

Performance and development of the coal trading
company

During the Year, the revenue derived from the trading of
purchased coal contributed by Zhengzhou Huirui Shangmao
Company Limited* (“Huirui”) (EINEHEEER A7), a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, amounted
to approximately HK$6.2 million, which contributed
approximately 1.3% of the total revenue of the Group. The
Company indirectly acquired 96% equity interest of Huirui by
way of capital injection in December 2013. As the coal industry
of the PRC has yet to recover, the coal trading business within
the Henan province was not active hence the revenue and
results contributed by Huirui to the Group was not significant
for the Year. It is expected that once the coal industry in the
PRC has recovered, more revenue can be generated through
the coal trading business carried out by Huirui.

PROSPECT

Going forward, in view of the current challenging business
environment, the Group will try to improve its performance
by pursuing inorganic growth strategy and seeking attractive
investment opportunities. In addition, the Group will carry
on adopting different measures to lower the total cost of the
Group, in order to improve its result in the future. At the same
time, the Group will also focus on cultivating its core business
in production and sale of coal. The Board will try their best to
develop the Group’s business and maximizing the shareholders’
return in the future.

*  For identification purpose only
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Chairman’s Statement

ETEHE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s total revenue for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$481.6 million, representing an increase
of 49.1% from approximately HK$322.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (the “Last Year"”). The increase in
revenue was primarily due to the increase of sales from trading
of purchased coal during the Year. During the Year, the total
sales volume of coal has reached to approximately 1,168,000
tons which was higher than the sales volume of the Last Year
(approximately 877,000 tons), representing an increase of
33.2%.

In addition to the improvement in sales volume, the average
selling price of coal has increased slightly in the second half
of the Year resulting from the increase in the proportion of
sales volume contributed by trading of purchased coal. As the
average quality of the coal purchased during the Year was
generally higher than the average quality of the coal produced
by the Group’s coal mines, the average selling price of
purchased coal was higher, therefore, the total average selling
price for the Year was increased. The total average selling price
of coal has increased from approximately RMB291.5 per ton
for the Last Year to approximately RMB327.0 per ton for the
Year.

Cost of Sales and Gross Loss

The cost of sales and gross loss for the Year were
approximately HK$527.2 million and approximately HK$45.6
million respectively, while the cost of sales and gross loss
for the Last Year were approximately HK$344.0 million and
approximately HK$21.1 million respectively. The increase in
gross loss was mainly due to the increase in cost of sales,
which was proportionally more than the increase in revenue.
During the Year, the Group had to purchase more coal from
suppliers for coal trading to support its operation, especially
during the suspension period of coal mines. As the cost for
coal purchased from suppliers was higher than the cost of coal
produced by the Group’s coal mines, higher total cost of sales
was incurred during the Year. Moreover, as larger amount of
expenditures were incurred for the maintenance of the Group’s
coal mines during the Year, the cost of sales was increased,
that caused the increase in gross loss as well.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Net Loss

The net loss attributable to the owners of the Company for
the Year was approximately HK$347.3 million, representing
an increase of approximately 7.4% as compared with the
Last Year of approximately HK$323.5 million. The reasons for
the increase in net loss for the Year were mainly due to the
increase in gross loss as explained in the precedent paragraph
and the increase in impairment loss on certain tangible and
intangible assets during the impairment assessment. Given
comparatively low market coal price during the Year and the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the Group made an impairment loss of
approximately HK$69.0 million (the Last Year: approximately
HK$70.3 million) on goodwill, as well as impairment losses
of approximately HK$67.4 million (the Last Year: Nil) and
approximately HK$67.1 million (the Last Year: Nil) on
the property, plant and equipment and the mining rights
respectively.

Administrative Expenses

During the Year, the total administrative expenses amounted
to approximately HK$78.0 million (the Last Year: approximately
HK$116.9 million) which mainly comprised of: (i) employee
benefit expenses of approximately HK$27.9 million (the Last
Year: approximately HK$40.9 million), (ii) amortisation of
mining rights, prepaid lease payments and other intangible
assets amounted to approximately HK$8.7 million (the Last
Year: approximately HK$18.6 million), (iii) depreciation of
property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately
HK$5.3 million (the Last Year: approximately HK$5.9 million).
The decrease in total administrative expenses was mainly
because of stringent cost control measurements carried out by
the Group to the expenses in different areas during the Year.

Finance Costs

The finance costs decreased by approximately 39.6%
from approximately HK$93.8 million for the Last Year to
approximately HK$56.6 million for the Year. The drop in the
total finance costs was mainly due to the average amount of
bank loans during the Year was less than the Last Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

Accounts and Bills Receivables

As at the 31 December 2014 (the “Current Year End”), the
accounts and bills receivables amounted to approximately
HK$170.0 million, representing a decrease of 43.0% as
compared to that as at 31 December 2013 (the “Last Year
End”) of approximately HK$298.2 million. The decrease was
mainly because of the improvement of the settlement of
accounts receivable by the customers. During the Year, the
average duration of settlement period from customers was
shorter than the Last Year.

Amongst the total amount of accounts receivable (excluding
the bills receivable) as at the Current Year End, Henan Zhongfu

R /2 A]) was the largest debtor with balance amounting to
approximately HK$105.0 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB83.3 million) or approximately 61.9% of the accounts
receivable amount, net of any provision for impairment. The
entire outstanding amount of the accounts receivable from
Zhongfu was not past due. The Board therefore concluded
that no impairment is needed to be made on the outstanding
amounts due from Zhongfu.

Accounts and Bills Payables

In order to maintain the operational cashflow and the liquidity
within the group companies, Henan Jinfeng Coal Industrial
Group Company Limited* (“Jinfeng”) (lE & LYHEEEHE
R 2 A]) has issued bills to its subsidiaries (i.e. Xiangyang Coal
Industry Company Limited* (“Xiangyang”) (& ¥f /i [@ 5
¥BM A7) and Xingyun Coal Industry Company Limited*
(“"Xingyun") (B 5 1 EE K ¥ F R 5 (L2 7)) to facilitate the
inter-companies sales and purchases. Jinfeng, Xiangyang and
Xingyun are the indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Company which are principally engaged in the production
and sale of coal.

It is the fact that the principal activities of both Xiangyang
and Xingyun are production and sale of coal and Jinfeng
was the sole purchaser of their coal produced during the
Year. Therefore, the operational cashflow and the liquidity of
Xiangyang and Xingyun are relied on the settlement (i.e. either
by cash or bills) from Jinfeng.

* For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Bills payable as at the Current Year End amounted to
approximately HK$356.8 million (Last Year End: approximately
HK$278.0 million) which contributed approximately 91.5%
(Last Year End: approximately 92.2%) of the total amount of
accounts and bills payables as at the Current Year End, i.e.
approximately HK$390.1 million (Last Year End: approximately
HK$301.5 million). In order to enhance the operational cash
flow and liquidity for intra-group companies under the current
challenging business environment, certain bills were issued by
Jinfeng to Xiangyang and Xingyun for settlement. Moreover,
as the Group has purchased more coal from other suppliers for
coal trading during the Year, more bills were issued to those
suppliers for settlement. Therefore, the bills payable increased
by approximately HK$78.7 million or 28.3%.

Other Payables and Accruals

The total amount of other payables and accruals decreased
by approximately 14.0% from approximately HK$548.6
million as at the Last Year End to approximately HK$471.7
million as at the Current Year End. As at the Current Year
End, the other payables were mainly comprised of provision
for PRC retirement benefit scheme contributions amounted
to approximately HK$211.1 million (as at the Last Year
End: approximately HK$239.7 million), accrued coal mines
related removal and relocation expenses amounted to
approximately HK$52.7 million (as at the Last Year End:
approximately HK$47.0 million), accrued workers’ wages
and benefits amounted to approximately HK$49.7 million
(as at the Last Year End: approximately HK$33.7 million),
contingent consideration of investment in associates
amounted to approximately HK$11.3 million (as at the Last
Year End: approximately HK$23.1 million) and advances from
independent third parties amounted to approximately HK$5.9
million (as at the Last Year End: approximately HK$99.2
million). The decrease was mainly due to most of the advances
provided by independent third parties in the Last Year have
been settled by the Group during the Year.

EEENWKR DM
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN®R DM

ESTIMATED COAL RESOURCES OF THE COAL AEBWEBZ2ATTRERER

MINES OF THE GROUP

The following table summarized the estimated coal resources TERBAAREENEBRR -_Z—NOFER -
of the coal mines of the Group as at 31 December 2014 and T—=—F+-_HA=+—HBHMEFTEXE

2013: IR
As at 31 As at 31
December December
2014 2013
mt mt
R-ZE—DNFE RN —=%F
+=A +=H
=+—H =+—H
BEm =R
Coal mines owned by the Group RNEE A B HEE
(i)  Xiaohe Coal Mine No.1 NS —HE 7.1 7.2
(i) Xiaohe Coal Mine No.2 NS ZHE 1.6 1.7
(iii) Xiaohe Coal Mine No.3 N = HE 1.7 1.8
(iv) Xiangyang Coal Mine m) 55 B 14.9 15.0
(v)  Xingyun Coal Mine 8 iR 3.7 3.8
29.0 29.5
Notes: =X
(1) Major assumptions adopted for the annual updates on the above () ¥ riuifEstEREREETEEEHEEA
estimated coal resources were: ZEFEREAE:
(i) Original coal resources of each coal mine were made (i SEBERERERENZZERER

reference to the relevant coal resources reports and/or coal EHRER IR NESHEBERANER
mine information available to the Group at the time of AJERZER:
acquisition of the respective coal mines;

REEREREZ HFFRREREF

(i) Annual updates on the estimated coal resources for each coal (ii)

14

(iii)

mine as at Current Year End were calculated as follow:

(Estimated coal resources as at the Last Year End) — (Actual
coal production volume for the Year),

There was no material structural change within the coal mines
that will cause the significant deviation between the actual
coal resources and the above annual updates.

There was no material change of the above assumptions as
compared with the Last Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at the Current Year End, the net asset value of the Group
was approximately HK$775.4 million (as at the Last Year
End: approximately HK$1,165.2 million) and the total cash
and bank balance (including pledged bank deposit) was
approximately HK$780.8 million (as at the Last Year End:
approximately HK$705.1 million). As at the Current Year
End, the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$373.0 million (as at the Last Year End: net current
liabilities of approximately HK$161.7 million) and its current
ratio decreased from 0.9 times as at the Last Year End to 0.8
times as at the Current Year End. The Group’s working capital
was mainly financed by internal cash flow generated from
its operation and the banking facilities granted by financial
institutions.

As at the Current Year End, the Group’s accounts
receivable, net of any provision for impairment amounted
to approximately HK$169.7 million (as at the Last Year
End: approximately HK$297.0 million) and certain accounts
receivable were pledged to secure bank loans of the Group.
Subsequent to 31 December 2014 and up to the date of
this report, accounts receivable amounted to approximately
HK$105.8 million has been settled.

As at the Current Year End, bank deposits amounted to
approximately HK$255.9 million (as at the Last Year End:
approximately HK$124.3 million) were pledged and not
available for the operation or repayment of debts of the
Group. Cash and cash equivalents which was not pledged
amounted to approximately HK$524.8 million (as at the Last
Year End: approximately HK$580.8 million).

As at the Current Year End, the Group’s total bank loans, net
of any provision for impairment amounted to approximately
HK$560.8 million (as at the Last Year End: approximately
HK$461.1 million). The bank loans bear interest at fixed rates
ranging from 4.44% to 9.99% per annum (as at the Last Year
End: at fixed rates ranging from 5.59% to 9.99% per annum).

As at the Current Year End, the entire balance of the Group’s
bills payable (as the Last Year End: the entire balance) were
secured by the pledge of the Group’s time deposits amounted
approximately HK$255.9 million (2013: approximately
HK$124.3 million), in which approximately HK$75.6 million (as
at the Last Year End: approximately HK$153.8 million) were
also guaranteed by independent third parties.

EEENWKR DM

RBET UHRERRELFREE

RAEAFER AEEBZ2EEFEOLAR
775,400,000 T (R EFE R L
1,165,200,0008 7T) r MR & KB 1T
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£780,800,0008B L (R EFER 4
705,100,000 L) c R AFE R AEE
ZRE B EFEE 4 A373,000,000% 7T (R
FFEER: REBEFFEL A161,700,000
BIT)  RBLLERAAEFERZ09FT
BEAFERZ08E - AEEZEEED
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TREBEERE-

RAFER  AEEEUERK (F0BR R
B E) 49 5169,700,0005% 7T (IR EFE
K 1 #9297,000,000/8 7T ) * A & & F EUK
RARERAEEHRTERZER AT
—E+ A=+ BEEAREBLE
J& U BR 7% 49105,800,0008 ST 2518 -

RAFER BEEBETERDL B
255,900,000 T (R EFE R L
124,300,000 70) * FAJ AR ALERE 2 &
EYEREE  WAKR B REeSE
T8 B #94524,800,000 7T (R EFEX:
#7580,800,0003% 7T ) ©

RAFER NEBZHRTERERE (0
B T {a] i (B B 15 ) 49 560,800,000 7T
(A EFEXR:#461,100,000 7T) iR
TEREZETFEMNEN T4.44%=E9.99%
(REFEXR:BEFHMENF5.59%=F
9.99% )&t B e

REAFER AEBEZENEENEME
EH(RLEFER-BELZH) BAEE
8 i 17 F49255,900,0008 ¢ (= &
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

The Group’s gearing ratio (as a ratio calculated by (a) the sum
of bank loans, advances from third parties and amount due to
an associate; divided by (b) the net assets of the Group) was
85.9% (as at the Last Year End: 51.4%).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at the Current Year End, the Group did not have capital
expenditure commitments in relation to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment contracted but not provided for,
net of deposit paid (the Last Year End: approximately HK$29.1
million).

On 10 September 2014, the Group entered into an
agreement with two independent third parties to establish
two companies, the Manufacture Company and the Sales
Company. The JV Parties intend, through the two companies,
to explore the LNG Businesses. Upon completion of
establishment of these companies, the maximum registered
capital of the Manufacture Company will be RMB100.0 million
in which the Group will contribute 27% of the registered
capital or RMB27.0 million to the Manufacture Company, while
the maximum registered capital of the Sales Company will be
RMB10.0 million in which the Group will contribute 51% of
the registered capital or RMB5.1 million to the Sales Company.
These companies have yet to establish as of the date of this
report.

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not have any
significant capital commitments as at the Current Year End (the
Last Year End: Nil).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the Year (the Last Year End: Nil).

SAFETY PRODUCTION AND ENVIRONMENT
PROTECTION

The Group has always paid great attention to production
safety and environmental protection while achieving growth
in coal production. Thus, the Group makes great efforts in
promoting safety management and strengthening measures
for environmental protection, aiming at building itself into
a safety-oriented and environmentally-friendly enterprise.
During the Year under review, except for an accident occurred
in Xiangyang Coal Mine in May 2014 and the occasion
suspension of coal mines as mentioned, the coal mines of the
Group operated normally and no material safety incidents were
recorded.
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Biographical Details in Respect of the Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Dong Cunling, aged 53, has been the executive director
of the Company and chairman of the Board since December
2011 and March 2012. He holds a professional diploma in
Chinese Language of Henan University, the PRC. Mr. Dong was
a college teacher in Dengfeng Municipal of Henan Province,
the PRC. Mr. Dong joined Henan Jinfeng Coal Industrial
Group Company Limited (“Jinfeng”), i.e. a subsidiary of the
Company, since 2003. He held several positions in Jinfeng
and he is currently a director of Jinfeng. He has extensive
experience in the management of coal mines.

Mr. Chen Xu, aged 47, has been the executive director of the
Company since September 2013. Mr. Chen graduated with
master degree of laws from Peking University Law School. He
has obtained extensive management experience from different
enterprises, including Japanese based company, stated-
owned enterprise in China and multinational companies. He
has involved in negotiations for several important overseas
investment projects and trading agreements. He has obtained
the relevant qualification as a legal consultant and he
specializes in international trading, energy and economic
analysis. He currently holds the position of the PRC Legal
Officer of the Company.

Mr. Wu Jiahong, aged 48, has been the executive director of
the Company since 2006. He holds a Bachelor of Art diploma
from the Beijing Foreign Studies University of Beijing, the
PRC and a Master of Business Administration degree from
the Georgetown University in the United States. He has over
20 years of experience in corporate finance and strategic
management. He is responsible for the management and
financial operation of the Group. Mr. Wu is an independent
non-executive director of Shun Cheong Holdings Limited since
August 2013, which is listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Biographical Details in Respect of the Directors

EEBEFK

Mr. Yang Hua, aged 37, has been the executive director
of the Company since June 2010. Mr. Yang also served as
deputy chairman and chief executive officer of the Company
since April 2012. He graduated with Master of Business
Administration from the Business School of National University
of Singapore and with a Bachelor of Art from Beijing Foreign
Studies University. After graduation from the university in
Beijing, he has joined a state-owned enterprise and involved
in energy trading, economic environment analysis on global
energy market and risk control. He has also acted as a trader
in PRC for international commodities futures contracts and
derivative products. Mr. Yang has extensive experience in
financial market and risk management.

Mr. Zhou Guangwen, aged 46, has been the executive
director of the Company since February 2012. He graduated
with Doctor of Philosophy from Peking University of the
PRC. Mr. Zhou has extensive working experience as a senior
management in certain local bank and security company
in the PRC. He is currently the president of Ginkgo Capital
Management Co., Limited which specializes in asset
management and securities investment. Mr. Zhou is one of
the first batch of the people in the PRC to engage in securities
industry.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Chunyan, aged 51, has been the non-executive
director of the Company since December 2011. He is currently
a registered lawyer at Henan Shi Ji Tong Law Firm (&gt
4CIREREAT) in the PRC and is also a certified public
accountant, certified public valuer and certified tax agent
in the PRC. Mr. Li has acted as a legal adviser to the Henan
Provincial People’'s Hospital, the Henan TV Station and certain
listed companies in the PRC. Mr. Li was an independent non-
executive director in three PRC listed companies during the
period from 2002 to 2008. He was an independent non-
executive director (resigned in 2014) of Henan Pinggao Electric
Co., Ltd which listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange of
the PRC. Mr. Li is an independent non-executive director of
Zhongyu Gas Holdings Limited since October 2010, which is
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details in Respect of the Directors

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chen Renbao, aged 52, has been the independent non-
executive director of the Company since December 2011.
He received his Bachelor of Arts in Economics from Anhui
University, the PRC, in 1985. After graduated from Anhui
University, Dr. Chen received his Master of Arts in Demography
in 1989, Ph.D. in insurance and Ph.D. in Demography from
the University of Pennsylvania, the United States, in 1993. Dr.
Chen acted as a director of US Keywise Capital Management
and consultant for the NUS Endowment Fund. He was an
independent non-executive director (resigned in 2013) of
Guangdong Midea Electric Appliances Co., Ltd which is listed
in Shenzhen Stock Exchange of the PRC. He currently acts
as a consultant in a number of PRC and overseas companies
to provide financial and risk management consultation and
training services to those companies.

Mr. Jiang Xiaohui, aged 48, has been the independent
non-executive director of the Company since July 2014.
He graduate with bachelor degree of laws from Southwest
University of Political Science and Law in China. He has been
engaged in the legal profession since 1990 and he is currently
an associate professor of Law in Henan University of Economics
and Law. He has served as legal counsel for several state-
owned banks in China as well as some well-known enterprises
located in Henan Province. Mr. Jiang has also involved in
the legal education and research in relation to the areas of
economic, civil and commercial. He has also participated in
economic and civil litigations for over 17 years.

Mr. Ma Yueyong, aged 50, has been the independent non-
executive director since December 2011. He holds a Bachelor
Degree in Accounting from Zhongnan University of Economics
and Law (formerly known as Zhongnan University of Finance
and Economics), the PRC. He has also achieved postgraduate
qualification in Accounting from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics, the PRC. Mr. Ma was appointed as an
executive director and an independent non-executive director
in three PRC listed companies during the period from 1998
to 2004. Mr. Ma was an independent non-executive director
(resigned in 2014) of Henan Linzhou Heavy Machinery Co.,
Ltd. which is listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange of the PRC.
He is a certified public accountant in Reanda Certified Public
Accountant Co., Ltd. Henan Branch in the PRC since April
2011. Mr. Ma is a financial controller of Zhengzhou New
Dafang Heavy Industry Science & Technology Co., Ltd since
January 2013.
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Corporate Governance Report
¥ ERRE

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except for the deviation as set
out below.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. The non-executive director
and independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) of the
Company do not have a specific term of appointment, but are
subject to rotation in accordance with bye-law 111 of the Bye-
laws of the Company. As the non-executive director and INEDs
of the Company are subject to rotation in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company, the Board considers that the non-
executive director and INEDs of the Company so appointed
with no specific term will not impair the quality of corporate
governance of the Company as required by the principle of
good governance laid down in A.4 of the CG Code.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires that the
independent non-executive directors and the non-executive
directors should attend general meetings. However, the
independent non-executive director of the Company, Dr. Chen
Renbao was unable to attend the annual general meeting of
the Company held in Hong Kong on 27 May 2014 as he was
absent from Hong Kong.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors.
Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have fully complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine
Directors and its composition is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Dong Cunling (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Hua (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chen Xu

Mr. Wu Jiahong

Mr. Zhou Guangwen

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Li Chunyan

INEDs

Dr. Chen Renbao
Mr. Ma Yueyong
Mr. Jiang Xiaohui
(appointed on 1 July 2014)

The brief biographical details of the Directors and the
relationship among them are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details in Respect of the Directors” in the 2014
annual report of the Company, of which this report forms part.

RESPONSIBILITY OF BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board determines the overall strategies, monitors and
controls operating and financial performance and sets
appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives. Matters reserved for the Board are those
affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, finances and
shareholders including financial statements, dividend policies,
significant changes in accounting policy, material contracts
and major investment. Day-to-day management of the Group’s
businesses is delegated to the executive Directors or senior
management. The Board reviews the delegation of power
and functions from time to time to ensure effectiveness and
appropriateness.
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ATTENDANCE OF THE BOARD AND BOARD HEESERZEEER K
COMMITTEEES

The Board meets regularly during the Year and the Directors EEeNFAFTHETEELEZTEENM
have made active contribution to the affairs of the Group. The REBZERELEBEGRER - TRERSD
following table shows the attendance of all the Directors at the EEEAEHE-_E-—NE+-_A=1+—H
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2014: ITFERAEF MBI

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HER/2E1H

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
E= Exg ENZE" ¥MzEE REZEE RRAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Dong Cunling ERREE 4/4 - - - 171
Mr. Chen Xu BR 18 5% & 2/4 - - - 0/1
Mr. Wu Jiahong BRAZE 1/4 - - - 0/1
Mr. Yang Hua BELE 4/4 = = = 11
Mr. Zhou Guangwen FEX k4. 1/4 = = = 0/1
Non-Executive Director FHTEE
Mr. Li Chunyan TEELE 1/4 = = = 11
INEDs BUFHTES
Dr. Chen Renbao RECEET 3/4 22 171 171 0/1
Mr. Li Daomin (Note 1) TERLE (Fa1) 0/1 01 0/1 0/1 =
Mr. Ma Yueyong SRAEE 3/4 22 17N 1N 1
Mr. Jiang Xiaohui (Note 2) BRERE (H32) 3 » _ _ _

Notes: Bifat -

1. Mr. Li Diaomin has resigned as an independent non-executive 1. ZTEREECR-ZZ—NFMNA—HEH(T
director of the Company on 1 April 2014. KRB ZBUIENITEE -

2. Mr. Jiang Xiaohui was appointed as an independent non- 2. BEEBEANR-_T-NELA-—HEZFT
executive director of the Company on 1 July 2014. BARANTZ BT IEHITES -

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TERITHAR

The positions and roles of Chairman of the Board and Chief EEe T FEARDTITHAE B & B
Executive Officer of the Company are held and performed EHERBATOREEEBIT AR
separately by two individuals to ensure their respective EXAMBEVE FEUEREEE - FEE
independence, accountability and responsibility. The Chairman, FREEEEPERIAETEERE 1T
being Mr. Dong Cunling is responsible for corporate planning BHIBEELCEN T AEB TR AT
and market development. The Chief Executive Officer, being BEAEEHNEEEE

Mr. Yang Hua, who performs the functions of chief executive

of the Group, is responsible for the day-to-day management of

the Group.
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INEDS

One-third of the members of the Board consist of INEDs and at
least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Company has received from each independent non-executive
director of the Company an annual confirmation of his
independence for the year ended 31 December 2014 pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all
INEDs to be independent during the Year.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term
and subject to re-election. The non-executive Directors are not
appointed for specific terms but they are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings
("AGM") of the Company. Pursuant to bye-law 111 of the
Bye-laws of the Company, each director of the Company shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Board considers that the non-executive Directors so
appointed with no specific term will not impair the quality of
corporate governance of the Group required by the principle of
good governance laid down in A.4 of the CG Code.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company are available and
accessible on the Company’s website at http://www.irasia.com/
listco/hk/rrhl.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the Year, the Board has adopted a board diversity policy
(the "Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognises
that increasing diversity at the Board level will support
the attainment of the Company's strategic objectives and
sustainable development.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

TEREREHE
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The nomination committee will give consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy when identifying suitably qualified candidates,
to become members of the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Dr. Chen Renbao
(as chairman), Mr. Jiang Xiaoui and Mr. Ma Yueyong as at
the date of this report. During the Year, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting. The attendance record of the
committee is set out in the table on page 22 of the annual
report.

The principle role and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are to review the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and key executives, including
salaries, bonuses, benefits in kind and the terms on which they
participate in any share options and other plans considering
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and key
executives, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration and making
recommendations to the Board from time to time.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
comprises three INEDs, namely Dr. Chen Renbao, Mr. Jiang
Xiaohui and Mr. Ma Yueyong (as chairman) as at the date of
this report. During the Year, the Nomination Committee held
one meeting. The attendance record of the committee is set
out in the table on page 22 of the annual report.
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis
and to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
board members. It is also responsible for assessing the
independence of INEDs and making recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of director and succession planning for Directors.
The Nomination Committee reviewed the board diversity
policy and the progress on achieving the objectives set for
implementing the said policy. The recommendations of the
nomination committee are then put forward for consideration
and adoption where appropriate, by the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely
Dr. Chen Renbao, Mr. Jiang Xiaohui and Mr. Ma Yueyong (as
chairman) as at the date of this report. The principle role and
functions of the Audit Committee are to review and provide
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process
and internal controls. The Audit Committee also serves as
a channel of communication between the Board and the
external auditor.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings.
The attendance record of the committee members at these
meetings are set out in the table on page 22 of the annual
report. The work performed by the audit committee during
the Year included reviewing the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013, the unaudited consolidated interim financial statements
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2014 and
recommended such financial statements to the Board for
approval and also the effectiveness of the internal control
practices of the Group.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
Moore Stephens, Certified Public Accountants, be nominated
for re-appointment as auditor of the Company at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company.
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The Board has delegated the responsibilities for performing
the corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board; to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors; to review and monitor
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct applicable to employees and Directors;
and to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

It also reviewed the Company’s progress in implementing the
corporate governance requirements as set out in the CG Code.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration
paid or payable to the auditor of the Company, Moore
Stephens are set out below:

EXeCRBEERZEERTEXE AR
B HELRRIARARBZERERBER
BA YRAEFERHER ROMERE
ENFINIEFEEXRER R MERAR
REEBTARREERTE T ENBRK
BROHE R MEREENREZTZEST
R AR ARARE T EEERTR
BRAREKEEERA®RE) AWE-

ZEE TR ARREITRRER TN
HEXEARELERE -

BB B
RBEE-Z—NF+-A=+—ALFE
PO S B A AR 2 R AR B 5 3 2 6D
EHMZHeWT

Fee

Services rendered paid/payable

Rz R HK$'000

g1/

ENEA

FAT

Audit services BEZR 800
Non-audit services (Interim financial review and EEZ RS

other services) (R ERB 5 28 B e EAth AR 75 ) 280

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the Company’s accounts. The consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014 have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
including Hong Kong Accounting Standards and applicable
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements.
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The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
other than the situations described in note 3.1 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Board is not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may affect the business of the Company or cast doubts on its
ability to continue as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor, Moore
Stephens, are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 42 to 43.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’
liabilities has been in force to protect the Directors and officers
of the Group from their risk exposure arising from the business
of the Group.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all Directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. A summary of training records received by the
Directors for the Year is set out as follows:

TEREREHE

E=HER KEL A EERNEUESF
P B R PTE R E M BRI
BT Z BRI EFE S U BABEME
AT RBERMAIEE R EARA QT
HEB R ESE L LR B -
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Attending
conference(s)/
training
course(s)/ Reading
seminars materials and/or
relevant to updates relevant
the business, to the business,
directors’ directors’
duties or listing duties or listing
regulatory regulatory
Directors requirements requirements
BE= HEEER -
EEHER T
ETEERE EERER
BEzgE EHEERE
ZIRE FBzZMER
mE /BB
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Dong Cunling BFREE - v
Mr. Chen Xu PR B 5 = v
Mr. Wu Jiahong MRAL & - v
Mr. Yang Hua HELE = v
Mr. Zhou Guangwen BBkt 4 v
Non-Executive Director EHMITES
Mr. Li Chunyan THEELE = 4
INEDs BYIFATES
Dr. Chen Renbao BRCEEL - v
Mr. Li Daomin (Note 1) ZERLAE (K1) - v
Mr. Ma Yueyong HREBELE - 4
Mr. Jiang Xiaohui (Note 2) BEESL A (ME2) v/ v
Notes: Bt i
1. Mr. Li Daomin has resigned as an independent non-executive 1. FERELECR-ZZ—NFMNA—HE/T

director of the Company on 1 April 2014. RRBZIBILIERITES -

BEEEEN_T-NFLA-RAEZHE
RARBZBIIFNTES-

2. Mr. Jiang Xiaohui was appointed as an independent non- 2.
executive director of the Company on 1 July 2014.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

As at 31 December 2014, the Company Secretary of the
Company, Mr. Li Chun On (“Mr. Li"), fulfills the requirement
under Rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules. He has day-
to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Mr. Li reports to
the Chairman and is responsible for advising the Board on
governance matters. For the Year under review, Mr. Li has
taken over 15 hours of relevant professional training.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s internal
control system and reviewing its effectiveness. However, such
a system is designed to manage the Group’s risks within an
acceptable risk profile, rather than to eliminate the risk of
failure, to achieve the business objectives of the Group. During
the Year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
existing system of internal controls with a view to safeguard
the Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with Shareholders. A Shareholders’” Communication Policy
setting out the Company’s procedure in providing the
Shareholders with prompt and equal access to information
about the Company, in order to enable the Shareholders to
access the Company’s overall performance, exercise their
rights in an informed manner and engage actively with the
Company. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated
to shareholders in a timely manner through a number of
formal channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum
for exchange of views between the Shareholders and the
Board. The Chairman of the Board, the Directors and senior
management of the Company and where applicable, the
INEDs, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’
meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Directors. Details of poll voting procedures are included in all
circulars to Shareholders which call for a general meeting and
are explained during proceedings of the meeting.
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The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its Shareholders and investors. Information
about the Company’s activities is provided in its interim and
annual reports, which are sent to Shareholders, analysts and/
or interested parties. Enquiries from Shareholders and investors
are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/rrhl,
where extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
posted.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedure for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders can submit a requisition to convene a special
general meeting pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (the “Act”). The number of Shareholders
necessary for a requisition shall be representing not less than
one-tenth of the Company’s paid-up capital as at the date of
requisition having the right to vote at the general meeting.

The written requisition must:
—  state the purposes of the special general meeting;

—  be signed by all the requisitionists (may consist of one
or several documents in like form each singed by one or
more requisitionists); and

- be deposited at the Company’s office in Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
special general meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, any themselves convene a special general meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the said date.
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Procedure for Shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings

Shareholders can submit a requisition to move a resolution at
an annual general meeting pursuant to Section 79 of the Act.
The number of Shareholders necessary for a requisition shall be:

—  representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all Shareholders having at the date of
requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or

- not less than 100 Shareholders.

The written requisition must:

state the resolution, with a statement not more than
1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in the
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at
the meeting;

- be signed by all the requisitionists (may consist of one
or several documents in like form each singed by one or
more requisitionists);

—  be deposited at the Company’s office in Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary not less than
six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one
week before the meeting in case of any other requisition;
and

—  be deposited with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in giving notice of the resolution
and circulating the statements of the proposed resolution
to all Shareholder in accordance with the requirements
under the applicable laws and rules.

Enquires to the Board

The Company’s website provides email address and telephone
to enable Shareholders to make any enquiries and concerns to
the Board. Shareholders may send their enquiries by post or
by email to the attention of the Company Secretary who will
direct the enquiries to the Board for handling.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are the production and
sale of coal and trading of purchased coal in the PRC.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at
that date are set out on pages 44 to 172 of the annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the Year.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 4 and 5 of
the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group had not
made any material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies. Save as disclosed in the paragraph of
“LNG tank containers related business” under the section of
Business and Market Review in the Chairman’s Statement, the
Group did not have any significant investment during the Year

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION

Details of the Company’s share capital and share option during
the Year, together with the reasons therefore, are set out
in notes 31 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities on the
Stock Exchange during the Year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The sales and purchases of the Group are predominantly in
RMB which is the functional currency of the related group
entities. The Board therefore is of the opinion that the Group’s
sensitivity to the change in foreign currency is low and the
Group does not hedge its foreign currency risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has a total of
approximately 2,100 employees located in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Salaries are reviewed annually with discretionary bonuses
being paid depending on individual performance. The Group
also provides other benefits including medical insurance and
pension funds. A share option scheme was adopted by the
Group on 27 May 2014 to enable the Directors to grant share
options to eligible participants including any employee of the
Group as incentive to their valuable contribution to the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in accordance
with the requirements of the CG Code for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. The audit committee
comprises three of the INEDs of the Company. The members of
the audit committee have reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 and are of the opinion that such statements comply with
the applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal
requirements and those adequate disclosures have been made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Corporate Governance Report are set out on
pages 20 to 31 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules throughout the financial year.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2014 was approximately HK$467.2 million (as at 31 December
2013: HK$485.7 million). In addition, the Company's share
premium account as at 31 December 2014, in the amount of
approximately HK$235.3 million, can be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the Year under review, the percentage of turnover
attributable to the largest customer and the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for 78.4% and 99.4%
respectively. The percentage of purchases attributable to the
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for 70.2% and 95.2% respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Dong Cunling (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Hua (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chen Xu

Mr. Wu Jiahong

Mr. Zhou Guangwen

Non-Executive Director:
Mr. Li Chunyan
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INEDs:

Dr. Chen Renbao
Mr. Li Daomin
(resigned on 1 April 2014)
Mr. Ma Yueyong
Mr. Jiang Xiaohui
(appointed on 1 July 2014)

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from all INEDs and as at the date of this annual
report still considers them to be independent.

In accordance with bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Wu Jiahong, Mr. Yang Hua and Mr. Ma Yueyong will retire
by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company. Mr. Jiang
Xiaohui was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company, is also due to retire and being
eligible, offer himself for election in accordance with bye-law
115 of the Company’s Bye-laws at the forthcoming AGM of
the Company.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 17 to
19 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director of the Company being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, no director of the Company had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN THE
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures and Ordinance (the “SFO")) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO);
or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or were required,
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

(a) Long positions in the ordinary shares of the
Company

EERITHAZRAQAREM
BEEzRSPHREZ2EERA
B

RZZE—NFE+_A=+—"H EFLK
ARITHRBENART REBEEE (F
ERBHFLHEKRN ([BERPEKEH])
FEXVER) 215 - AR REFTEEA
RIEESE KBS IEM EXVELET K8 3 AN
EARARBMBRFT (BEFSEREESR
HEBRIN 2 ZEEXHEERBER 2
ERSOAE)  RABARRRIREES KL
HEERAIEIHETFE 2 E R SRk £
MAAE LT RARESETEERDZ
IZESFAEMEARRI LBz Em &
KRBT

(a) RAEQBEZEBERPZHRE

Number of Approximate

Number of underlying percentage of
Name of Directors Nature of interest shares shares shareholding
L g
EEpR EEME R %8B R4 BB BMABEDL
Mr. Dong Cunling Personal interest 540,000 — 0.08%
BERFILEE B AR
Mr. Yang Hua Personal interest 81,089,196 = 11.38%
BELE (EPN- ¥

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company had any interest or short position in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO); or were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or were required, pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange as at 31 December 2014.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERRRHEMATHEEZRSG
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES R

So far as was known to the Directors or chief executive of the BEESANANBITIHEETA  N=_Z—m
Company, as at 31 December 2014, the person, other than FE+=—B=+—H8  THAT (ESFHAAQ
the Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had an BT AEF G IN) IR AR (D sk R B R (0 0
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares as EREZANLBEEHEIZ6CIEBEFEZ
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 ~ ZEMATEG I EEIAB T :

of the SFO were as follows:

(a) Long positions in the shares (a) RBROFPZHRE

Approximate
Number of percentage of

Name of Shareholders Capacity shares shareholding
% ¥
BRHESR BB g% BHE R BMABE DL
(1) Retop International Investment Limited Beneficial owner 141,400,000 19.84%
(Note 1)
ImhERIRERR AR (M) EnEa A
(2) Vestfoco International Investment Interests in controlled 141,400,000 19.84%
Limited (“Vestfoco”) (Note 1) corporation
HEERIRERRAR ([#E]) S EBEER
(Krat1)
3) Mr. Bao Hongkai (“Mr. Bao”) Interests in controlled 141,400,000 19.84%
(Note 1) corporation
B EE ([BEE]) X EE R
(KaE1)
Beneficial owner 675,000 0.09%
EmEEa A
(4) Asia Mark Development Limited Beneficial owner 100,000,000 14.03%
(Note 2) (HtzE2) EmEa A
(50 Mr. Kwong Ying Hou (Note 2) Interests in controlled 100,000,000 14.03%
corporation
B EE (KaF2) X EE R
(6) Victory Investment China Group Limited Beneficial owner 60,000,000 8.42%
(Note 3) (ff7£3) EnEAA
(7)  Dr. Wang Ruiyun (Note 3) Interests in controlled 60,000,000 8.42%
corporation
FimEE LT (HaE3) VA E s
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Notes:

(1)  Retop International Investment Limited is beneficially and wholly
owned by Vestfoco of which Mr. Bao is the sole beneficial
owner. Accordingly, Vestfoco and Mr. Bao are deemed to
be interested in the shares of the Company held by Retop
International Investment Limited.

(2) Asia Mark Development Limited is beneficially and wholly
owned by Mr. Kwong Ying Hou. He is independent and not
related to the Board or management of the Company.

(3)  Victory Investment China Group Limited is beneficially and
wholly owned by Dr. Wang Ruiyun. He resigned as a non-
executive director and a co-chairman of the Company in
November 2011.

Save as disclosed above, no persons had an interest or a short
position in the shares and the underlying shares as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above and note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the Year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors
or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the year of 2014, the Board proposed the termination
of the share option scheme adopted by the Company and
became effective on 20 October 2004 (the “Old Scheme”)
and the adoption of the new share option scheme which
were approved by an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 27 May
2014 (the “New Scheme"). The operation of Old Scheme was
terminated such that no further share option could thereafter
be offered under Old Scheme.

As at 31 December 2014, all of the 735,675 share options
grant under the Old Scheme has been lapsed.
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Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Company may grant
options to, amongst others, the directors or employees of
the Company or its subsidiaries, for the recognition of their
contributions to the Group, to subscribe for the shares. The
share options are exercisable at any time during a period of
not more than 10 years from the date of the offer for grant of
options, subject to the terms and conditions of New Scheme
and any conditions of grant as may be stipulated by the Board.

New Scheme is valid and remains in force for a period of
10 years from 27 May 2014 (the “Scheme Period”) unless
terminated earlier by shareholders in general meeting. The
purpose of New Scheme is to enable the Board to grant share
options to the Participant as defined in New Scheme including,
among others, the directors, employee or consultants, advisers
or agent of or to the Company or its subsidiaries or any
entity which is a member of the same group of companies
as the Company (the “Invested Entity”), who under the
terms of relevant engagement with the Group or the relevant
Invested Entity. The provisions of New Scheme comply with the
requirements of Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Pursuant to New Scheme, the offer for grant of options
("Offer”) must be accepted within 10 business days from
the day on which such offer was made, with a payment of
HK$1.00 as consideration for the grant. The exercise price
of the share option is to be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the Offer date
which must be business day; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the Offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a share
of the Company. The share options are exercisable at any time
during a period as the Board may determine in granting the
share options but in any event shall not exceed 10 years from
the date of Offer, subject to the terms and conditions of New
Scheme and any conditions of grant as may be stipulated by
the Board.
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The aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the New Scheme and any other schemes shall
not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The maximum number of share issuable
upon exercise of all options to be granted New Scheme and
any other schemes as from the commencement of the Scheme
Period must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares
in issue as at 27 May 2014 (the “"Scheme Mandate”). The
Scheme Mandate may be refreshed at any time by obtaining
approval of shareholders in general meeting provided that
the new limit under the refreshed Scheme Mandate must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the
date of the shareholders’ approval. The maximum number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted under New Scheme and any other schemes to each
Participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

As at 31 December 2014, no option has been granted under
New Scheme since its adoption.

PENSION SCHEME AND COSTS

Details of the Group's pension scheme and the employer’s
pension costs charged to the income statement for the Year
are set out in notes 3.18 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

In the opinion of the Board, the Group had no significant
obligations for long service payments to its employee pursuant
to the requirements under the Employment Ordinance,
Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong, at 31 December 2014.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has
not conducted any “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” (as defined under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules) which is subject to reporting and annual
review requirements under the Listing Rules. The transactions
disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements
as related party transactions did not fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

No Directors are considered to have interest in any business
which is likely to compete directly or indirectly with that of the
Group.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to approximately
HK$0.1 million.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period are disclosed in
note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

During the Year, BDO Limited, who acted as auditor of the
Company for the past three years, resigned with effect from 21
July 2014. The Board has resolved to appoint Moore Stephens
as new auditor of the Company with effect from 28 July
2014 to fill the casual vacancy occasioned by the resignation
of BDO Limited and to hold office until the conclusion of
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
A resolution will be proposed to the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Moore
Stephens as auditor of the Company.

Save for the above, there were no other changes of auditor of
the Company in the past three years.

On behalf of the Board

Dong Cunling
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BE RS

To the shareholders of Rosan Resources Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Rosan Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, (the “Group”) set out on pages
44 to 172, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirement of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90
of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group's
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 3.1
to the consolidated financial statements which indicates that
the Group incurred a consolidated net loss of HK$373,667,000
for the year ended 31 December 2014 and, as of that date,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$372,966,000. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2013 were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on 26 March 2014.

Moore Stephens
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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T
Consolidated Income Statement
R

for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

2014 2013
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E-mF —E—=F
K et FET TETT
Revenue Wz 5 481,571 322,896
Cost of sales SHER A (527,217) (343,965)
Gross loss E% | (45,646) (21,069)
Other income HAh A 5 68,776 34,036
Selling and distribution expenses $HE RO (8,123) (9,015)
Administrative expenses ITHFES (77,966) (116,926)
Other expenses EFY (11,860) (8,877)
Finance costs W75 A 7 (56,648) (93,802)
Share of profits/(losses) of FE(REE 2 N RN F,(E518)
associates 14,196 (45,339)
Share of profits/(losses) of Bh—RHaErsE
a joint venture wmF,(E1E) 654 (454)
Impairment loss on deposits He REMBUWGIAZ
and other receivables, net BEEE TR (30,275) (11,867)
Impairment loss on goodwill B 17 (68,969) (70,276)
Impairment loss on interest in A L) ANCIL -
an associate EEE 20 (27,180) -
Impairment loss on mining rights  &iE#E 2 RIEEE 18 (67,122) -
Impairment loss on property, M3 - B MR
plant and equipment 2B (EE B 15 (67,429) -
Loss before income tax BrATB R AT E 1R 8 (377,592) (343,589)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfise, (M%) 9 3,925 (3,922)
Loss for the year FREE (373,667) (347,511)
Loss for the year i FEREE -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company NATER A 10 (347,332) (323,455)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R e (26,335) (24,056)
(373.667) (347,511)
Loss per share attributable to  AQATHEE A
the owners of the Company EEERERE
- Basic and diluted (HK cents) —HEARREE ) 11 (48.737) (45.386)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEHEKRER

for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-F —T—=F
FHET FAET
Loss for the year FAEE (373,667) (347,511)
Other comprehensive FREMEE(ER) WA
(loss)/income for the year
ltems that will be reclassified HigwamnBEE=IER -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on BREBINETSIE N Z5E
translation of foreign
operations
— subsidiaries — KB A A (14,515) 30,255
— a joint venture ——He&grE (98) 181
— associates — B N7 (1,592) 4,309
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREM2E(EER) WA
for the year, net of tax (F0BrF538) (16,205) 34,745
Total comprehensive loss FAREEREARE
for the year (389,872) (312,766)
Total comprehensive loss Eh2HEEEARHE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZ =N (361,518) (291,463)
Non-controlling interests JEPERR e e (28,354) (21,303)
(389,872) (312,766)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A BB AR R

as at 31 December 2014 R —-—ZF—mMFE+—-F=+—H

2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-EF —ZT—=F
K et FEx FHETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIE - RS MR 15 563,742 525,206
Goodwill [EES 17 - 69,032
Mining rights g 18 561,172 647,373
Other intangible assets HinfmE & E 19 85 -
Interests in associates ;NI 20 108,356 125,816
Interest in a joint venture R—EEEDE 2L 21 6,624 6,067
Available-for-sale financial assets At HES M EE 22 26,566 26,566
1,266,545 1,400,060
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 23 26,959 13,779
Accounts and bills receivables FEUER R R R4 24 169,995 298,216
Prepayments, deposits and TBNFIE e REM
other receivables FEU kT8 25 153,251 207,867
Tax recoverable A] U B F 9,617 9,774
Pledged bank deposits EEMIRITER 26(a) 255,922 124,286
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RIBEEEER 26(b) 524,835 580,835
1,140,579 1,234,757
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts and bills payables FER R R R IR 27 390,089 301,465
Other payables and accruals HAbfE FIE R FEETE A 471,654 548,649
Provision for reclamation HZRE B G
obligations 28 90,983 85,249
Bank loans RITE 29 560,819 461,112
1,513,545 1,396,475
Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (372,966) (161,718)
Total assets less current HWEERRBIEE
liabilities 893,579 1,238,342
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

maE B BRI R

as at 31 December 2014 R—-ZF—mMFE+—-F=+—H

2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-NF —T—=%F
et FHET FET
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Other payables H A fE 1~ FRIE - 11,532
Amount due to an associate FET — 2 A R FRIR 20 99,442 38,439
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIAE E 30 18,759 23,126
118,201 73,097
Net assets BEEFE 775,378 1,165,245
EQUITY B AR =
Share capital A% 2R 31 71,267 71,267
Reserves G 34(a) 691,921 1,053,439
Equity attributable to the AAREE ABMGEZR AR
owners of the Company 763,188 1,124,706
Non-controlling interests FEERER 12,190 40,539
Total equity RA R mEE 775,378 1,165,245
Dong Cunling Yang Hua
Director Director
7R wE
EF EF
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Statement of Financial Position

Bt ik R

as at 31 December 2014 R —-ZE—pF+—-—H=4+—H

2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mF —ZT—=F
K et FET TETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AT ZI%E 16 790,695 796,164
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other  FEfFIE - 124 &
receivables H fih U 5RI8 291 291
Cash and cash equivalents Be RIBEEEEER 2,576 3,215
2,867 3,506
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals H At & 5RIE R FEET B A 4,635 5,237
Net current liabilities REBEEEE (1,768) (1,731)
Total assets less current HWEERREARE
liabilities 788,927 794,433
Non-current liability FRBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary 1S — R FT B A R FRIB 16 15,033 -
Net assets BEEFRE 773,894 794,433
EQUITY RARE =
Share capital N 31 71,267 71,267
Reserves i 34(b) 702,627 723,166
Total equity RAEREE 773,894 794,433
Dong Cunling Yang Hua
Director Director
EFIR wE
o -
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e
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEaRB X

for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

Non-
controlling
Attributable to the owners of the Company interests Total
LYNGL 2N JEiEER it
Equity
component Capital Statutory  Retained
Share of Share  redemption Other Contributed ~ Exchange  Capital ~ reserve  profits/

Share premium* convertiole option  reserve* reserve*  surplus* fluctuation  reserve* fund* (Accumulated
capital (Note 34(@)  bonds*  reserve* (Note 34(a)) (Note 34(z) (Note 34(a)  reserve* (Note 34(a) (Note 34(a))  losses)* Total
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
-0
hiva®: TARES REGE EZpEE S RS EXRY EARE AR0EE REER/
kA (Hidse) 2hEnh: BRERE: (Hdde) (W) 0 Bl (W) (M340) (23E8) g5
Tér  TEr  TEr  TAr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TRr  TEr  TEr T TEr  TAr  TEn

At 1 January 2013 R=%-=F-A-H 71267 235334 24351 3847 50 72544 491671 164767 27442 134457 199447 1425177 56934 1482111

Early redemption of convertible f2FEE R ER

bonds (note 3 (W) - -0 - - - - - - - - o - G0
Forfeit of share option RERE = = - (1) - - - - - - A B B -
Transfer from contributed M ABSERZ

surplus to accumulated ARAZHER

losses of the Company (FrE34(b))

(note 34(b)) = = = = - - (5,354) - - - 535 - = =

Non-controling interest hE—HNBAA
arising from acquisition EEERER

of a subsidiary (note 36) (Hiit36) - - = = = = = = = = = = 4,908 4,908
Transactions with owners HREALRS - - (9008 (1,741) - - (53%) - - - 7095 (9008 4908 (4,100
Transfer to other reserves BRTEMEE - - - - - 413 - - - 35 (448) - - -
Transfer upon redemption of BRI TARERFER

convertible bonds (note 33)  (#7#33) - - (153483) - - - - - - - 1538 - - -
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - - - - - (323455) (323455 (24,05) (347,511)
Other comprehensive income ~ EREM2EMRA

for the year

- Exchange gain on -REBIERETE

translation of financial HR2ESIE

statements of foreign

operations
- subsidiaries -HEAR - - - = = = - 0% = = - 2191 2304 3025
- a Joint venture ——FREt% - - - - - - - 163 - - - 163 18 181
~ associates -BEna) - - - - - - - 3878 - - - 3878 431 4309

Total comprehensive income ~ FR2EUALE
for the year = = = = = = = 31,992 = - (323455 (291463)  (21303) (312,766)

At 31 December 2013 i 3
+-A=t-H 71,267 235334 - 2,106 50 72,957 486317 196,759 A4 134492 (102,018) 1,124,706 40,539 1,165,245
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e
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERBBR

for the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z—FT—WWF+_-H=1—HIFFZF

Non-
controlling
Attributable to the owners of the Company interests Total
ARIHEARLE KRR Eh
Capital Statutory
Share Share - redemption Other Contributed ~ Exchange Capital ~ reserve
Share  premium* option  reserve*  reserve*  surplus* fluctuation  reserve* fund* Accumlated

capital (Note 34(a))  reserve* (Note 34(a)) (Note 34(a)) (Note 34(a))  reserve* (Note 34(a)) (Note 34(a)) losses* Total
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
g%
RbEE  BRE BEER  Htds  S0Es EX EAREr ERLED
BA (Hi4a) R (@) (W) (Widee) BBEE (KEe) (WEde) ZiER &5t
THR TER TER TR Thr THr TER TER TR Thr THR TER TER

At1 January 2014 RZE-ME-A-A 127 235334 2,106 50 72957 4863

7 19,759 AL 13449 (102,018) 1,124,706 40,539 1,165,245

Lapse of share options BRERY - - (2,106) - - - - - - 2,106 - - -
Transfer from contributed suplus {4 A BSAEEE
to accumulated losses of the NGy 5}

Company (note 34(t)) (Hriz34(t) - - - - - (18433) - - B LS - - -
Transactions with owners HREAZRS - - (2,100 - - (1843) - - - 2059 - - -
Transfer from other reserve ftathEER - - - - (8,800) - - - - 8,800 - - -

Non-controlling interest arising R —FHBAREE

from incorporation of RS
a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - > >
Loss for the year L] - - - - - - - - - MY G433 (6335 (7366
Other comprehensive loss for the  EREH2EE
year
- Exchange gain/(loss) on -REENEBEE
translation of financial HFRE i/
statements of foreign (B8)
operations
- subsidiaries -HBAA - - - - - - (12,666) - - - (12666) (1,849 (1451)
- ajoint venture -—BREL% - - - - - - (88) - - - (88) (10) (%)
- associates -BERT - - - - - - 18 - - - (143 (1600 (1,592)
Total comprehensive loss for the A2 ABELE
year - - - - - - (14,186) - - (347332) (361,518)  (28354)  (389.872)
At 31 December 2014 RZF-DE
+-A=t+-H 71,267 235334 - 50 64,157 467,884 182,573 27482 134492 (420,011) 763,188 12190 775,378

*  The aggregate amount of these balances of approximately 3 7 2 BEE%691,900,0007%8 7T (=

HK$691.9 million (2013: approximately HK$1,053.4 million) T — =4 : 491,053,400,0008 T ) B4z A
represents the reserves in the consolidated statement of M RRRP 2 -

financial position.
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T
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMRNER

for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mF —T—=F
fteE FTET FET
Cash flows from operating activities KEEKRERE
Loss before taxation B A& E (377,592) (343,589)
Adjustments for: AEBIER -
Share of (profits)/losses of associates FE(REE S AT O F)/EiE (14,196) 45,339
Share of (profits)/losses of a joint Eh—FEEEECER)/
venture B’ (654) 454
Finance costs &R 44,335 67,432
Amortisation of mining rights B SRR 8 8,675 18,198
Amortisation of prepaid lease BHENEe
payments 8 - 130
Amortisation of other intangible assets  # #% H fth |, & e 8 51 293
Impairment loss on goodwill EESRE g 8 68,969 70,276
Impairment loss on deposits and Be REMEYGRIE
other receivables AR 31,536 11,867
Impairment loss on interest in an R—ER &N TR
associate WEEE 8 27,180 -
Impairment loss on property, plant W% B fE RS 2R EREE
and equipment 8 67,429 =
Impairment loss on mining rights KR REEE 8 67,122 -
Impairment loss on accounts FEN R FORE B 1B
receivable 8 2,199 =
Interest income FEUA 5 (21,951) (24,074)
Depreciation e 8 15 45,927 37,902
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, HEME BEREKEZ
plant and equipment (Mezs)/ E18 8 (100) 1,232
Gain on disposals of financial assets HERAFEFABRZZ
at fair value through profit or loss EREE M 5 - (102)
Provision for reclamation obligations FZR & M B 28 7,743 10,236
Reversal of provision for impairment RO NRERERE
on deposit paid (1,261) (3,791)
Reversal of provision for central Ol RIR KSR 2 2 BE
pension scheme 5 (46,145) -
Write-back of accruals BEOEAER 5 - (2,655)
Gain on early redemption of REBOARRES 2 KR
convertible bonds 5 - (129)
Operation loss before working BEESEHRLLEERE
capital changes (90,733) (110,981)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories TFEEM), wd (13,402) 2,089
Decrease in accounts and bills FEUBR TR R AR A
receivables 121,227 232,009
Increase in prepayments, deposits NI Be REMmEK
and other receivables TN (23,169) (147,849)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts and FERBE R REREIE N CRd)
bills payables 93,471 (276,981)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables Hip e FIa N ETE R
and accruals CRA),/18m (33,461) 267,690
Payments for reclamation obligations ENFZEER (635) (1,328)
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T
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMRER

for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mEF —T—=F
et FERT FET
Cash generated from/(used in) e (RS
operations 53,298 (35,351)
Interest received B U H B 21,951 24,074
Interest paid BAFE (44,335) (60,360)
Income tax (paid)/refund (BREER),/FrEBRE (42) 233
Net cash generated from/(used in) RS (FTH)
operating activities e 30,872 (71,404)
Cash flows from investing activities REXBZHAERE
Acquisition of a subsidiary WHE—HEMB AR 36 - 48
Purchases of property, plant and BEYE WER&E
equipment 15 (160,898) (162,842)
Purchases of available-for-sale financial BEAHLECREE
assets - (26,566)
Purchases of other intangible assets BEHMELEE 19 (136) -
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE  BE REEHE
plant and equipment FRIB 609 942
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- HEARLESREENS
sale financial assets IE - 24,990
Investments in associates REEERA] 2 E - (15,185)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and FARFIE e REMmEK
other receivables SRR D 7,379 81,243
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank EHEMBITERGEM), HD
deposits (133,634) 198,108
Decrease in outstanding receivables on HE—HEErEREMNEY
disposal of a joint venture ARFOR D 37,839 34,241
Dividends received from an associate RE AR AR ZRE 2,882 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from WEEE(FR)/ e
investing activities JFEE (245,959) 134,979
Cash flows from financing activities MEXKCRERE
New bank loans FBIRITER 1,027,572 1,498,333
Repayments of bank loans BERITER (920,400) (1,763,822)
Increase in amount due to an associate JE 1 — EIBS & A B FRIE L 0 61,621 38,439
Increase in other payables H b B FRIE G AN - 99,233
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEHME/(FTH)RE
financing activities FRE 168,793 (127,817)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRBELEEBAFERY
equivalents (46,294) (64,242)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BZzReKREEE
1BH 580,835 633,273
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ SNEEXR&E) 2 & (9,706) 11,804
Cash and cash equivalents at R+-—A=t—HAzHER
31 December REZEEHR 524,835 580,835
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 3% ¥R AR MY A

for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

GENERAL INFORMATION

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.
The Company’'s shares are listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the production and sale
of coal and the trading of purchased coal in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The principal activities
and other particulars of its subsidiaries are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014 were approved for issue by the board
of directors of the Company on 27 March 2015.

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
from 1 January 2014

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements have been consistently applied to all
the years presented except that the Group has
adopted the following revised standards and a new
interpretation of the first time for the current year’s
consolidated financial statements.

—RER
REERERERAR(ERAT DA
EEREIMKZZERAT - £t
i #% = B& {7 P Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda ° N A R H N BB A R
SFBRAR([BRAT])ERET -

AREREMBAR(TRER]) 2x
BEBR/ETEARLMB( HE )
EERBEERRARBAKKES
HMB ARz T2XBMHEMEFIEE
REF A SRR MEE6 ©

BE_T-NF+_A=+t—HIF
B2 BRREARREEFTERN
TE-RFZAZ+EBETIE-

BRANHE] RRAERT BB 13

HER

(@) BRAHT EETEEABR
EREA-R=-B-NE—A—
A4
BREHGA B REZEER
R E R FTA 25116 B #UE
B RAREERAFEZHE
BBHRERE R TIEET
EAIR B RE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS
(continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
from 1 January 2014 (continued)

The Group has adopted the following revised
standards and new interpretation for the first
time for the current year consolidated financial
statements.

HKAS 32 Amendments Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

HKAS 39 Amendments Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment Entities
and HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

The adoption of the above revised standards and
interpretation has had no significant financial effect
on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 3% ¥R AR MY A

for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

2. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS 2. BHNEETRIEETEBMKR

(continued) HER (&)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs that have been (b) CEMENRER TR
issued but are not yet effective BRI BB KR EEE
The Group has not applied the following new REEERGEVBmEKRERT
and revised HKFRS, which have been issued but FI B EMRIE MR AR 2 #Ta] M 4a&
are not yet effective, in the consolidated financial CHESEE G U
statements:—

Effective for annual
reporting periods
beginning on or after

R F6 FE oS BE

ZIBER
HKAS 19 (2011) Amendments Defined Benefit Plans: Employee 1 July 2014
Contributions
BB GTHERE 195 FIERNETE - EERA —E-NFLHA—H
(Z2——F)EFIA
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 1 July 2014
2010 — 2012 Cycle
BBV MRS LERNERT A EEMBHRELEN —_T—TFE- —T-WFLH—H
T-_FRRAZFELE
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 1 July 2014
2011 — 2013 Cycle
BBV BEHRELERNERT A EAMBHRELEN —_T——FF- —T—NFLA—H
T-=FARZFEBE
HKAS 1 Amendments Disclosure Initiatives 1 January 2016
ER G ERF 1B R REXHE —E-RF-H—H
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Amendments Clarification of Acceptable 1 January 2016
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation
BEGHENE1FREEGTER BEFHERBHZAIERTE —E-RF—H—H
E38IRIERT A
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Amendments Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016
EEETENR 1R REBETEL BX  AFHEY —T-RF—-H—H
FAVRERT AR
HKAS 27 (2011) Amendments Equity Method in Separate 1 January 2016
Financial Statements
BEAGHEAFE27HR(ZT——F) BV BHRR A —E—RF—H—H
EHIEN
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS 2. BREEHE REETEBBER
(continued) SR (5F)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)

(b) IEMENRENRZHIT &
BT E B R AR ()

Effective for annual
reporting periods
beginning on or after
AR EFE RS R
ZBER

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)
Amendments
BERMEWMEENE10RREEGE
ERIE285 (—ZFE——F)EFI A

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011) Amendments

BEMIEREERFE1058 BETHK
WMELENFE 12 RBEBSFHERE
285 (ZF——F ) B A

HKFRS 11 Amendments

BBV ELERF 15T A

HKFRS 14*
BB HRERAE 1457

Amendments to HKFRSs

R BHRELNEFTA

HKFRS 15
BB EERF 155

HKFRS 9 (2014)

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

KREEREBESEELERZE
ELEXER

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception
KREER : ERZRE ZBIIMER

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

Wi KRG @t iR

Regulatory Deferral Accounts
EERLERP

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012 - 2014 Cycle

ERMBRELEN T ——F5—
T-MFRARPZ FEBE

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

EF ARz

Financial Instruments

FEMBEHREERANEIR(—T—F) eMIA
* HKFRS 14 applies to first annual HKFRS financial S

statements for a period beginning on or after 1
January 2016 and therefore is not applicable to the

Group.
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1 January 2016
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1 January 2017
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1 January 2018
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

2. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS 2. BRHEET BB EBBER
(continued) R ()

(b) New and revised HKFRSs that have been (b) CEMEMRERZH &

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) will affect the presentation and
disclosure of certain information in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ending 31
December 2015. The Group is in the process of
making an assessment of the impact of these
changes.

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the related impact of adopting the above new
and revised HKFRSs. So far, it has concluded that
the above new and revised HKFRSs will be adopted
at the respective effective dates and the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group
except for the following:

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In September 2014, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") issued
the final version of HKFRS 9, bringing together
all phases of the financial instruments project to
replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS
9. The standard introduces new requirements
for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group
expects that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will have an
impact on the classification and measurement of
the Group’s financial assets. Further information
about the impact will be available nearer the
implementation date of the standard.

BRI EBYBHREER(F)
S - FE R EHGEDI(FEIED
FORE)KFEBE_T—
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EITRE

AEEE MRS ERA Lt E] &
RIERT 2 BB TR E R MR
AR EETHE-BAIRL K
S B A LA AT RARIERT 2
BEMBHREERFRELERE
HIF DARRA - DK A REH AR
B2REMBBRRERBER
& KT AIBFRABRS -

BEBUBHEEREIS [/
TA]

RZZ—NFENA FEGE
~rE((EEASEAE DEME
76 B 75 3 5 2 RI SR 95 Y S AR AR
eI AEBNMERER
SEN—EBARBEBEERE
3957 & &8 B 7% i 5 £ B 5B 95k
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS 2. BREEHE REETEBBER
(continued) SR (5F)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs that have been (b) CEMEMARER &

58

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that
will apply to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2017 and is currently
assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation 3.1

TERETBRBE

mBEE

The consolidated financial statements on pages
44 to 172 have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”) which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the
HKICPA. The consolidated financial statements
comply with the applicable requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance relating to the
preparation of consolidated financial statements,
which for this financial year and the comparative
period continue to be those of the predecessor
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with
transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
“Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections
76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. The
consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except where otherwise indicated.

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of
new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the
Group's consolidated financial statements, if any,
are disclosed in note 2.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost convention. The
measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

R FUE172E 250 EHR
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 3.1 REEE(E)

TESHTHEBE®)

60

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4.

Going concern basis

The Group incurred a consolidated net loss
of approximately HK$373,667,000 (2013:
approximately HK$347,511,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and, as of that date, the
Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$372,966,000 (2013: approximately
HK$161,718,000). These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and therefore it may
be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

In order to improve the Group’s financial positions,
liquidity and cash flows, the directors of the
Company have adopted or in the process of
adopting the following measures:

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

(©

The Group has been taking stringent cost
controls in different areas, such as in the cost
of sales and administrative expenses;

The Group has entered into a framework
agreement with a bank in the PRC. According
to the framework agreement, the bank has
agreed to renew the current banking facility
to the Group with amount of RMB95.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$119.8
million) upon its expiry. Besides, the bank has
preliminarily agreed to offer the Group for an
additional banking facility for an amount of
RMB400.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$504.3 million) when it is required by the
Group in the next two years from March 2015.
The bank has the final and conclusive right to
determine the grant of such facility; and

The Group from time to time reviews its
investment projects and may adjust the
investment strategies in order to enhance the
cash flow position of the Group whenever it is
necessary.

3. FEENBRBE®RE)

3.1 REEE(E)

(a)
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

Taking into account of the above measures and
after assessing the Group’s current and future
cash flow positions, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet
their financial obligations when they fall due.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business
as a going concern, adjustments would have to
be made to write down the value of assets to
their estimated recoverable amounts, to reclassify
non-current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities respectively, and to provide for any
further liabilities which may arise. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2014.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interest having a deficit balance. All
intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

3.3

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described in the accounting
policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of
control, is accounted for an equity transaction.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any investment retained and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to income
statement or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Business combination and goodwill

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Business combination and goodwill 3.3 ¥REHREE(E)

TESHTHEBE®)

64

(continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date, except
that:—

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities
or assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to
share-based payment transactions of the
acquiree or the replacement of an acquiree’s
share-based payment transactions with share-
based payment transactions of the Group are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment” at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Where the consideration the Group transfers
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
being made against goodwill or gain on bargain
purchase. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date. Measurement period does not
exceed one year from the acquisition date.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@:HHE#SEZ)
POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Business combination and goodwiill

33 EBEHREE(E)

(continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is
classified. Contingent consideration classified as an
asset or liability that is a financial instrument and
within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised
in consolidated income statement or as a charge
to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39,
it is measured in accordance with the appropriate
HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity.

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group
obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss,
if any, is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if
any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in income statement as a bargain
purchase gain.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Business combination and goodwill

TESHTHEBE®)

33 EBSHREE(E)

66

(continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units. Impairment is determined
by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating units (or group of cash-generating units)
to which the goodwill relates. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating units (or group
of cash-generating units) is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and then to the other assets of the unit on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units), the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Subsidiaries 3.4

TESHTHEBE®)

o) PN

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:—

o the contractual arrangement with the other
vote holders of the investee;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

o the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’'s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries that are not classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Associates and joint ventures

TESHTHEBE®)

3.5 BEQATREELE
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An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, which is the power
to participate in the financial and operating
policy decision of the investee, but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

Investment in associates or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, less any
impairment losses, unless it is classified as held
for sale. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee's identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post-acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee's net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Any acquisition-date excess over cost,
the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses
for the year are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, whereas the Group's share of
the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
investment in the associate or the joint venture, the
Group’s interest is reduced to zero and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the -Group’s
net investment in the associates or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in income statement.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint venture is included as part of the Group's
investments in associates or joint venture.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, when the Group ceases
to have significant influence over an associate or
joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
income statement. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant
influence or joint control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset.

The results of associates and joint venture are
included in the Company's income statement to
the extent of dividends received and receivable.
In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are
treated as non-current assets stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.5

3.6

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When investment in associates or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5.

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the
functional currency of the Company and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

Foreign currency translation (continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into HK$. Assets and liabilities
have been translated into HK$ at the closing rate at
the reporting date. Income and expenses have been
converted into HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates, or at the average rates over
the reporting period, provided that the exchange
rate do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences
arising from this procedure have been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the exchange fluctuation reserve in
equity. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred
cumulative amount recognised in exchange reserve
relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into HK$ at the exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into HK$ at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale
of goods, net of value-added tax, rebates and
discounts. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised as follows:
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Revenue recognition (continued)

TESHTHEBE®)

3.7 WEBRA(E)
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- Revenue from sale of coal, ancillary materials
and consumable tools and trading of
purchased coal are recognised upon transfer of
significant risks and rewards of ownership to
the customers. This is usually taken as the time
when goods are delivered and customer has
accepted the goods.

- Interest income is accrued on time-proportion
basis on the principal outstanding using
effective interest method.

3.8 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
All other borrowing costs are charged to the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which they are incurred. Where funds have been
borrowed generally, and used for the purpose of
obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation rate of
6.69% has been applied to the expenditure on the
individual assets.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@:HHE#SEZ)
POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Intangible assets (other than goodwill and

3.9 BEEE(BERRBEERN)

mining rights)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised
initially at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment loss.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives of two years.
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are A {5 A3 HA 4R [R B S T B EE 1R A AR
carried at cost less any subsequent impairment AL 412 R B E 18 Y Bk - EF
losses. Intangible assets are tested for impairment BEBE TN XM 3. 1207 ETT

as described below in note 3.12. Amortisation
commences when intangible assets are available for
use.

3.10 Mining rights

Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any identified impairment and are
amortised using units-of-production method over
the proved and probable reserves of the coal mines.

3.11 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value
of the leasehold land at the inception of the lease,
and other items of plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress (“CIP"), are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to the working condition and location for
its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided to write off the cost less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using straight-line method, at the following rates
per annum:
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Buildings and mining The shorter of the lease

structures terms and 5% per
annum

Plant and machineries 4% to 33% per annum

Mining related 10% to 20% per annum
machinery and
equipment

Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 20% per annum
equipment

Leasehold improvement  The shorter of the lease
terms and 10% to
20% per annum

Motor vehicles 10% to 25% per annum

The assets’ estimated residual value, depreciation
method and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other costs, such as
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

CIP, which mainly represents construction on
buildings and mining structures, is stated at cost
less impairment losses. Cost comprises direct
costs incurred during the periods of construction,
installation and testing. No depreciation is provided
on CIP. CIP is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@:HHE#SEZ)
POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

3.2 kERMEEZRE

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with an
indefinite useful life or those not yet available for
use are tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they are impaired. All other assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the
asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell,
and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment,
where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent from those of other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflow
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit (“CGU")).
As a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at CGU level.
Goodwill in particular is allocated to those CGUs
that are expected to benefit from synergies of the
related business combination and represent the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purpose.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

TESHTHEBE®)

3.2 FERMEEZMEE)
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(continued)

Impairment losses recognised for CGUs, to which
goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially
to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining
impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other
assets in the CGU, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less cost to sell, or value-in-use, if
determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods. Whilst an impairment
loss on other assets is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

3.13 Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to the consolidated income
statement in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in
the consolidated income statement as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals, if any, are charged to the
consolidated income statement in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@:HHE#SEZ)
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial assets

314 ERMEE

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases of financial assets are recognised on
trade date. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit
or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred. At each reporting date, financial assets
are reviewed to assess whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists,
impairment loss is determined and recognised based
on the classification of the financial asset.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling in the near term, or it is
part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit-
taking. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

When a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@:HHEHSEZ)
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial assets (continued)

314 EREE(E)

78

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial
assets included in this category are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. Fair value is determined by reference
to active market transactions or using a valuation
techniqgue where no active market exists. Fair
value gain or loss does not include any dividend or
interest earned on these financial assets. Interest
income earned on the financial assets is recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set
out in note 3.7.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. These are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
effective interest method, less any impairment
losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@:HHE#SEZ)
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial assets (continued)

314 EREE(E)

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that comes

T EEE R E

REREBH AEBFHMILIF
BAFERBEEZREZEME
E NEEREAEMNEERE
BErleREERE EBEEE
EAKESETNII-HAXZEE

to the attention of the Group about one or more of BEH 2 RBEEE
the following loss events:
- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor; - EBAHRERVHREE:

— A breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— It becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- Significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— A significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
Group and, national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the assets in the
Group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@:HHEHSEZ)
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial assets (continued) 314 SREE(E)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) SREEREZ)
(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost () IBHEBIEKAIEZ 2/@E
E

If there is objective evidence that an MEEBEBRETERK
impairment loss on loans and receivables FEWRIBE R AEE
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is 8 BEEESEINZEE
measured as the difference between the asset’s BEEEEGFTARKRIEESR
carrying amount and the present value of E(TBREBRELEZARK
estimated future cash flows (excluding future EEER )RR TR =X
credit losses that have not been incurred) (BNW) S RER B A AT &
discounted at the financial asset’s original BERFE)TRAEREE
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest EMERcEZRTE -5
rate computed at initial recognition). The BiE 2R TIRE £ R EH
amount of loss is recognised in profit or loss of M BmP R o

the period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of fid B 12 8 B B 18 & 28R
the impairment loss decreases and the D AR FE LA
decrease can be related objectively to WRREREEZE—F
an event occurring after the impairment HEH BIEBATHER L
was recognised, the previously recognised BEBE HEEREECE
impairment loss is reversed to the extent that [ 18 15 48 18 R 5% 3] 8 R
it does not result in a carrying amount of the BEE BRI EBERRBEZR
financial asset exceeding what the amortised BEHAA - O e RN E
cost would have been had the impairment not BHAR N Em R R o

been recognised at the date the impairment
is reversed. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in
which the reversal occurs.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (i) AIEHESHEE
For available-for-sale equity investment that IR AR Z A B E
is carried at cost, the amount of impairment AR EmMS  REBES
loss is measured as the difference between HMIRZEERMEEZE
the carrying amount of the asset and the EMTARKRRERELRE
present value of estimated future cash flows HNeEmEEZHTHE O
discounted at the current market rate of return WMEFFACRELANE
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment Bt E - AAREEIETSE
loss is not reversed. (o] o
80 Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Inventories 3.15 8

TESHEERBE®)

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Inventories comprise coal, spare
parts and consumable store for trading and own
consumption purposes. Costs of coal is determined
using weighted average basis whereas costs of spare
parts and consumables are stated at first-in first-
out or weighted average basis as appropriate, and
in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprise direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads.
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REEIR - FEBEREER
AT BREZK THREMFE
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REEIR EREREXDZ
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in A S IR E R E G LKA
the ordinary course of business less the estimated REEMFTVABRABNRAEE
costs of completion and the estimated costs ERERRGETERE-

necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE:HHEHE£)
POLICIES (continued)
3.16 Income taxes 3.16 Fﬁ S8

82

Income tax represents the sum of current and
deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:—

e when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@:HHE#SEZ)
POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Income taxes (continued)

3.16 FAIBH (&)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o When the deferred tax asset relating to
the deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is
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settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that FIN B SEER X
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the stE(EIH)-

end of the reporting period.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@:HHEHSEZ)
POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Income taxes (continued)

3.16 FIBH (&)

84

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

3.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short-term highly
liguid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.

3.18 Employee benefits

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated income
statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group
which operate in the PRC are required to participate
in the central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries are
required to contribute a percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme as specified by
the local municipal government. The contributions
are charged to the consolidated income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

3.18 Employee benefits

TESHTHEBE®)

3.18 EEER

Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees and its directors.

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the share options
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions.

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss with a corresponding credit
to share option reserve. If vesting periods or other
vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated
over the vesting period, based on the best available
estimate of the number of share options expected
to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently
revised, if there is any indication that the number of
share options expected to vest differs from previous
estimates. No adjustment to expense recognised
in prior periods is made if fewer share options
ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs up to the nominal value of the share issued
are reallocated to share capital with any excess
being recorded as share premium. When the vested
share options are lapsed, forfeited or still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained
profits.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@:HHEHSEZ)
POLICIES (continued)
3.19 Financial liabilities 3.19 & FEE

86

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank loans,
accounts and bills payables, other payables and
accruals and amount due to an associate.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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Borrowings &g
Borrowings, which include bank loans, are EBE(BFEEITER) VTR AT
recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction B(HREEEZRHKA)HE

costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost, any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@:HHE#SEZ)
POLICIES (continued)

3.19 Financial liabilities (continued)

3.19 ¢RE B (&)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity
share capital at the option of the holder, where the
number of share that would be issued on conversion
and the value of the consideration that would be
received at that time do not vary, are accounted for
as compound financial instruments which contain
both liability component and an equity component.

Convertible bonds issued by the Company
that contain both financial liability and equity
components are classified separately into
respective liability and equity components on initial
recognition. On initial recognition, the fair value
of the liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the
proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds and
the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the conversion option for conversion of
the bond into equity, is included in equity as equity
component of convertible bonds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost using effective interest method.
The equity component will remain in equity until
conversion or redemption of the bond. When the
bond is converted, the convertible bond equity
reserve and the carrying value of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred
to share capital and share premium as consideration
for the shares issued. If the bond is redeemed, the
convertible bond equity reserve is released directly
to retained profits.

Accounts and bills payables/other payables
and accruals/amount due to an associate

These are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@:HHEHSEZ)
POLICIES (continued)
3.20 Provisions and contingent liabilities 3.20 BERBAREE

88

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group are

The Group identifies operating segment and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service
lines.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its consolidated financial
statements prepared under HKFRSs.
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also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the .2 B BE M ARAE o
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

3.21 Segment reporting 3.21 A E|mE
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@:HHE#SEZ)
POLICIES (continued)

3.22 Provision for reclamation obligations

3.22FRERHRE

The Group is required to make payments for
reclamation of the land after the underground
sites have been mined. Provision for reclamation
obligation is required when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of past event, and
it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at
the directors’ best estimation of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the end of the
reporting period, and are discounted to present
value where the effect is material.

3.23 Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements require
measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group's
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
utilises market observable inputs and data as far
as possible. Inputs used in determining fair value
measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the
valuation technique utilised are (the ‘fair value
hierarchy’):

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

Level 2:  Observable direct or indirect inputs other

than Level 1 inputs;

Level 3:  Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived
from market data).

REBAM NIRRT
M2 BEZNFRIE - EAREERA
BEZMMAEERE B EA LN
AEBEARABEZEER A
FHEEZE B B - ZFBER
RBEPREFHRFEREAHN
FRAX Z&EMGEEIE LR
ERE(REETEBEXN)-

AVEH B
AEBGABRETRENS
FAERAEEERATEIE
B/ SBEATE-

REBzeRNEEREENRA
B2 ATV ETERMENARE
RMBERNBARBIE -EEAQ
FEFGTEREAZ BB ARR
HERMERATBEERERN 2 F R
DRTIERMNTATFEZR]):
=3

F14& . HRBEEBNEEMS
ZHRECRIERE):

B2 BREBIRE R A
SN B R SRR AT B
RZERBA

F3k: HUBREHEA
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e
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE:HHEHE£)
POLICIES (continued)

3.23 Fair value measurement (continued) 3.23 AV EFE(E)
The classification of an item into the above levels HEERHIEBEAATESEAS
is based on the lowest level of the inputs used BAREZZEERNBARA -
that has a significant effect on the fair value DEE LA o SRR R 2 8
measurement of the item. Transfers of items HIE B BN E LS HFRER
between levels are recognised in the period they
occur,
The Group measures the impairment of goodwill at AEBIRAFEFEEHERE-
fair value.
For more detailed information in relation to the fair B LMIBE AT EFECER
value measurement of the items above, please refer MER FLHBERAME -

to the applicable notes.

3.24 Related parties 3.2 BEAL
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s (@) ZBALTRFEUTIKY
family is related to the Group if that person: B 2B ATHERE 2R

BAEARERHE -

() has control or joint control over the (i) BARSEESZEHIE
Group; Sk FE[RI 2R I

(i) has significant influence over the Group; (il HAEEHEBERY
or 273K

(i) is a member of key management (i) BAEEXARQFE
personnel of the Group or the Company’s NAIZEEEREA
parent. g8
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE@:HHE#SEZ)
POLICIES (continued)
3.24 Related parties (continued) 3.2 BEAL(E)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) ETREPER N NMEMIEH

following conditions apply:

(i)

(i)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member);

Ry MRS EBRE

(i)

(ii)

ERRAEERRF—
SEKRE AR
ERLIEGIGES
G- PNCIE==F 3l
BRE .

X dRm—ER

Alsk & &b
(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the (i) ERHAR-—%F=7H
same third party; ZEEhE
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third (v, ERAFE=—BE2A
entity and the other entity is an associate Eh¥E ME—HE
of the third entity; RE-ZERBZBER
@l
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit () ERhAANEEDE
plan for the benefit of the employees rEEEHCER
of the Group or an entity related to the & B 1@ 7| 5% < B B
Group; ‘EAET 8l
(v The entity is controlled or jointly viy BES@QFAETAL
controlled by a person identified in (a); e 5l sl LR
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant Vi) @OFTREALTHE

influence over the entity or is a member
of key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

BEEEALE NS
RERSREERS
REZEBEREA

0

[0

\
/
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. = A&H{hEt 5 1 8
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

fEat RAE KRB ELR R EMRE
(BREEGEEERBERATAERELN
ARRERFAH) EhFrE S

4.1 EXEHTTRER

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and

92

assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

(i) Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests at least on an annual basis
whether goodwill has suffered any impairment
in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 3.12. The recoverable amounts
of CGU, to which the goodwill is allocated, are
determined based on both fair value less costs
to sell or value-in-use calculations. Estimating

AEEEL A BARNMER KR
ReEE L BitfAtEEBE
BRAERE DR - FHE R REE
T—MREEZEEMBER®T
BEEXAEZERARNMEET M
BRERHEIIAT

(i) PEEHEE

$$l@ﬁmi3u%ﬁ

SETBR  EOEF
ﬁ@% B HIRR(E - E D
B REELEMZ
Al = 5 BR TD 1R PR
HEXRAKNEFEREEFE
MEE ° fEat A FEREE

the fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use RS EREBEERKANE
requires the Group to make an estimate of the EHREELBLN 2 TAL
expected future cash flows from the CGU and *Xiﬁimif’ﬁﬁﬁ d‘i[
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order BIEEA ZITIR R LA

to calculate the present value of those cash HeRELHE-

flows.

Based on the Group’s assessment, impairment
of approximately HK$69.0 million (2013:
approximately HK$70.3 million) has been
provided on goodwill during the year ended
31 December 2014. Details of calculation are
disclosed in note 17.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

4. BEXREEEFRAEE)

4.1 EXRSFHEFTRER(E)

(ii) Depreciation (i) TE
Other than CIP, the Group depreciates MEZTIEN REBEUE
property, plant and equipment on straight-line MEREBEERNRIERALEE
method over the estimated useful lives ranging Nz B#E RRE3E25F
between 3 to 25 years, starting from the date ZAEET IR A EA R
on which the assets are ready for productive MRS MR BT E AT & o (AT
use. The estimated useful lives reflect the AEARAESHFLRE

directors’ estimate of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment. The carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment as at 31
December 2014 was approximately HK$563.7
million (2013: approximately HK$525.2
million). Further details are disclosed in note
15.

(iii) Amortisation of mining rights

The Group amortises its mining rights on a
units-of-production method, utilising only
proved and probable coal reserves as the
depletion base. The estimated coal reserves
reflect the directors’ estimation on the Group's
intention to derive future economic benefits
from the mining rights. Accounting policy
on mining rights is set out in note 3.10. The
carrying amount of mining rights as at 31
December 2014 was approximately HK$561.2
million (2013: approximately HK$647.4
million). Further details are disclosed in note
18.

BiglZBFERAAEEZ
Y BB MR T AR K
KEMNmD 2B -RZE
—MmE+-—A=+—8'9
¥ BB REEZREEL
/563,700,000 T( = =
— =% : #9525,200,000/5
TL)o E— BB R B R
FF15 °

(iii) 57 % 48 188 3

ANESEE DAKR A R bR E
REAEE FHABMEE
EEE SHEIERE o (AT IR E
ERMEBRAFTAEBEK
PRUR MR A R SRAS B F 25 o
FRENSFTBURE N T
310  R=ZZE—ME+— A
=+—H RE#EZRAE
#/561,200,000/6 7T (==
— = 4 : #9647,400,000/%5
TL) o E— I BRI
18 °
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

4. BEXREFHETRAE(E)

4.1 BEREFAFTRERGE)

(iv) Impairment of deposits paid and (iv) ENEEZRERNERE
receivables
The Group’s management determines rEBEEEETHEED
impairment of deposits paid and receivables "% & K FEUFRIE A © It
on a regular basis. This estimate is based on HEr B EBEESFH 2=

credit history of its counter parties and current
market conditions. Management reassesses the
impairment of deposits paid and receivables at
the reporting date.

The Group's management reviews deposits

5 R0 8 K IR B O
- B E RS B HE R
AHEE RS & R FKIA
RLME

AEBEEEEHRRND

paid and receivables on a regular basis to %% K FEUERIE - LAREE
determine if any provision for impairment is B E I RRERE o
necessary. The impairment loss on deposits BEREBEERANERRG
paid and receivables is established when there EEARBRERWFEZRE
is objective evidence that the Group will not 1%?}(4&(@%7@—711# IE - &
be able to collect all amounts due according BEBESHZEBIGHES

to the original terms of receivables, to receive
the services, products or acquire the business
operations according to the original terms of
contracts. Significant financial difficulties of the
counter parties, probability that the counter
parties will enter into bankruptcy or financial

AR 7% B am Sk MU R 15 &
2 RIEfiRE R EWEIR
HIRBERER - HF T EH
BEAMIENE - $F 5l aE
RESGETTMHEH A&
RSB R SRR

reorganisation, and default or delinquency in &,/ FE W R IE R E 2 B
payments are considered indicators that the R BE_ZT—NF+_—A
deposit/receivable is impaired. The impairment —t—HIEFE BEffEs

loss of deposits paid and receivables provided REWRIEZREDR

during the year ended 31 December 2014
was approximately HK$31.5 million (2013:
approximately HK$11.9 million). Further details
are disclosed in note 25.

31,500,000 L (= E—=
£ 4911,900,0005% 7T ) o
HE— LB IFBER 25 -

(v) Net realisable value of inventories (v) FEZU#EFE

Net realisable value of inventories is the FEZAEIEEIINAE
estimated selling price in the ordinary course EKBRERERER ZGEEE
of business, less estimated costs of completion WA ET A AN & & F
and selling expenses. These estimates are Yo W E AT TIRERET
based on the current market condition and REBEOtE s HEEMZ
the historical experience of selling products of BAELSRmMEL  YSHAE
similar nature. It could change significantly as BRI TSR E T
a result of competitor actions in response to E1TE) M A EAE L - BIE
severe industry cycles. Management reassesses B & BB E H (A
the estimations at the reporting date. The TR ZE—NFE+=A
carrying amount of inventories as at 31 =+—H

December 2014 was approximately HK$27.0
million (2013: approximately HK$13.8 million).
Further details are disclosed in note 23.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

4. EREFHEERAE )
4.1 BEREFEFTRERE)

(vi) ¥cREEZHE

(vi) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in
determining whether an asset is impaired
or the event previously causing the asset
impairment no longer exists, particularly in
assessing: (i)whether an event has occurred
that may affect the asset value or such event
affecting the asset value has not been in
existence; (ii) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset
or derecognition; and (iii) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the
level of impairment, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment
test.

During the year ended 31 December 2014,
impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$67.4 million
(2013: Nil) was recognised by the Group and
details of this impairment are set in note 15.

AEEENEEEERSR
BES < A EHE ERE
Z N BEEREL I -
HEFME: (2 ELA
TEEEBEZIENIF
BEEBEIZENHED
EREE: (MRIBEEEZ
¥ B0 A R BUBRER & &t
AERZBEERELHER
ZHEREREXFZEE
ZEREE - RGN 4R RE
EREFASEREE 2
IZRR BRALRER
AR ELERES 2R
Ko BB IR E A LAEER
BEREZRR BRADR
EEAF 2 RRHIBR
KRR > Al R ETRUE R B
ERZFREENERY
o

HE-_ZT-—WN&E+ A
=+—HLEFE DE- K
EREHEZREEBELY
67,400,000 0( =T —=
F:T)ERAEERR
VR %A DR
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4, EARGFHESTRHE &)
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and 4.1 ERSHMEFTRBR(E)

assumptions (continued)

(vi) Impairment of non-financial assets (vi) ¥EBEEZHEE)
(continued)
Mining rights are carried at cost less PRIEVE D IR A AR R At
accumulated amortisation. The carrying SHTI AR o MM B 3
amount is reviewed for impairment whenever BN ENRETKREER
events or changes in circumstances indicate BERBE(E - RIZEBLERE(A
that the carrying amount may not be EITRESEN GREEZ
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised FREEEBETKEE
for the amount by which the carrying amount W B HZEERRES
of mining rights exceeds its recoverable 18 o IR Bl & FE T A SRR A
amount. The recoverable amount is the Z A FER & AR B
higher of the fair value of mining rights less REZEZ2RRERE 4
costs to sell and value-in-use. In estimating STERIEE 2 Pl W B & 5B
the recoverable amount of mining rights, B BERZERRE 27
various assumptions, including the Group AEEBRAETIXTHEZE
having uninterrupted rights to operate the e rNe@BMER 2 B
coal mines owned by the Group, are made. B o i RORFIH B B RAR
If future events do not correspond to such - AJRESEREEE
assumptions, the recoverable amount will need THEET Ik E B R Al ge 2
to be revised, and this may have an impact on AEBEREXERYE
the Group’s results of operations and financial MAEETE -
positions.
During the year ended 31 December HE-_ZT—NF+=A
2014, impairment loss on mining rights of =+—BIEFE  KEEZ
approximately HK$67.1 million (2013: Nil) was B (B &5 18 #967,100,000/%5
recognised by the Group and details of this T(ZE—=F:F)EH
impairment are set out in note 18. REE®R  REFBEER

FiEE18 o

(vii) Provision for reclamation obligations (vii) iR E %5
The provision is reviewed regularly to verify FERERBESTERET
that it properly reflects the remaining wel  UZERIGE R
obligation arising from current and past RRAERAREBESZ
mining activities. Provision for land reclamation BR TN AR - T FIZREE
is determined by management based on HHERELRB AR KRR
their best estimates of the current and future PN ~ B3 BRI BUR M i
costs, latest government policies and past TRB s xEMGTME
experiences. The carrying amount of provision R _T—WMFE+A
for reclamation obligations as at 31 December =+—H HAZBEREEZ
2014 was approximately HK$91.0 million AR M & %Y &91,000,000/%
(2013: approximately HK$85.2 million). Further T ZF — = F: 4
details are disclosed in note 28. 85,200,0007 7t ) ° # — #

B ENKITE28
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and

4. EXREFHETRAE(E)

4.1 BEREFEFTRERE)

assumptions (continued)

(viii) Central pension scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Group in PRC are
required to contribute certain percentage on
their payroll costs for employees to the central
pension scheme. However, the implementation
and settlement of the contribution to
the central pension scheme varies among
various Social Security Bureaus in cities of
the PRC, and the Group has not finalised
its contribution calculation and payments
with the local Social Security Bureau in the
PRC. In addition, pursuant to Regulation on
Labour Security Supervision (¥ &){R [ g5 52
&%) of the PRC, if an act of violating the
labour security laws, regulations or rules is
neither found by the Social Security Bureau
nor reported or complained by others within 2
years, subject to certain conditions, the Social
Security Bureau shall no longer investigate it.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the contribution.
The Group recognised the contribution based
on management’s best estimates according to
the understanding of the rules of the central
pension scheme.

4.2 Critical judgement in applying the entity’s

accounting policies

Deferred tax

The Group is in the progress of application for
claiming the fair value of its mining right of
Xiangyang Coal Industry Company Limited?*
(“Xiangyang”) (B mRIBKEEBRAQA) as
its qualifying assets from the relevant PRC local
tax authorities to benefit from the tax deduction
allowance. Significant judgement is required in
determining the likely outcome of the application
and the amount of deferred tax. The Group
recognises deferred tax based on estimates of
temporary differences at the reporting date
between the carrying amounts of assets in the
consolidated financial statements and their
respective tax bases. If the final outcome of this
matter is different from the estimation, it will impact
the income tax and deferred tax in the periods in
which such determination is concluded.

i For identification purpose only

(viii) KRB 1k & &t &)
AEBEE TR B A E
RAAREEFMOET
B2 AP RIR KD 5 E
K R RPBEMHZ
fEl 4 & OR (% BB FT A SRR
REFFEIEITREZHR
KIERE - RAKERAE
BEEEFEE R AR BT
2 (R 20 PTE H AT 3R 1t
SN IRIBH BB B RE B
{1 - 70 R 5 1 85 B R
BRI EBFR N EMT KRB
WE I A FEILS
REED ERIRRNZ 1T
5 SBRERS T ERL
EITAE  HEARTE TR
HmiE - At - BEHRE
BAFHEAHE - NEHE
RIEEERBOKERB R
B RURIR S ETEIAR AR
IRRRERH AT

42 EREREFIBRZEEHEK

i FE B TR
AEERERE BT EE G
RERFEHEHMRABKERERAD
7 ([ B |) 2 BRiEHE 2 A FED
REAEBEREE  AESHIER
RORERBARBRZERR
BT AR F R IEHEARH
- AEBERBNIMEAREE
EHRAMBHRRNERENRES
B R E 2 B E SRR (AT TR
BLERBEE - RELEH 2R
REREMGFTEOA BEHE
A R E HAR 2 PiS Bt BOR
MIERTE

RMEERERERAE 2014FFRK

97



T
Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. WEREAmKRA
Revenue represents the income arising from the Group’s WaEREEF ZXB(BNEREE
principal activities which are the production and sale of FHEHENRBAREKE S ) EEZW

98

coal and the trading of purchased coal.

Revenue and other income recognised during the year are

Ao

FRHER < Wz R EARAT

as follows:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-MF —E—=F
FERT FAT
Revenue Yz
Production and sale of coal R EERIHE 151,399 322,896
Trading of purchased coal BAKKES 330,172 -
481,571 322,896
Other income Hzg A
Bank interest income RITHBWA 21,951 23,766
Interest income from loans to F=HERZFERA
third parties - 308
Exchange gain, net P 5 W 2 5 58 - 721
Sale of ancillary materials M EH S - 243
Sale of consumable tools SFERMIEE - 147
Service income BRFEUIA 40 994
Gain on early redemption of convertible IR F & B Al AL E A 2 WS
bonds - 129
Gain on disposals of financial assets at HERATEFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss SREE 7 WS - 102
Gain on disposals of property, plant HEYE  BEREEZ
and equipment ez 100 =
Reversal of provision for impairment BRI e iR REBEREE
loss on deposit paid, net (note 25) SEER(HTaE25) - 3,791
Reversal of provision for central pension  #[Efh iR KRS T £l
scheme B 46,145 -
Write-back of accruals BOETERA - 2,655
Others HAph 540 1,180
68,776 34,036
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive
directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”)
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group's business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the Executive Directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that
is engaged in business activities from which the Group
may earn revenue and incur expenses, and is identified
on the basis of the internal management reporting
information that is provided to and regularly reviewed
by the Executive Directors in order to allocate resources
and assess performance of the segment. For the years
presented, the Executive Directors have determined that
the Group has only one operating segment as the Group
is principally engaged in the business of production and
sale of coal and the trading of purchased coal which is
the basis to allocate resources and assess performance.

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers is all
derived from the PRC and most of its non-current
assets (other than deferred tax assets) are located in the
PRC. The Company is an investment holding company
incorporated in Bermuda where the Group does not
have any activities. The Group has the majority of its
operations and workforce in the PRC, and therefore, the
PRC is considered as the Group’s country of domicile
for the purpose of disclosures as required by HKFRS 8
“Operating Segments”.

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
were delivered. The geographical location of the non-
current assets is based on the location of asset.

Information on major customers

During the year ended 31 December 2014, approximately
HK$377.6 million or 78.4% (2013: approximately
HK$101.9 million or 31.6%), approximately HK$52.0
million or 10.8% (2013: approximately HK$115.1 million
or 35.6%) and nil (2013: approximately HK$32.6 million
or 10.1%) of the Group’s revenue were derived from
Customer A, Customer B and Customer C respectively in
the sale of coal.

7 ERE
AEBRBEHRARAARBATES
(TBITES ) 2R N5 E RHE
EERENEEREDMER ZF
MBERDHEATESRESEER
EXRKEEXRGOMERIZEREH
DHERRCBEE - RARTEFTERL
NEBH B ER 2 RGO AR AL E
ZEBREmMMREIARIRE 7 o

REDBEAREL SR RIURE R
EEFRXZEB RS EKED I
BARERREER c EERELE
DB MATESEHEHMRER 2
WERE R R E B RIAD B EIR MaTE
DHERBR-RAERFE RITES
RRAEERAGA —EKLEDH &
RAKBEEZRERREERHFEER
BREBARRZEZGEB(ER/DE

BERNFHERIEZEE).
i EE R

AEEIINATP 2B REHRAF
MABIEREEECEEHIAE
ERINURTE - NRARA—HRE
REFMKY 2 HEZERAF MA
SEREM T EREMNELK - AKEZ
TEXBRETAHMNRNFE HiFE
BB RELERNFSREENE] 2
RE RBEBEANME  FEERS
REBZFFEBER -

Bz Rz HERBIINE
an 2 18 M 7E ° SER B B E Z P
BIREEMEME °

FEEFFER
HE-ZT—NOF+-_H=+—HIHF
[ - REE Wz 49377,600,0007% T3k
784%(—ZF — =4 : £J101,900,000/%
JC 5%31.6%) - #J52,000,000% 7T =%
10.8%( —Z — =4 : #9115,100,000/5
JC 535.6%) K E(Z T — = F : 4
32,600,000/ 7T3%10.1% ) 7 B3 B A&
FR BFZLEEFREERK -
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. B¥ER
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-MmF —T=F
FHT FHBT

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: Bf#ERZ DT :

Interest charge on bank loans wholly ARAFANZHEEZ

repayable within five years* RITERZ M ERZ* 44,335 60,360
Interest expense on convertible bonds ARNAFANERE 2T

repayable within five years BN B - 7,072

Interest expenses on financial liabilities RSN BR 2 & R/l

stated at amortised cost BENBERX 44,335 67,432

Bank charges on bills receivable BERBECATRKER

discounted without recourse ZIRITHRE 14,604 28,014
58,939 95,446

Less: Interest capitalised** B BEER 2B (2,291) (1,644)
56,648 93,802

* Approximately HK$1.9 million (2013: Nil) included in * R-ZE—WNFE+ - =+—HEE%
interest change was related to bank loans which were BERESEHRITER(HzF29) E0HE
repayable on demand as at 31 December 2014 (note 29). BB 3 491,900,000 7T (=&

—=FE) -

**  The borrowing cost was capitalised at 6.69% (2013: ** HE_FT—NFE+_-_A=+—HIt
6.45%) per annum for the year ended 31 December FEE EEKRANINIZ6.69% (—F
2014. —Z=F:6.45% ) ZFHETFUER

6o
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/

Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 3% ¥R AR MY A

8. BRFIEBiIRIER

BrATIS BRI EIRE kR (GTA):

(crediting):
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-OF —T—=F
FERT FAT
Cost of inventories sold BEHEFEKA 522,995 336,682
Auditor's remuneration ZE DN & 1,183 1,640
Depreciation* (note 15) FE*(Mfzt15) 45,927 37,902
Minimum lease payments under BT BFRPHAER
operating leases on land, buildings B EEHER TRE
and office equipment HERK 3,674 3,291
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments** FE{f 504 # i+ * - 130
Amortisation of mining rights** (note 18) IRERHER $4**(K1:F18) 8,675 18,198
Amortisation of other intangible assets**  H ftb #E JI2 & EE 45 * *
(note 19) (KtaE£19) 51 293
Employee benefit expense (including BERMAX(BREEE
compensation of key management ERABEHMH)
personnel) (note 12):— (Ktat12): —
Wages and salaries (excluding TEEFH 2 (TEERIK
retirement benefit scheme A 2R
contributions) 92,384 142,853
Retirement benefit scheme RRRB AT BN+
contributions*** 23,783 50,695
Exchange loss/(gain), net bE 5 518, (Was ) /58 909 (721)
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, HEYZE BEMEEZ
plant and equipment (M), K518 (100) 1,232
Impairment loss on accounts receivable  FEUBREZX 2 H{E &8
(note 24) (Ktz£24) 2,199 =
Impairment loss on deposits and other e MHEM RN 2
receivables, net (note 25) BB 18588 (H1a£25) 30,275 11,867
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 17) B2 REEE(HE17) 68,969 70,276
Impairment loss on interest in an R —FE S R AR
associate (note 20) BIEEE (K7220) 27,180 -
Impairment loss on mining rights iR < REESE
(note 18) (Kta£18) 67,122 -
Impairment loss on property, plant Y% B M RE
and equipment (note 15) BB (HfaE15) 67,429 -
Provision for reclamation obligations FZRE AEHE(FE28)
(note 28) 7,743 10,236
@ Depreciation of approximately HK$40.6 million (2013: * #940,600,000/8 7T (Z T — =4 : 4

approximately HK$32.0 million) has been included in cost of
sales and approximately HK$5.3 million (2013: approximately
HK$5.9 million) has been included in administrative expenses

in the consolidated income statement.

** Included in administrative expenses in the consolidated

income statement.

* k)

At 31 December 2014, the Group had no forfeited

* %

* kK

contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension scheme in future years. (2013: Nil)

32,000,000 7T ) 2T EEFTAHEE
B 7N & 495,300,000/ ¢ (Z & — =
F : 495,900,000/8 7T ) EsF AL S
WERITHEALA -

EFff AR RERITRAXA -

R-ZE-—MWME+-A=+—H &K
& B0 & 0] AR BIR R R F E R K
SR ZE R R ER (=ZF

—=F )
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 9.

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for the year
in the consolidated financial statements as the Group has
tax losses brought forward from previous years (2013: Nil).

FrER(ER) FAxX

ERAREEE B B A BB
B MERL BB EETEHARE
P RERIEL R CE—=F &)

Corporate income tax arising from operations in the
PRC is calculated at the statutory income tax rate of
25% (2013: 25%) of the estimated assessable profits as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax
rules and regulations in the PRC.

BIER EAEREAT SRR RRAE - &
B L ¥R 2 DEMBR MIRGTE
RREF ZEAEREHBR25% (=
T—=4F :25%)5tE -

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F-mFE =T =F
THET FAT

Current tax - PRC income tax BIEASIE — B FTE B
— Current year —ARFE 72 268
— Under-provision in respect of prior year —i@FFEEENE - 410
72 678

Deferred tax (credit)/expense EERE(KR) BAX
— Current year (note 30) —AREEFE(HaE30) (3,997) 3,244
(3,925) 3,922

A reconciliation between income tax (credit)/expense

Pristi (%), B EPriS B AT B 18

102

to loss before income tax at applicable tax rates is as BB R 7 HERT -
follows:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF —E—=F
F&T FAT
Loss before income tax BREF1S LA E 1R (377,592) (343,589)
Tax on loss before income tax, RIS R AR ER
calculated at the applicable rates MR E B BEBRATEH
in the tax jurisdictions concerned A 1E 2 118 (73,426) (77,700)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERTUA Z FiTE £ (20,157) (3,668)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR c RIER & 77,093 47,295
Tax losses not recognised RNERTIEER 12,718 37,627
Utilisation of previously unrecognised BRBERERNIBERE
tax losses (153) (42)
Under-provision in respect of prior year B FERETE - 410
Income tax (credit)/expense TSR (%), Fx (3,925) 3,922
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—mE+-A=1+—HIFE

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continued) 9. FIEBUESR) HX#E)
The share of income tax expense attributable to a joint —MEAEELCEELMAEHREXA
venture amounting to HK$1,013 (2013: HK$3,383) 1,013 T (=T — =4 : 3,383/ 7T)
is included in “Share of profits and losses of a joint Bt ARENmRZ[ELH—HEE
venture” in the consolidated income statement. ERN REE
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF  10. AQ F#E AELEE
THE COMPANY
Of the consolidated loss attributable to owners of the AKANRBEABANEBLHEESEBEEY
Company of approximately HK$347.3 million (2013: 347,300,000 T( ZF —=F : 4
approximately HK$323.5 million), a loss of approximately 323,500,000/ 7T ) H + 720,500,000
HK$20.5 million (2013: approximately HK$22.4 million) BIL(ZE — =4 422,400,000/
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the T ZEREETANR BB ISRk o
Company.
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE M. ZRFAEBEAEBEEBRER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share NATHEEANELZERERARE S
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on BB TR A N EUEETE -
the following data:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-OF —E—=F
FHET FATT
Loss for the year attributable to the owners FALAGT & G A% AN 17 f#
of the Company for the purpose of basic ~ SEEEZ AATIES
and diluted loss per share computation ANEIEFREIE (347,332) (323,455)
2014 2013
Number of Number of
shares shares
‘000 ‘000
—E-ImF —E—=F
&% & E IRt 8 B
FR F i
Weighted average number of ordinary FHL/(;JrﬁiHy\EK&}%&
shares in issue for the purpose of basic BEECBEBRITER
and diluted loss per share computation B hnE 25 &k 712,674 712,674
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

11. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE 11. XRBEEAELMEREE

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (continued)

In calculating the diluted loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2013, the potential issue of shares arising from the
conversion of the Company’s convertible bonds would
decrease the loss per share attributable to the owners of
the Company and is not taken into account as they have
an anti-dilutive effect. Share options of the Company are
not dilutive as the exercise price of the options exceeds
the average market price of ordinary shares during the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. Therefore, the
diluted loss per share attributable to the owners of the
Company for the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013 is based on the loss attributable to the owners of
the Company of approximately HK$347.3 million (2013:
approximately HK$323.5 million) and on the weighted
average of 712,674,000 ordinary shares during the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

(&)
EHE—_T—=F+=-A=+—H
IEFEEARRNRER AE(ESIREEE
B EHBRAQARARRESmMA
BEEITIRN S ERARRIHA AEL
EREERY MERZERNHESR
RESEER U WEFTFEEAN K
NAZBEREY E8E  RESHER
BZOEEEREBEE T —NENk—
E—=F+_A=t+—HItFEER
ReFEHmE-A - BEZF—
FR-_E—=H+-A=1+—HIF
EARNRHE ANBEREBEEE
BEEE-_Z—NEER_T—=F
+—A=+—HBIEFEELRRQREAE A
JE {5 /&5 18 49347,300,000/8 o ( = &
— =4 : #9323,500,000/& 7T ) & & i@
AEANAEF 5 80712,674,0000% 515 -

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 12. EEEIHZ(BEFEEEMS)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION)

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mEF —E—=F
FHET T
Wages, salaries, allowance and other I& e RMK

benefits in kind HEY = 92,384 142,853

Retirement benefit scheme contribution — R{K3EFIET 255 —
defined contribution plans TE R T E 23,783 50,695
116,167 193,548
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 13. EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors, e EMNESEIS(RE EmHRE
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and section 78 of REBREEH(F6228 )M K115
Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance T8IEZHMFE  WARRAI BB A 7 &0
(Cap. 622), with reference to section 161 of the (FE3I2E)F161EZHEE T AKEE) N
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), T

were as follows:

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and Share based scheme
Fees allowances  payment Bonus contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ek  URHBA BHRER

ik 2 EHEMH A HEHR @t
FiER FER TER FER TER TER

2014 “E-mE
Executive Directors WTEZ
Wu Jiahong BR4A - 650 - - 17 667
Yang Hua B - 2,155 - - 51 2,206
Dong Cunling e - 2,101 - - - 2,101
Zhou Guangwen BAENX - 300 - - - 300
Chen Xu 3 - 400 - - - 400
Non-Executive Director FHTER
Li Chunyan 3EE 300 88 - - - 388
Independent Non-Executive BUFNTES
Directors
Chen Renbao BCE 150 - - - - 150
Ma Yueyong SEE 150 - - - - 150
Li Daomin* TER 38 - - - - 38
Jiang Xiaohui## B 75 - - - - 75
713 5,694 - - 68 6,475
# resigned on 1 April 2014 # NR-ZZE—PNE/N A —B&E
#  appointed on 1 July 2014 o R —_E—NF+A—BHEZE
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 13. EEM (&)

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and  Share based scheme
Fees  allowances payment Bonus  contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ek  UROA BRI
we 28 ARaM L FHEIME @t
THT THT THT THT THT THT
2013 —E=F
Executive Directors HNITES
Wu Jiahong e - 650 - - 15 665
Li Chun On ("Mr. Li")* Fer([Fx4]) = 1,262 - - 10 1272
Yang Hua i - 2,284 - - 75 2,359
Dong Cunling A = 2,092 = = = 2,092
Zhou Guangwen BEX - 300 - - - 300
Chen Xu## & e - 68 - - - 68
Non-Executive Director FaTEs
Li Chunyan FEE 300 152 - - - 452
Independent Non-Executive BUFNTES
Directors
Chen Renbao RIE 150 - - - = 150
Ma Yueyong SEE 150 - - - - 150
Li Daomin TER 150 = = = = 150
750 6,808 - - 100 7,658
# resigned on 28 August 2013 t P E—=& N\ F -+ /\BEE
it appointed on 19 September 2013 # N—FE—_=FHHA+NLBEZFE

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining VEA DI A ZNE E sk 55 AN £ B B
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2013: 2B BLrBN I HE(ZE—=
Nil). F )

TR ARERESTESTAME

During the year, no share options were granted to the
directors in respect of their services to the Group (2013:
Nil).

FR WEPEFRANEEIRERHERS
Mm% HERE(CT—=F : &)

There was no arrangement under which a director
or chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2013: Nil).

FRN WEII I ARBESNITH
wEMENRERETMHEOLHE
(ZB—=4%F: M)
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included four (2013: four*)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 13. The emoluments payable to the
remaining one individual (2013: one) during the year
ended 31 December 2014 were as follows:

14.

hTEREHAT
FRNAEBRERESHFALEEN
B ZE—Z=ZF: WEEF FEZ
MEERMFEI32F 2 oMk &
B—B(ZEBE—=F: —%) AITRE
2T NF+-_HA=+—HIFE
ZENS T

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NEF —T—=F
FTHET FET

Basic salaries, housing benefits, other EXFHS BEREA-
allowances and benefits in kind H =z R EYH = 2,080 2,080
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKERFHEIME R 17 15
2,097 2,095

* Mr. Li, being one of five highest paid individuals, was
resigned as the Company’s director on 28 August 2013
and his emoluments before resignation as the Company’s
directors were included in note 13. His emoluments
(including those presented in note 13) during the year
ended 31 December 2013 were as above.

* FREA(RERAERSFALTZ B
RZZ—=F A=+ N\BEEX
RAEE  KEHEARBESA 2 B
TERMEIB - FREE_T—=
Ft-A=T—"HALFEZME(E
FERMEE13R25IF) 2 &8N X

The emoluments fell within the following band: e N TFIATEE :
2014 2013
No. of individual = No. of individual
—E2-mE —F—=%
AE A
Emolument band B < &5 &
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/8 L% 2,500,000 7T 1 1
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14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)  14. A&\ E#HA LT (&)

FR AEEYERATERESHAL
AR & E R INA SR B B
PRAA SR B85 2 B2 S 8 SR B 2 78
B(=F—=%:E)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office (2013: Nil).

HE-_Z-—NF+_A=+—HItF
B -YERAEEHET —EZR5HA
IR B RS DA SRR AR A B AR

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no share
options were granted to the remaining one highest paid
individual of the Group to subscribe for ordinary shares of
the Company.

ENENSREREEXNE 2SN

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior

108

management were within the following bands: FATEE :
2014 2013
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
—E-—OF —ET—=F
A AER
Emolument band B <5 &3 [
Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 7 7
HK$1,000,001 1,000,001/ 7T
- HK$1,500,000 %1,500,000/& 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 1,500,001/8 7T
— HK$2,000,000 %2,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 2,000,001/ 7T
— HK$2,500,000 %2,500,000/5 7T 3 3
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 15. ¥ BERRE-—F5£E
GROUP
Furniture,
Mining fixtures,
related  equipment

Buildings machinery and
and mining  Plant and and leasehold Motor  Construction
structures  machineries  equipment improvement  vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B %2
BER B Ll RHER

REREYN HERES HBLRE RENERE nE  HRIE Rt
THL TAL THL THL THL THL TAL

At 1 January 2013 R-%-=5-5-R

Cost A 294,069 29,082 144,799 12,718 30,444 29,959 541,071
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z5t#7E (59463)  (1455)  (47937) (7,229) (22,829) - (152,010)
Net book value ERSE 234,606 14,526 96,862 5,493 7,615 29,959 389,061
Year ended BE-E-=F

31 December 2013 TZAZt-HLEE
Opening net book value ~ FAIEREF(E 234,606 14,526 96,362 5,493 7,615 29,959 389,061
Exchange difference EREH 8,357 428 3328 158 187 808 13,266
Additions ME 85,586 3,351 45,702 47 1,054 26,732 162,842
Acquisition of a subsidiary  WE—FIHBAR

(note 36) (Hiit36) - - - 113 - - 113
Transfer 2% 29,992 - 2,447 - - (32,439) -
Disposals it & (1,136) - (234) - (804) - (2,174
Depreciation it (15,031) (3554)  (15559) (143) (3,016) - (1)
Closing net book value  FABAFE 342,374 14,751 132,547 5,438 5,036 25,060 525,206
At31December 2013  W=B-=F+-A=t-A
Cost R 416,433 32,861 194,847 13,406 30,358 25,060 712,965
Accumulated depreciation  Z:F7E (74,059) (18,110) (62,300) (7,968) (25322) - (187,759)
Net book value ERSE 342,374 14,751 132,547 5438 5,036 25,060 525,206
Year ended BE-E-mf

31 December 2014 TZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book value ~ EIHEEFE 342,374 14,751 132,547 5,438 5,036 25,060 525,206
Exchange difference EiER (5,554) (236) (2,131) (87) (80) (409) (8,497)
Additions ME 46,517 655 8,663 176 2 104,885 160,898
Transfer gz 79,387 - 12,096 - - (91,483) -
Disposals e - - - - (509) = (509)
Impairment loss FEEE (50,368) (1,337) (14,934) (563) (227) - (67.429)
Depreciation e (19,670) (3,405) (19,815) (577) (2,460) - (45,927)
Closing net hook value ~ F&KEFE 392,686 10,428 116,426 4,387 1,762 38,053 563,742
At31December 2014  W-B-BE+-A=+-A
Cost A 535,583 32,987 212,464 13,367 28,107 38,053 860,561
Accumulated depreciation  Z:F7E (92,529) 21.222) (81,104) (8,417) (26,118) - (229,390)
Impairment loss REFE (50,368) (1337) (14,934) (563) (227) - (67.429)
Net ook value BHFE 392,686 10,428 116,426 4,387 1,762 38,053 563,742
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15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -
GROUP (continued)

During the year, interest expenses amounting to
approximately HK$2.3 million (2013: approximately
HK$1.6 million) was capitalised in construction in
progress as disclosed in note 7. As at 31 December 2014,
provision for impairment of approximately HK$67.4
million (2013: Nil) has been made for those property,
plant and equipment within the CGU of production and
sale of coal. (note 17(a)).

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES
- COMPANY

15.

16.

ME BERSEHE-—TEE
(&)

FR RERIBENMEZAETH
#£#92,300,0008 (= F —=4F : 4
1,600,000/ 7T ) FE BRI RE7H 55
R—ZE—mME+—_A=+—8 25
HERBERRZBSESXEMNANZ
W3 R KRR 1R R (B B LY
67,400,000 (=T —=4F : £&)°
(RBtEE17(a))

REBAR 2 REREW,
(BN)MEBLARRE-FALQF

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-NF —E—=F

FET FETT

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRAR D - A ANME 397,806 397,801
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN EENGIE O] 398,363 398,363
Less: provision for impairment B RERE (5.474) -
790,695 796,164

Amount due to a subsidiary FEA — R B A B3R (15,033) -

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and not repayable in the next twelve months after
the reporting date. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, these amounts are part of the Group's
investments in these subsidiaries.

Amount due to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free
and not repayable in the next twelve months after the
reporting date.

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results for the year or form a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

16. RMIB AT ZREREW
(BB ATRE—-AQT

— COMPANY (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as
at 31 December 2014 were as follows:

(%)
ZN/NC]

R-ZE—NFE+—-A=+—H

ZEEMBARFHENAT -

Percentage
Particulars of  of issued Place of
Place of issued capital/ capital operation
incorporation and registered held by the and principal
Name type of legal entity capital Company activities
NN
AR 3Lt B R BERTRE BRORE KEHER
=1 FEERER AMERFE Bolk FEEE
Directly held
EEER
(1)  Beat World Limited Hong Kong, limited 1 share of 100 Management
liability company HK$1 service in
Hong Kong
SARERAA &R BREELQF TREE 100 REBREER
187 AR5
(2)  Clear Interest Limited (“CIL") British Virgin Island 200 shares of 100 Investment
("BVI"), limited US$1 each holding in the
liability company PRC
RBRLES((HEE 200REREE 100 RPBERERE
ZR5) BRAL (E Sy
NG
(3)  Star Central Limited BVI, limited liability 1 share of 100 Investment
company Us$1 holding in
Hong Kong
HERAZHS BRE 1REE 100 MEBRERE
E/NC E¥ Al
(4)  Rosan Clean Energy Development Hong Kong, limited 10,000 shares 51 Investment
Company Limited liability company of HK$1 each holding in
Hong Kong
REERERERER AT BB AREELRA 10,000(% E & 51 REBRERE
1T %
(5)  Xinfa Investments Limited BVI, limited liability 1 share of 100 Investment
("Xinfa") company Us$1 holding in
Indonesia
MEREBRAR([HE]) RBRELES ERE REEIET 100 REERFRE
/N PR
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

16. AHIBARIZREREWR
(BB A RRIE—ARQF

— COMPANY (continued) (#%)
Percentage
Particulars of  of issued Place of
Place of issued capital/ capital operation
incorporation and registered held by the and principal
Name type of legal entity capital Company activities
EABE
a1 A L 3t B BRITRE BRITRE KEHIER
£ FEERER A EARGFEE Bl TEEE
Indirectly held
LfE3E2e)
(6)  Popular Sky Coal Industrial Hong Kong, limited 1 share of 100 Investment
Limited liability company HK$1 holding in the
PRC
ERREEERAA &L BREELRH 1RmEE 100 RPERERE
1T 2R
(7)  Hong Kong Zhongyuan Energy Hong Kong, limited 1 share of 100 Investment
Co., Limited liability company HK$ 1 holding in the
PRC
BEBHRERERA A BB BAREELRA 1REE 100 RPERERE
187 PR
(8)  Hong Kong Zhongzhou Energy Hong Kong, limited 1 share of 100 Investment
Co., Limited liability company HK$1 holding in the
PRC
BERMNERERAA] &L BREELRH 1RmEE 100 RPERERE
1T ZHR
(9)  Highlink Investments Limited BVI, limited liability 1 share of US$1 100 Investment
company holding in
Hong Kong
RBRLEE BRE 1RmEE 100 REBRERE
(R/NC] E R
(10) Alive Investments Limited BVI, limited liability 1 share of US$1 100 Investment
company holding in
Hong Kong
RERZHS ARE 1REE1ET 100 REBRERE
ERA] PR
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

16. RMIB AT ZREREW
(BB ATRE—-AQT

— COMPANY (continued) (4 )
Percentage
Particulars of  of issued Place of
Place of issued capital/ capital operation
incorporation and registered held by the and principal
Name type of legal entity capital Company activities
EATE
aE B A 3t B BRITRE BRITRE SEHER
=L rEERER M EARGFEE Bolk FEEE
Indirectly held (continued)
MERE (&)
(11) Dynamic Coal Company Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited 1 share of 100 Investment
liability company HK$ 1 holding in
Hong Kong
RRRERRAA BB BREELT REE 100 REBRERE
18T PR
(12) Dynamic Energy Development PRC, wholly foreign- HK$ 100 Investment
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* owned limited 20,000,000 holding in the
liability company PRC
AERRRECRINBRAT RE - INEBERRR 20,000,000 100 RPBERERE
Al BT PR
(13) Beijing Zhong Yue Heneng PRC, wholly foreign- HK$ 100 Investment
Technology Company Limited* owned limited 160,000,000 holding in the
(Formerly known as Zhong Yue liability company PRC
Energy Development (Shenzhen)
Company Limited#)
IR ENRERBRAR AT T INEBEARLD 160,000,000 100 RAPERERE
(AT ERRFECRINDE Al BT Sy
(YN
(14) Henan linfeng Coal Industrial PRC, limited liability RMB 90 Production and
Group Company Limited? company 118,000,000 sale of coal in
(“Jinfeng”) the PRC
e EREEERRAT hE BRAEERT AR 90 MNPBERERR
([&2]) 118,000,0007T HEERHE
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

16. AHIBARIZREREWR
(BB A RRIE—ARQF

— COMPANY (continued) (%)
Percentage
Particulars of  of issued Place of
Place of issued capital/ capital operation
incorporation and registered held by the and principal
Name type of legal entity capital Company activities
EABE
a1 A L 3t B BRITRE BRITRE KEHIER
=L FEERER A EARGFEE Bl TEEE
Indirectly held (continued)
MERE (&)
(15) Shenzhen Zhongzhou Energy PRC, limited liability RMB 90 Investment
Company Limited* company 10,000,000 holding in the
PRC
YT M aEIRE R 2 hE BEREELQH AR® 90 RHBERERE
10,000,000t AR
(16) Xingyun Coal Industry Company  PRC, limited liability RMB 90 Production and
Limited* company 60,000,000 sale of coal in
the PRC
EHTRERFXEREELNH hE BRAEELQE AR 90 MNPBERERR
60,000,0007T EERHE
(17) Xiangyang Coal Industry PRC, limited liability RMB 90 Production and
Company Limited* company 50,000,000 sale of coal in
the PRC
EHMASREERLE hE BEREELQF AR® 90 RHERERK
50,000,0007T HENHE
(18) Denfeng lJinfeng Mining PRC, limited liability RMB 90 Trading of
Equipment Company Limited* company 1,000,000 mining
equipment
and
consumable
tools in the
PRC
EHZERILRBERAR hE BEREELQT AR® 90 RHEREEE
1,000,0007T PRERR 1 B i
%)
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 16. RMIBARIZIREREW
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (EEMA)MHEB A BFIE — 24~ T
— COMPANY (continued) (4 )

Percentage
Particulars of  of issued Place of
Place of issued capital/ capital operation
incorporation and registered held by the and principal
Name type of legal entity capital Company activities
NN
aE B A 3t B BERTRE BROIRE KEHER
=L FEERER AMERFE Bolk FEEE
Indirectly held (continued)
MR (&)
(19) Zhengzhou Huirui Shangmo PRC, limited liability RMB 96 Trading of
Company Limited* company 125,000,000 purchased
coal,
construction
materials and
accessories
of mining
machineries in
the PRC
FNEREEERAA hE BEREELQT ARE 9%6 RPBEREEA
125,000,0007% BEIR - RSN
B R G B i
g5
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

16. AHIBARIZREREWR
(BB A RRIE—ARQF

— COMPANY (continued) (%&)
Percentage
Particulars of  of issued Place of
Place of issued capital/ capital operation
incorporation and registered held by the and principal
Name type of legal entity capital Company activities
AR R R
FEM R AL it B R BRITBE BRIRE LEHER
=1 FERERER AMERFE Bl TEE£K
Indirectly held (continued)
MEEE(E)
(20) Henan Zhongyuan JiuAn PRC, sino-foreign RMB 100 Investment
Foundation & Investment Co., equity joint venture 272,387,000 holding in the
Ltd. PRC
AEPRAREIEREERAR HE HIEERE AR 100 RPERERE
272,387,0007T 2lile
(21) Beijing Kaisheng Guanhua PRC, sino-foreign RMB 91 Project
Investment Company Limited* equity joint venture 80,000,000 investment,
(“Kaisheng”) asset
management
and
consultation
of investment
in the PRC
IR EBEREFR AT hE - RIS ERE AR 91 RPBENREER
(rengsl) 80,000,0007T RE BEE
B RIR B
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

17. GOODWILL - GROUP 17. BE -+ 5H
The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as PERmFEDMAT :
follows:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mEF —E—=F
FExT FHET
At beginning of the year F9
Gross carrying amount ARE4AE 272,720 268,746
Accumulated impairment loss ZEPREEE (203,688) (133,412)
Net carrying amount AREDFE 69,032 135,334
For the year FR
Opening net carrying amount FURREFE 69,032 135,334
Exchange difference b X =58 (63) 41
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36) W i — FEIff B A &)
(KizE36) - 3,933
Impairment loss BEEE (68,969) (70,276)
Closing net carrying amount FIRAREFE - 69,032
At end of the year FH
Gross carrying amount ARM 428 272,657 272,720
Accumulated impairment loss ZEHREEE (272,657) (203,688)
Net carrying amount FREDHE - 69,032
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill before BREARNS  FRARTRESE
impairment loss for the year is allocated to the following AIZEENEENTREELEN :
CGUs:
2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NmF —E-=F
it FET FHET
Production and sale of coal EENMIEEER (a) 65,058 135,334
Trading of purchased coal BAKKE (b) 3,911 3,974
Net carrying amount (before AREFE
impairment loss of the year) (CRETFEREEERT) 68,969 139,308
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17. BE-FK&EEH (&)
(a) EERMEER

17. GOODWILL - GROUP (continued)
(a) Production and sale of coal

118

Goodwill as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 arose
from the acquisitions of CIL and its subsidiaries (the
“CIL Group”) represented the future economic
benefits from the production and sales of coal.

At the time when the Group acquired its interest
in the CIL Group, the mining license held by the
CIL Group only had around a month to its expiry.
The grant of a longer term mining license for
the underlying mines held by the CIL Group was
not obtained at the acquisition date. The mining
license with around one month expiry held by the
CIL Group would not in any way guarantee that
the CIL Group would be able to obtain a longer
term mining license. Due to uncertainty over the
granting of a longer term mining license from the
relevant local government authorities at that time,
no reliable estimation of the fair value of a longer
term mining license was available at the acquisition
date. The purchase consideration paid by the
Group over the fair value of net assets of the CIL
Group acquired (not including a longer term mining
license) was recognised as goodwill accordingly.
Accordingly, any value attributable to the mining
potential in the CIL Group was accounted for
as goodwill arising from the acquisition of CIL.
In 2008, the government approved to extend
the mining right for 7-14.5 years. Effectively,
a substantial amount of the goodwill balance
represents the value of the mining right.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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P IEEE SHE 2 R RAE R3S o

AREBWBHENCILER 2R
B CLEEFA 2 HRET A &
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B CILSE 2B @K RS R
EREFHMREBFIFZF . CIL
SEAMFAERMBN—EAERZ
BRI 5T 7] 58 W B A R BCILE H
BEEMBR K TR E-
A E B R AETETE B Bt 5 BUT
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z

17. GOODWILL - GROUP (continued)
(a) Production and sale of coal (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the
recoverable amount of the CGU was determined
using fair value less costs to sell calculations,
covering a detailed five-year budget plan, followed
by an extrapolation of discounted cash flows by
reference to the average market coal price with
similar heating power in the PRC with adjustments,
where necessary, to reflect the differences. In
determining the value of the Group's CGU, the
directors of the Company have taken account of the
estimated coal reserves of the mines after deducting
the cumulative amounts of coal already extracted
and sold. Accordingly, as the Group depletes its coal
reserves, the value of its CGU will also decrease.
The write-down of goodwill carrying amount is
therefore of similar financial statements effects of
amortisation of mining rights as if a separate fair
value had been recognised on the longer- term
mining license on the acquisition of CIL. The fair
value on which the recoverable amount is based on
is categorised as a Level 3 measurement.

Based on the assessment of the recoverable amount
of the CGU, for the year ended 31 December
2014, given comparatively low market coal price of
the year and the recoverable amount of the CGU
is less than the goodwill's carrying amount, the
Group made an impairment loss of approximately
HK$69.0 million (2013: approximately HK$70.3
million) on goodwill, as well as impairment losses
of approximately HK$67.4 million (2013: Nil) and
approximately HK$67.1 million (2013: Nil) on the
property, plant and equipment and the mining
rights respectively associated with this CGU (notes
15 and 18).

ot 3% ¥R AR MY A

—mE+-A=1+—HIFE

17. BE-FK&EE (&)

(a)

SERMEERK(E
HE-_ZT—NOF+-_HA=+—H
EFE -BeELEEN2]KE
SE2EPEBEURE CER 2
FHMISER(LIEHYLBERE
ARZR) B AT ERE
EXRAAEORE-—HFRZR
FHEEE) RERFTERE
/Jlui{/ﬁﬁﬁéﬁjﬁff_ ﬁ/\%gﬁli$
SEvReEABMNBER -
RARERDERIERE 2 H5T
HEZE WREEREREEZ
REtHEE - BEEAEER
REKFE HREEABMNZ
BETERS Bt HEEKRE
(B HORE B ER T A 81 2 BA TS SRR
SEREL e NIEECILE
B B R T HA R B RT Al B
RIBIL N FE %A B LA
KENRATFESBRRE =R

=
E= -

AEREBE_ZT—WNFE+_A
= t+t—RIEFERRESELEM
2o e B TE ERFEA
MEHEERESEMZACEE
Bz Al e S BEREE 2R
HE AEEHEEIRRES
18 #969,000,000/8 T( —ZE—=
& #70,300,00078 7T ) A &
MENBECELEEVEH Y
¥ WE MEEARIRBED J
=t 8 4967,400,000/ T( —

— =4 : &)X #967,100 ooo;‘%
TT(ZE—=%F : &) 2R EEIE
(FtsE155%18)°
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

17. GOODWILL - GROUP (continued)
(a) Production and sale of coal (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation was performed by the
valuer, Sino-Infinite Appraisal Limited, to determine
the fair value of the CGU of production and sale
of coal as at 31 December 2014 and 2013. The
impairment losses are included in consolidated
income statement. The following table presents the
fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s
CGU of production and sale of coal carried at fair

17. BE-FK&EEH (&)
(a) £ERHERRE)

RFEER

HEMPRIEERABDET
—IRIBILEME - PAEETE A K 8H
ERRZBACELEMUNR_-F
—HFER_FT-—=F+-A4
=t—BzZaVE -REEED
AR RERA - TRIITIR
RNHEIRZ AR EERHE
Bk BEeEEEN 2 A FER

value: =EEL
Fair value measurements categorised into
AVEHEZDE
Quoted prices
in active Significant Significant
markets for observable  unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
BREER
ERTEL EXTHE EYe|
il BAHE  BERAHE
) (E-4) (B=4) (=)
TEr TER THR TER
As at 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+-f=1-H
Recurring fair value measurement mEn AT ErE
CGU of production and sale of coal BRAERREBEELEN 1,107,525 - - 1,107,525
As at 31 December 2013 R-E-=%+-f=1-H
Recurring fair value measurement BENATEE
CGU of production and sale of coal BREERHE/REELEN 1,242,989 - - 1,242,989
1 20 Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

17. GOODWILL - GROUP (continued)
(a) Production and sale of coal (continued)

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s CGU were valued as at 31 December
2014 by independent professionally qualified valuer,
Sino-Infinite Appraisal Limited, who have among
their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and have recent experience in the
valuation of mining industries.

The Group’s finance department, which directly
reports to the chief financial officer, review the
valuations performed by the independent valuer
of financial reporting purposes. The finance
department holds discussions with the independent
valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results.

Management's key assumptions were used in
the fair value less costs to sell calculation of the
CGU for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
following described each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projects to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill.

Net profit margins — Management determined
net profit margin based on past experience
in this market and its expectations for market
development.

Discount rate — The discount rate reflects specific
risks relating to the mining industry.

Growth rate — The management has taken the
growth of the coal industry and the global economy
as a whole.

17. BE-FK&EE (&)

(a)

SENRHERR(E
rEEZEEEF
AEBZReELABUHRBIE
XA EBRMAEMTRIEAERA
AT ZRRBEREERE
A2 e 8 - B AHRETER
it 2 AT AR B

RHBHREBNME  AREZ
P ERPT (B M B T AR BR (B R
EHBIAEMETZEE M
BB ERR MG EAREE
A ERTETTA R ©

HEBE-FT-—mE+ =7
S+ -BLEEREELEMLY
AFEABERER ERED
RAEBER T LEEE
ERTARAENNEERRS
RERARA L S AEBBE-

FERER - EEERBETISE

BREHTISREY ERETT
R o

PIRE — IR KR IRA R AE R
ZEBERR -

ERE - EEEE AN ERA
GELT PV ES VIR
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17. BE-FK&EEH (&)
(a) £ERHKERRE

17. GOODWILL - GROUP (continued)
(a) Production and sale of coal (continued)

122

The discount rate and growth rate used to
extrapolate in the cash flow projection are shown as
below:

RemBTEN T HEEEAZ TR
RFIRREMT -

2014 2013

—E-F —E =

Growth rate 2.6% 3.8%
per annum per annum

K E552.6% BF3.8%
Discount rate 11.5% 14.5%
per annum per annum

IR HF11.5% FF145%

Apart from the considerations described in
determining the fair value less costs to sell
calculation of the CGU above, the Group’s
management is not currently aware of any other
reasonably possible changes that would necessitate
changes in its key estimates.

(b) Trading of purchased coal

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of Huirui in
2013 represented the future economic benefits from
the trading of purchased coal.

As at 31 December 2013, the recoverable amount
of the CGU was determined using fair value less
costs to sell calculations, covering a detailed five-
year budget plan, followed by an extrapolation of
discounted cash flows by reference to the average
market coal price with similar heating power in the
PRC with adjustments, where necessary, to reflect
the differences. The fair value less costs to sell
calculations is classified as a level 3 measurement.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

17. GOODWILL - GROUP (continued) 17. BE - KB E)
(b) Trading of purchased coal (continued) (b) BABRKRES (&)

Fair value hierarchy NFEZER

An independent valuation was performed by HERMPIRTEBRA RS ET
the valuer, Sino-Infinite Appraisal Limited, to —RIBL(H1E - LA BB AR R
determine the fair value of the CGU of the trading BOZREEABUN_T—=
of purchased coal as at 31 December 2013. The F+ZA=1+—HZ2AF¥E-T
following table presents the fair value measurement RINRBRATEIRZ N EERE
hierarchy of the Group’s CGU of the trading of ANERBH 2 REEEBUZA
purchased coal carried at fair value: FEFTEFR

Fair value measurements categorised into

DFEHELAE
Quoted prices
in active Significant Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HREER

R L EATER Ry

HE BABE BREARE

85t (E-H) (=R (£=h)
TAL TEL THAL TEL

As at 31 December 2013 R-E-=#+-A=1-H
Recurring fair value measurement N R
CGU of trading of purchased coal BARRE S ASELEN 160,163 - - 160,163
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17. GOODWILL - GROUP (continued) 17. BE-K&EEH &)

124

2013 by independent professionally qualified valuer,
Sino-Infinite Appraisal Limited, who have among
their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and have recent experience in the
valuation of mining industries.

The Group’s finance department, which directly
reports to the chief financial officer, review the
valuations performed by the independent valuer
of financial reporting purposes. The finance
department holds discussions with the independent
valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results.

Management's key assumptions were used in
the fair value less costs to sell calculation of the
CGU for the year ended 31 December 2013. The
following described each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projects to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill.

Net profit margins — Management determined
net profit margin based on past experience
in this market and its expectations for market
development.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

(b) Trading of purchased coal (continued) (b) BAKRKRES (&)
Valuation processes of the Group rEBZHERF
The Group’s CGU were valued as at 31 December AEBR-_ZE—=F1T2A
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

17. BE-FK&EE (&)
(b) BAERES (&)

17. GOODWILL - GROUP (continued)
(b) Trading of purchased coal (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Discount rate — The discount rate reflects specific
risks relating to the trading of purchased coal
industry.

Growth rate — The management has taken the
growth of the coal industry and the global economy
as a whole.

The discount rate and growth rate used to
extrapolate in the cash flow projection are shown as
below:

RPEER (&)
PrIRE PR R RRE ARIER
ZBERR -

R R — IR B AT
¥RRHEE S BE

e B TRIR B2 2 7 R
ERBREMT -

2013
—T—=F
Growth rate 8RR 3.8% per annum HF3.8%

Discount rate IR =X

Apart from the considerations described in
determining the fair value less costs to sell
calculation of the CGU above, the Group’s
management is not currently aware of any other
reasonably possible changes that would necessitate
changes in its key estimates.

As Huirui became inactive since August 2014, based
on assessment of the Group’s management, the
goodwill previously recognised on this CGU is fully
impaired as at 31 December 2014.

14.5% per annum

FFE14.5%

BEE MRS EABL AT
B B A 2 R 4
AEEERE A LTRSS
B BN RRE 2 EMH A
ABTRED -

HRERE —F—WEN\AER
BATERE  REANEEEIEE
aHE LRI & E A AL ST AT
RZEBER-_T—NF+=A
=+t—HZ2ERAE"
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

18. MINING RIGHTS - GROUP 18. &R - A KE

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-MF ==
FERT FAT
At 1 January R—H—H
Gross carrying amount ARE4RE 759,416 737,546
Accumulated amortisation ES T (112,043) (90,893)
Net carrying amount BREFE 647,373 646,653
Net carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEREF#E 647,373 646,653
Amortisation #iE (8,675) (18,198)
Exchange difference b =% (10,404) 18,918
Impairment loss BEEE (67,122) -
Net carrying amount at 31 December R+=—A=+—H8z
RREDFHE 561,172 647,373
At 31 December R+t=—A=+—~”
Gross carrying amount RE#(E 745,240 759,416
Accumulated amortisation RETEEE (116,946) (112,043)
Impairment loss BEEE (67,122) -
Net carrying amount BREFE 561,172 647,373

NR-ZZE—ME+-_A=+—H HRK
SEMBEECHKERE2HTERFH
NF03E80FE(ZBE—=%F:02%
9.0%F)e

As at 31 December 2014, the remaining useful lives of
mining rights held by the Group ranged from 0.3 to 8.0
years (2013: 0.2 to 9.0 years).

R-ZE—mME+—_A=+—H0 K&

As at 31 December 2014, provision for impairment of
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mining rights amounting to approximately HK$67.1
million (2013: Nil) has been made by the Group's
management (note17(a)).

As at 31 December 2014, mining right with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$429.2 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB340.5 million) (2013: approximately
HK$492.8 million (equivalent to approximately RMB384.6
million)) has been pledged to a bank to secure the
Group's borrowing (note 29).
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BEEED EERE ZREELBE
#967,100,0008 L ( —Z— =4 : )
(KMF3E17(a)) e

R-ZE—mOE+—_A=+—80 BE@\
{E#7429,200,0007 TT(HHER O AR
#340,500,000c ( = F —=4F : 4
492,800,000 TL(HHE RN 4 AR K
384,600,0007T)) < FLIEREE IR T
RITARVS AL B 2 (B3R (HF5E29) -
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

19. it B EE - ~KH

Computer software licence

19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP

BB ERE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF —T—=
FHET FET
At 1 January R—HA—H
Gross carrying amount IREBE 1,755 1,755
Accumulated amortisation Rt (1,755) (1,462)
Net carrying amount FREFE - 293
Net carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEREFE - 293
Addition NE 136 -
Amortisation b5t (51) (293)
Net carrying amount at 31 December R+=—A=+—82
RREDFE 85 -
At 31 December R+=ZHA=+—H
Gross carrying amount IREAE 1,891 1,755
Accumulated amortisation R 3 (1,806) (1,755)
Net carrying amount BREFE 85 -

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES - GROUP

20. ABE N Rz R —FAKE

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000

—E—-mEF —F—=
FEx FHETT
Share of net assets e & EFE 108,356 98,636
Goodwill HE 27,180 27,180
Impairment loss REEE (27,180) -
108,356 125,816

RMEEREREMRAT 2014FER
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP 20. RBEEE QT 2 EH —AEE
(continued) (%)
Particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31 RZE—ME+_A=+—H &%
December 2014 were as follows: EEtE AR ZFFREAT ¢
Percentage
of issued Place of
Place of Particulars capital operation
incorporation and of registered held by and principal
Name type of legal entity capital the Group activities
REH
E
aE AR L 3t R §§ '_I' ReEmYER
=1 EEERER HAMEXRFE REED FEXEHR
(1) Beijing Zhaohua Hefu PRC, limited liability RMB 25% Investment
Investment Management company 2,000,000 management,
Limited* (“Zhaohua Hefu") asset
management
and

consultation of
investment in

the PRC
IERKESZRETEER FE BREFAF AR 25% R I?ﬁé%? =
RNAI([KEEE] 2,000,0007T EB-BEE
B RIGEFEA
(2) Beijing Shuozhan Zhongfu  PRC, limited RMB 99%  Project
Investment Centre partnership 100,000,000 investment,
(Limited Partnership)? investment
(the “Partnership”) management,
(Note a) assets
management
and
consultation
service in the
PRC
ERERAERER L HE - BREBBEE AR 9% RKHBEN=IAR
(BER&a%) 100,000,0007C RE - KREE
([EBLZE])(Kita) EE EEEBR
NGB AR
(3) Beijing Baiyitong PRC, limited liability RMB 34% Development
Technology Co., Ltd* company 22,250,000 of computer
(“Baiyitong”) software and
(Note b) provision of
information
technology
services in the
PRC
R ERBEH AR AR FE - BREEAH AR 34% EP B 1 = %
([E%E |)(#ab) 22,250,000 E L
1/\ ﬁ ﬂ1$4 TS‘Z HE
%
& For identification purpose only # (£ #2255
1 28 Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z—F—UF+-H=1—HIFFZE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP 20. REtE DRl ER —AEE
(continued) (&)
Note: [t & -

(a)

Pursuant to the partnership agreements entered in
May 2012 and June 2012, the general partner of the
Partnership is Zhaohua Hefu (the “General Partner”),
which is an associate of the Group, owns 1% of the
equity interest of the Partnership. The General Partner is
responsible for management and control of the business
of the Partnership while Kaisheng, the limited partner
of the Partnership, possesses significant influence over
the operating and financial policies of the Partnership
through its participation in the investment committee.
As abovementioned, although the Group owned 99%
equity interest in the Partnership, the Group only possess
significant influence over the operating and financial
policies of the Partnership, therefore, the investment
has been classified as interests in associates in the

(a)

BRER-_ZT——FRARAR T
FRAFIZERh#E AaBEE
ZEBERARNKESE ([HAE
BBA) ERAEEZHERE
i%ﬁA%ﬁin%h%°aLm%
NEBEREERERGREE X
BomlR(AEEEZERAR
MNAEB2EEEZSSHAR D
EIZRENVBBRELBEATE
HemEpmt BEAEEHEBEE
BEONEE NEBEHAE DL
E2RENGBRREBEATE
B it RERRE B HARGZEER
BIRRARAF RSN E N5 2

><

consolidated statement of financial position as at the
reporting date.

(b)  Pursuant to the capital injection agreement entered by WEBER=ZZ—=F—HFxZE&
in January 2013, Kaisheng agreed to inject a cash of ZK&)\Tf}%a HLERE REME GBS

approximately HK$15.2 million (equivalent to RMB12.0
million) (the “First Capital Injection”) to Baiyitong.
According to the agreement, Kaisheng is entitled to 34%
of equity interests of Baiyitong when the First Capital
Injection is completed. After the first year and second
year from the date of the First Capital Injection, Kaisheng
is required to inject a further cash of approximately
HK$11.4 million (equivalent to RMB9.0 million) (the
“Second Capital Injection”) and approximately
HK$11.4 million (equivalent to RMB9.0 million) (the
“Third Capital Injection”) respectively, if the number of
customers increases to the agreed target in the first year
and second year from date of the First Capital Injection
(the “Contingent Conditions”). The equity interests
of Baiyitong to be held by Kaisheng will remain at 34%
when the Second Capital Injection and Third Capital
Injection are completed.

JE AR £ 415,200,000 7T (B E
»AR#12,000,0007T) ([ —
REXRZEAN]) - REZBH BF
—IREBAREATTRE S IEBE
HEE BB Z34% 0% AR HE 25 o il
BE—XREXRTABHEE —F
FE—FRFHEEMERTE B
= RISLER B D RlE — 2 )FE AR
& #111,400,0008 T (HER AR
#9,000,00070) ([ =ZREZRE
A1) B 4911,400,0005% 7T (#EE R
AK#9,000,0007T) ([EB=RER
EA])  BEFEZRBERNEARE=
m§$&km&hﬂj%ﬁﬁn
HRIlEREFA 2 A @R AR’
HFFTE34% ©
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP 20. R E QT2 ER —AEE
(continued) (4&)
Note: (continued) et : (&)

130

On initial recognition, the management considered
Baiyitong could fulfill the Contingent Conditions and the
Group was liable to pay the Second Capital Injection and
the Third Capital Injection and estimated that the fair value
of the contingent consideration at the acquisition date was
approximately HK$22.8 million (equivalent to RMB18.0
million). The contingent consideration was included as part
of the cost of acquisition and the liabilities were recognised
as other payables under current liabilities and non-current
liabilities based on the payment terms. Moreover, the
difference between the cost of acquisition and the Group’s
share of the net assets in Baiyitong was recognised as
goodwill of approximately HK$26.8 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB21.2 million) at the acquisition date.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair
values of intangible assets of Baiyitong at the date of the
First Capital Injection were minimal, as such, no intangible
assets have been separated from goodwill as at the date of
the First Capital Injection.

The Second Capital Injection amounting to approximately
HK$11.4 million (equivalent to RMB9.0 million) was paid
during the year ended 31 December 2014. Subsequent
to the end of the reporting period, Kaisheng has reached
an agreement with an independent third party, to transfer
the obligations and rights under the Third Capital Injection
to the independent third party. Immediately upon the
completion of transaction on 3 March 2015, Kaisheng
is entitled to 23.80% of equity interests in Baiyitong.
In addition, the independent third party also agreed to
subscribe for additional equity interest of Baiyitong in the
amount of approximately HK$2.5 million (equivalent to
RMB2.0 million). Immediately upon the completion of the
subscription, Kaisheng’s interest in Baiyitong was further
diluted to 23.11% (note 41(a)).

The directors of the Company had performed an
impairment testing on the recoverable amount of the
interest in an associate and concluded that the carrying
amount was in excess of its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount was determined using value in use
calculations. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of time value of money and risk specific to
the asset. Accordingly, a full provision of impairment
amounted to HK$27.2 million in the interests of associates
was charged to the consolidated income statement during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

KON HER BEEERE [AimEn
ERSAGE MASBALNE
TRBERFEANREZRERFEAR
HEFHAREBREERSRZ AFE
#9 422,800,000 7 (FHE R AR
#18,000,0007T ) © 5% S ARAB TIET
AR A Z —3 5 WA 1&
REERERARBDBEENMIERE
BEE A E A B RIE © ok + IR
BRAEAEEELERBEEF
BEz=mRKERBRERAEEELY
26,800,000/8 7T (HE RN AR
21,200,0007T) - R A A EZR R
RE—IXERFABHEGEBZE
FWEEZATFER ] Bt RE—
REAEN BB R B E A E R
HERDH -

FE_REXREITASBEEND
11,400,000 ¢ (HHERARK
9,000,000) REEZE =T — I F
+TZA=+—BLEFEEXZF-R
HEHEHRE BREE BB
FEZHEKBE EEFEFZRER
EANEBERESAABILE=
BTSN _E-—HE=A=
HEMKE IBFAEERZBRA
W% 523.80% - BN BYFE=F
IR 2 3R G B 2 BRI AR b
£ 58492,500,000/8 T (HERAR
#2,000,0007T) ' ZFERE EFIE T
% B R AR ERE—F
BEE23.11% (FisE41@)) °

RAAREFSEHR —BEBEQAZ
a2 AT E S BEEITRERR
W HAERRAEAEBBER
El&EE-m e SsERAEREE
FTEEE R EEREER - F A
ARBEE ©EREBEBENLRE
T [ B 2 3R s T 95 AT (d 2 B AT 3T 3R
- BEFARRRASCRENAEH
BME - B - REEE R R 2 e 23
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—ZF—WF+_-H=+—HIFZE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP 20. REMERTI 2 ERE - A KE
(continued) (%)
The following illustrates the summarised financial NTAAEEERHE QARI(BE %
information of the Group’s material associate, the TE)CHMBERBE  DHREEHEE
Partnership, extracted from its management accounts BRE(BFERABRUABREREER
which have been adjusted to ensure consistency in M EETBR—B0)-

accounting policies adopted by the Group.

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—NmEF —T—=
FHET FET
As at 31 December R+=-ZRA=+—H
Current assets mBEEE 109,309 129,858
Current liabilities mEIARE (5,462) (40,157)
Year ended 31 December BET+T=-HA=1+—HLEE
Revenue Wrzs - -
Profit/(loss) for the year EREF(EE) 18,509 (44,548)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FEREZAEMWBA S (FEIB) B
for the year 18,509 (44,548)
Included in the above amounts are: L& xEEIE
Interest income F B U A - 2
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial VA L #E it 69 B 75 8 KR AR & B FS 3k
information to the carrying amount of the interest in FRHERN B S R R m AR E B 8 ¥
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial BRIAT ¢
statements:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-F —E—=F
FHET FET
Net assets of the associate i N I S - 103,847 89,701
Group's interest in the associate REFNRBENT 2 S 99% 99%
Carrying amount of the Group’s NEE R N T Sy
interest in the associate BEEmE(E 102,809 88,804
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES - GROUP 20. ABE N Rz R —FAEE
(continued) (&)
The summarised financial information of immaterial ERATEEHME NG 25 ER R
associates is set out below: HonT
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF —T-=F
FHExT FHIT
Year ended 31 December BEt+-—A=1+—HLEE
The Group's share of loss for the year NEB E(EERNEE (4,129) (2,499)
The Group's share of comprehensive AREFEEEXNE@ER
loss for the year (4,129) (2,499)
Amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free e —RIBtE AR IR BEER &
and repayable after twelve months from the reporting BERBEREBRES BEE @ A%
date. 838 o
1 32 Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

For identification purpose only

Note: Although the Group owned 51% equity interest in Henan

Chalco, the Group and the other shareholder of Henan
Chalco have joint control over Henan Chalco and none
of the participating parties has unilateral control over the
economic activity pursuant to the joint venture agreement
entered in July 2012. Therefore the investment has been
classified as interest in a joint venture as at the reporting
date.

21. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE - GROUP 21. A—EEELE R &
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—NF —E—=F
FHET THETT
Share of net assets IR EEFE 6,624 6,067
Particulars of the joint venture of the Group as at 31 N—E—NE+-_A=+—H &x&E
December 2014 were as follows: BEEMEFHBOT -
Percentage
of issued Place of
Place of Particulars capital operation
incorporation and of registered held by and principal
Name type of legal entity capital the Group activities
AEBFR
R 3L 3t B % ERITRE KEHIR
=1 EEERER AMERFE Bok FEXER
Henan Chalco Li Chuang PRC, other limited RMB 51% Sale of alumina
Resources Company Limited* liability company 10,000,000 in the PRC
(“Henan Chalco”)(Note)
AR EIEEARAE - AR 51% RPEHEHE
(R eR D(HaE) HipFREMEALRT  10,000,0007T =X &:c

Mist - REASEHEG N I851%4%E
o BAREE KA R R iR 2 HAih
% 5 468 A) i AR 4R A8 K R I 4
BE—E——FtAFIUZEE
i MELEFREETDE
BEAEEGE-BAL RREB
B ZRERSIEARAELE
2R ©
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

21. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE - GROUP

(continued)

The summarised financial information of the material

= (&)

21. A—REeg ¥ R —KE

AEBERAEREZMBHEMBML

joint venture of the Group is set out below: wm
2014 2013
HKS$'000 HK$'000
=ik —%—=
FEx AT
As at 31 December R+=-—HA=+—H
Non-current assets IERENEE 6 12
Current assets MENEE 12,981 11,885
Current liabilities VEII=R - -
Included in the above amounts are: EMEEEEIE
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEIEE 9,568 11,885
Year ended 31 December BE+t-A=1t—HILEE
Revenue g - =
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF,(EE) 1,282 (891)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2HEBRA(EB)E% 1,282 (891)
Included in the above amounts are: EMEEBE
Depreciation e 5 5
Interest income B A 234 229
Income tax expense FTiS TR < 2 /

The Group has not incurred any contingent liabilities or
other commitments relating to its joint venture.

ARELMPHA B EEEEAR
REAS IS -

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in the

DA Bttt 69 B 75 B R ER AR B B IS ¥Rk
PIERN A S EMNERREENEH

134

joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial BRunT -
statements:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$’000
—EF-mF =T =
FHET FAT
Net assets of the joint venture —HEEhEEEFR 12,987 11,897
Group’s interest in the joint venture AEBR—HEEGEEEL
M 51% 51%
Carrying amount of the Group’s REEBR—HEEEREY
interest in the joint venture T 2 RHAE 6,624 6,067

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HEZ—FT—F+-A=1+—HIFZF

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 22, A[{{HELRMEE - A&EH

- GROUP
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2-nmF —F=F
FExT FET
Non-current FERE
Unlisted equity securities in Indonesia ENFEIE_ E TR A& 5 26,566 26,566

Note: Hfat -
The unlisted available-for-sale equity securities represent
19% equity interest in an entity establishment in Indonesia
(“Indonesia Investment”), which are measured at cost
less impairment at each reporting date because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant and the
probability of the various estimates is significant. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the fair

FEmAHHE ERARE S (BUERENERK
V2ER([NERE)19%EAERN
BEHmEBMERARERETE RRAR
RFEAREMF <EBEAKR MBEME
ZAREMERS Bt NRRAREZERR/A
FEEBEAUEAE - RERR AEEE
HIERE 2 T BIRIRC AT L5 AR LEE

value cannot be reliably measured. Subsequent to the reporting
period, the Group has entered into an agreement with the
major shareholder of the Indonesia Investment to terminate the
Indonesia Investment. Further details are included in note 41(b).

23. INVENTORIES - GROUP

[EIRE - e — TR BHN M E41(b)

23. 78— KK

2014 2013

HKS$'000 HK$'000

—F-nmFE T =F

FExT TETT

Coal it 15,407 1,780

Spare parts and consumables T R E MM 11,552 11,999

26,959 13,779

24. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES - 24. ERERF R EE —REH

GROUP

2014 2013

HKS$'000 HK$'000

—F-mFE T —F

FExT FETT

Accounts receivable FEUS AR SR 184,041 309,322

Bills receivable EKEE 252 1,192

184,293 310,514

Less: Provision for impairment B BB RS (14,298) (12,298)

169,995 298,216
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

24. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES - 24. BRERERE - F&E (&)
GROUP (continued)
The Group’s sales are billed to customers according to the REERBEEBHHIEXAZTFHA
terms of the relevant agreement. Normally, credit periods HEXZ - mE TR EFZEER
ranging from 60 to 180 days (2013: 60 to 180 days) are —mNF60EE180R(—E—=
allowed to certain customers. Based on the invoice dates, 60H £180H ) - R EHH A& H
ageing analysis of the Group’s accounts receivable, net of 2 FEUTBR ZR (AR T ] R E B8 ) #2035
any provision for impairment at the reporting date is as ZHHFEZRETOT
follows:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mE —E—=F
FET TAT
0 — 90 days 0290H 137,697 47,585
91 - 180 days 912 180H 32,026 42,259
181 — 365 days 181%365H - 88,384
Over 365 days HB3E365H 20 118,796
169,743 297,024
As at 31 December 2014, accounts receivable of RZZE—WNFE+_A=1+—H 4
approximately HK$105.0 million (2013: approximately 105,000,000 T( Z T —=F : &
HK$179.2 million) were pledged to secure bank loans of 179,200,000/ 7T ) Z FE U BR ZAE B A
the Group (note 29). EEESIRITER M (MI5E29)-
Ageing analysis of the Group’s accounts receivable that RNEBEXRFEZEIES 7R DT
were not impaired, is as follows: wn :
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-lEF —ET—=F
FHExT FETT
Neither past due nor impaired R ER B R VERIE 166,570 87,306
Past due for less than 3 months wEDR=1E A 3,153 65,881
Past due for more than 3 months but less #Ef=1E A LA {85
than 6 months ~EA - 25,041
Past due for more than 6 months but less #1EA7<{& 8 A LB DR —F
than 1 year 3 51,608
Past due for more than 1 year BHEI—F LA 17 67,188
169,743 297,024
1 36 Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z

24. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES -

GROUP (continued)

Movement in the allowance for impairment of accounts
receivable is as follows:

ot 3% ¥R AR MY A

24. BYRRRRE - A58 (#)

EURFORERBEZES T

—mE+-A=1+—HIFE

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000

—E-F —F—=
FHET TAET
At 1 January R—H—H 12,298 11,944
Impairment loss on accounts receivable  FEWBERF Z BB IR 2,199 =
Exchange difference bE W = RE (199) 354
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—H 14,298 12,298

At each reporting date, the Group reviews accounts
receivable for evidence of impairment on an individual
and collective bases. As at 31 December 2014, the
Group determined accounts receivable of approximately
HK$14.3 million as individually impaired (2013:
approximately HK$12.3 million). Impairment loss of
approximately HK$2.2 million has been provided during
the year (2013: Nil).

Accounts receivable that were neither past due nor
impaired related to customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Accounts receivable that were past due but not impaired
related to customers that had a good track record of
credit with the Group. Based on past credit history,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered to be fully recoverable. The
Group did not hold any collateral in respect of accounts
receivable past due but not impaired.

REFREBH AEBIZRER KEE
%/E*ﬁ 5T REUW AR SR = S IR R E B
R-R-_FE—NF+-_A=+—8"
$EIEEE1I%IJWEZMQBEM
14,300,0008 Jo( —Z T — = F : 4
12,300,0007% 7t )e & EH & 8 8
2,200,000 TE RN FAEHEBE(=
—=F )0

RIEER B RR(E 2 FE Y R SR B A A 4
RACHBZEPER -

B 8 BB RIRE 2 FEURFOS J SR
SEARIFEBERATHRIEFL 1R
EREEARE ENERERLE
BHAEBANEE BEARDBEEREA

2RNE EEEREEANASTE
FRAE DR E B - NEB KRB Z
FOBHERREZEREERTE T
{AT 4 o
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. FEMNRIE - B R EABEWR
RECEIVABLES - GROUP H-A&E
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-MF —E-=F
FER FHET
Prepayments, deposits paid and other BRI B RS K EA
receivables JEW I8 195,352 219,901
Provision for impairment RERE (42,101) (12,034)
153,251 207,867
Movement in the allowance for impairment of TAFRIE 1R & & E M B W IR E
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is as follows: BEZEHOT -
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F-mFE T =F
FER FHET
At 1 January R—HA—H 12,034 3,733
Impairment loss A EE 31,536 11,867
Reversal of impairment loss B EEE (1,261) (3,791)
Exchange difference b =% (208) 225)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 42,101 12,034
At each reporting date, the Group reviews prepayments, REREBE AEEZER & &S
deposits paid and other receivables for evidence of BEERFIBEMNRIE EffERe REA
impairment on an individual and collective bases. As at ERFEREELRRETR R _F
31 December 2014, the Group determined deposits paid —HE+ZA=+—8 AKE®TE
and other receivables of approximately HK$42.1 million ERRE 2 B iR e & H b U KIE
as individually impaired (2013: approximately HK$12.0 #4742,100,0008 T(ZZE—=F - &
million). Impairment loss of approximately HK$31.5 12,000,000/ 7T ) F RN E B H 4
million (2013: approximately HK$11.9 million) has been 31,500,000 T 2 B EEE(ZF
provided during the year. —=% : 411,900,000/ 7T )°
1 38 Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES — GROUP (continued)

As at 31 December 2014, prepayments, deposits and
other receivables are mainly comprised of the following
items:

(i)  The deposits paid to third parties for the purchase
of coal amounted to approximately HK$73.1 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB58.0 million)
(2013: approximately HK$49.5 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB38.6 million)). In the opinion of
the Company’s directors, the amount is expected to
be utilised within one year; and

(i) In September 2012, the Group disposed of its
entire interest in a joint venture, Henan Yulong
Energy Development Co., Ltd. (“Yulong”), to the
other equity owner of Yulong at a consideration
of approximately HK$93.6 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB76.5 million) as set out in the
Company’'s announcement dated 3 September
2012. As at 31 December 2013, the outstanding
consideration of approximately HK$63.3 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB49.4 million)
has been included in other receivables. During the
year ended 31 December 2014, the outstanding
consideration of approximately HK$24.5 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB19.4 million) has
been fully impaired.

26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - GROUP

(a) Pledged bank deposits

The entire balance of the Group’s bills payable
(2013: the entire balance) were secured by the
pledge of the Group’s time deposit of approximately
HK$255.9 million (equivalent to RMB203.0 million)
as at 31 December 2014 (2013: approximately
HK$124.3 million (equivalent to RMB97.0 million)).
Further details of bills payable were included in
note 27.

25. FANFRIE - RERHEMEKRK
H-AREBEE)
RZFE-—MF+_A=+—H" B8Rt
FE -HehHMERREBEEXERE
LARIEE -

() FERBEIXIMFE=ZFZ2ES
#973,100,0007% 7T (#8 & R 49 A
R #58,000,000T ( — & — =
£F :© 4949,500,00058 TT(HE R
#9 A\ R #38,600,0007T ) ) AR A
RIBEERA ZAXEBHN—F
NEA &

(i) FUWARBBHPE-_ZT——FAhH
A=ZB2Z2REMEH RT—=
FNA AEEHEER—RE
B NERERERERERA
Al ) 2R AER TH
Ber—BREREA REAY
93,600,000/ TL(HHE R AR
#76,500,000C )c R =& — =
F+-_A=1+—HZARENKE
#763,300,0007% T (FHE R4 A
R #£49,400,0007T ) 2 5T A E At
ERFBE - HE_T—NF+=
A=+—BLFE KEMRE
#924,500,0007% T (FHE R A
FR#19,400,0007T ) B 2 BURI(E

26. EEFRTERRREREAS
ZEEE —4A&H
(a) EEBBITER

ANEEZ BN EEAEEEH®

—ET—=F: BEALH ) BAE

ER—FT—mF+_A=+—H

2 873 3 49255,900,000/% 7T

(A& M AR #203,000,0007T)

— T — =4 : #)124,300,000

BT (EE R A KR #97,000,000

TO)MERIF - BN EEZE—F

HIEEIIRMI 27 -
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26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - GROUP

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Pledged bank deposits (continued)

The Group's bank loans amounting to approximately
HK$25.6 million (equivalent to RMB20.0 million)
were secured by the pledge of the Group’s
time deposits of approximately HK$25.6 million
(equivalent to RMB20.0 million) as at 31 December
2013. No bank loans were secured by the pledge of
the Group’s time deposits as at 31 December 2014.
Further details of bank loans were included in note
29.

The effective interest rates of the pledged bank
deposits are at 2.55% (2013: 2.80%) per annum.

Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2014, included in cash and cash
equivalents of the Group is approximately HK$505.1
million (2013: approximately HK$545.4 million) of
bank balances denominated in RMB placed with the
banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency; however, under the PRC's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through the banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business in
the PRC.

27. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES -

26. SEHRITER

—mE+-A=1—HIFE

IRRERRE

ZEEE - A KEH @)

(a)

(b)

AR ITERE)
R_E—=F+=-_A=+—8"
REE 2 HRITEF#I25,600,000
7S T (HHE K AR %20,000,000
7T ) B AN 52 [ 4925,600,0005 7T
(FEER ARE20,000,0007T) 2
FHERERER - N _T—F
+-A=1+—8 #BERELRE
B E R ARG RITER R
TERZE—TFH BRI AH T
29 °

BERIFRTTERZERF X AT
F255%(ZFE—=F:2.80%)°

HeRBEELEEEE

R-E—WMF+=-_A=+—8"
AEEREMRSEEEBEEBE
AAREEDIER I T A B AR T
2 $R1T #5 #2 49505,100,0007% 7T
(ZZF — =4 : #9545,400,000
BIL)e ARBEWIET B AHER
ZEW R RIER R 2 HNE
EHMED R AETE - SIE R FEE
BRTE AEBELETFERATH
R EEITINEZERE 2 RITHA
REFBBHEME -

27. BHERRERS—AEH

GROUP
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mF —T—=F
FET FHIT
Accounts payable FEATER SR 33,311 23,422
Bills payable ANEE 356,778 278,043
390,089 301,465
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27. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES - 27. BENERRERREE -FK£EH (&)
GROUP (continued)
The Group was granted by its certain suppliers with credit ETHERRNASER T RN T30
periods normally ranging from 30 to 90 days (2013: 30 to Z290H(=Z—=% : 30290H) 2k
90 days). Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis BREf - R4 B H - Ik EH EI:T &
of the Group’s accounts payable at the reporting date is ZAREEFENERZER OO ¢
as follows:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F-nmE T =F
FET FAET
0 — 90 days 0%E90H 4,382 10,005
91 — 180 days 91HZ=180H 2,638 5,000
181 — 365 days 181 H£365H 11,489 5,825
Over 365 days 35365 H 14,802 2,592
33,311 23,422
The entire balance of the Group’s bills payable (2013: REFBZRENEENEFESLEGHG(ZE
the entire balance) were secured by the pledged time — =% BE#&R)HEUANEHREFERLY
deposits amounted approximately HK$255.9 million (2013: 255,900,000 T( =& — = F : 4
approximately HK$124.3 million) (note 26(a)), in which 124,300,000/ 7t ) 1 & #|( f =
approximately HK$75.6 million (2013: approximately 26(a)) H A 475,600,000%8 o( ==&
HK$153.8 million) were also guaranteed by independent — =4 : #9153,800,000 7T ) [F i
third parties. B E=FER
28. PROVISION FOR RECLAMATION 28. HRERBE —LTE£H
OBLIGATIONS - GROUP
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—NF —E—=F
FHET FAT
At 1 January Rn—H—H 85,249 74,021
Provision made during the year FE B 7,743 10,236
Payments IR (635) (1,328)
Exchange difference bE 5 =58 (1,374) 2,320
At 31 December nNt+=—A=+—H 90,983 85,249
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28. PROVISION FOR RECLAMATION
OBLIGATIONS - GROUP (continued)

Provision for land restoration, environmental restoration
and safety costs pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations
and current mining activities are determined by
management based on their best estimates. However,
in so far as the effect of land and the environment
from current mining activities becomes apparent in
future periods, the estimate of the associated costs
may be subject to change in the near term. The
amounts provided in relation to restoration and safety
costs are reviewed regularly based upon the facts and
circumstances available at the time and the provisions are
updated accordingly.

29. BANK LOANS - GROUP

28. MBRBERRBE-F5E @)

AR 48 B R B AR 71 N 3R B SR AR S A% P
EZ T ER REERIZEMAN
ZREHEEEESEGMER -
A RERE 2 RKEHBE LK
REFEZREENAKMEEFH
BoEERAZGRERAANSEH
B ARERRZERAZEES
BIEERMANEE RBEREHETRER
- AR REHD 5 R

29. RITER—FKH

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-F —T—=F
FExT FHETT
Bank loans repayable within one year AR —FRNEERI AR
and classified as current liabilities FEEBEZEITER 560,819 461,112
Analysed as follows: DATEAT
2014 2013
“E-mE “F-=%
Annual effective Annual effective
contractual contractual
interest interest
rate (%)  Maturity  HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity — HK$'000
EREH BEREH
FR = E &
(%) Ay TEx (%) A8 AT
Secured FEpini 444%-5.60% ondemand 188,913 - - -
BREREE
Secured B 6.16% 2015 50,428  5.60% - 6.60% 2014 204,852
Unsecured EHA 6.16% - 9.99% 2015 321,478  5.59% - 9.99% 2014 256,260
560,819 461,112
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BANK LOANS - GROUP (continued)

As at 31 December 2014, bank loans of approximately
HK$239.3 million (2013: approximately HK$204.9
million) were secured by certain accounts receivable (note
24) and a mining right of the Group (note 18) (2013:
secured by certain accounts receivable, a mining right
of the Group and pledged time deposits). Pursuant to
the loan agreements, approximately HK$188.9 million
(2013: Nil) of the secured bank loans were repayable on
demand.

As at 31 December 2014, bank loans of approximately
HK$560.8 million (2013: approximately HK$435.5
million) were guaranteed by independent third parties.

DEFERRED TAX - GROUP

As at 31 December 2014, all tax losses and deductible
temporary differences of the Group have no expiry dates
under the current tax legislation except for the tax losses
amounted to approximately HK$249.4 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB197.8 million) (2013: approximately
HK$490.0 million (equivalent to approximately RMB382.4
million)) incurred by three subsidiaries in the PRC, which
will expire after 5 years from the year in which the losses
were incurred. The Group has taxable losses arising in
Hong Kong of approximately HK$2.2 million (2013:
approximately HK$2.5 million). Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and the unpredictability of future profits.

29.

30.

ot 3% ¥R AR MY A

—mE+-A=1+—HIFE

MITER—XREH#E)

RZZE—MF+=_A=+—80"4
239,300,000 jt( — T——E' %
204,900,000/ 7T ) 2 |RITE K IARE
B2 HTrRKES (W‘IM)&EEP*
EFEEEMFIS)N T —=F: N
AEBEZETFTRUER  Eh—@K

BEREEKBEHFERIEAEIR IR
& 5% B 3K 1 &% #9188,900, ooo,% JT

(ZT—=F: B)ZAEMRITER

//\Tﬁkj:{E }&

R-ZZE—NME+—_A=+—H0"' %

560,800,000 L Z & — = F : 4

435,500,000;%7_5)Zfﬁﬂféffxﬁaé%j
= HiRRMEER

EEBIE - AEE

R-ZFE—mE+—-_A=+—H " BE
WMEHEED AEBFRAEHIESE
N o] HORE B 1 = B & R R ER - R
E@E%Bﬁ%@ﬂ?i%é%ﬁﬁiﬁ
249,400,000 ST(HHE R D AR
197,800,000 ( — T — = F: 4
490,000,000/ TT(HHE R 4 AR K
382,400,0007T ) FU RS TE E5 1B BR A1 - H
BREEEEFERTATEEM-
AEBREBELERRBEBEY
2,200,000/ T( = & — = F£: 4
2,500,000 ) AR BB EEL R
—EHEHBEEBZHNBERR RAEHE

RHOE N FH eI 8 pt 7% B B 1R R
EETREE -
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30. DEFERRED TAX — GROUP (continued)

Movement in deferred tax liabilities during the year is as

follows:

Impairments

30. JEEBIE — A ()
FRERBIRR A2 BT

Amortisation

of mining allowance on
rights and mining rights
property, in excess
plant and of related
equipment amortisation Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PRIERELL R PRUERE 8
ME- -BER BESLEE
REZHE BB st
THET THET THET
At 1 January 2013 RN—_E—=F—H—H — 19,264 19,264
Charged to profit or loss BB (F729)

(note 9) = 3,244 3,244
Exchange difference B 5 = %8 - 618 618
At 31 December 2013 and R-E—=F+_"A

1 January 2014 —f+—HE=ZE—N@

F—HA—H - 23,126 23,126
Credited to profit or loss s AE=(HE9)

(note 9) (7,283) 3,286 (3,997)
Exchange difference fE W, =% - (370) (370)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZZE—HFE+A

=+—H (7,283) 26,042 18,759

As at 31 December 2014, deferred tax liabilities
amounted to approximately HK$15.6 million (2013:
approximately HK$22.7 million) in respect of the
aggregate amount of temporary differences of
approximately HK$155.7 million (2013: approximately
HK$226.8 million) associated with the undistributed
earnings of certain of the Group's subsidiaries have not
been recognised. No deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised in respect of the differences because it is
considered that the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC will
not pay any dividend to their overseas holding companies
in the foreseeable future and the Group is in a position
to control the dividend policies of these subsidiaries and
it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B&
2014 2013
Number Number
of shares HKS'000 of shares HK$'000
Z3-RF _B-CE
k¥R TR G T
Authorised: Y
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013,  W-E—=%-f-H-=%
1January 2014 and 31 December 2014,  —=Ff+-A=+-H --%
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each —ME-A-BR-5-IF
+ZA=1-R SRERLI
BT EBR 30,000,000,000 3,000,000 30,000,000,000 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERARAR:
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013,  RZE-—=%-f-H =%
1January 2014 and 31 December 2014 ~ —=#+-fA=+-H --%
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each -NE-A-AR-F-m%
+ZA=+-R SRERELI
BT EBR 112,673,692 11,267 712,673,692 71,267

32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Eligible participants (“Participants”)
of the share option scheme include any employee of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries (including any
director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries). The
shareholders of the Company approved the termination
of the share option scheme adopted on 20 October 2004
(the "Old Scheme”) and adoption of the new share
option scheme (the "New Scheme") in place of the Old
Scheme at the annual general meeting on 27 May 2014.
The New Scheme became effective on 27 May 2014 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for ten years from that date until 26 May 2024.

32. EBRESTE
ARAHETREBRAE IR NG THA
SEEXBRNEMERZAERS2 A
ERERRE - BREEZEER
20E([BRE|)BEAR Tﬁﬁ&
AERRzEMRE(BEAR
s HAEMHE A TZ%%)?:%
—MFERA-TEREZBRRBFAE
b RRELIENR -_TTNF+ A
T RERMBRETEI(TEETE )
3 R A0 R R A 81 (T 3 et 8 ) bABR
REE - HFAEIRX T —HFRA
— T ERAER FRIFRE A E
o RAKHAZAMEE —_ T _MF
FAZHARBLETFDERR-
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 32. BRRESE (&)

146

Under the New Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may at its discretion grant options to the
Participants to subscribe for shares provided that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the New Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the
adoption date. The maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

The offer for grant of share options must be accepted
within 10 business days from the date of the offer, with
a payment of HK$1.0 as consideration for the grant. The
option period of an option may not end later than 10
years after the date of adoption of the New Scheme.

The subscription price for the shares under the New
Scheme shall be a price determined by the board of
directors of the Company in its absolute discretion but in
any event shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the offer date which must be
business day; (ii) the average of the closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets of the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 32. BRERTEI(®)
(@) Movements of the share options and their (a) BRESFRHETEE
exercise price
2014 —E—OE
Exercise
Granted  Exercised Lapsed At31 price of
Name or category of At1January duringthe duringthe duringthe  December Date of grant of Exercise period share
participant 2014 year year year 2014 share options of share options options
(note (i) (note (i) (note (ii)
i
R “E-mF
Z8-pf :
SRERAARG) -B-A  EARE  EAGE  ERAM SR BRERHAS BREGHEED BREGEE
(Witl) (Wieti) (Hiet(ii)
Director
£
Wu Jiahong 608,175 - - (608,175) - 3January 2008 3 January 2008 to  HK$5.9950
20 October 2014
Bx4 ZBENE ZEENE 5995087
-A=H -R=HE
Z%-RE
tA=tH
Other employee
HftES
Mr. Li 127,500 - - (127,500) - 3January 2008 3 January 2008 to  HK$5.9950
20 October 2014
¥ ZER)\E ZETNE  5.9950%%
—-A=H -R=RHE
Z2-PE
tA=+A

135,675 - - (135,675) -

Weighted average exercise
price HK$5.9950 - - HK$5.9950 -
MEFHTEE 5.9950% T - - 5.9950%7% -
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 32. BRRESE (&)
(@) Movements of the share options and their (a) BRESFRHETEEE)
exercise price (continued)
2013 —= =
Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At 31 Exercise price
At1January  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe ~ December Date of grant of Exercise period of of share
Name or category of participant 2013 year year year 2013 shareoptions share options options
(note (i) (note (i) (note (i)
R
S 2=
2= t2A
BEER AN -A-B  ERRE  ERAE ERRK  =t-B  BRERLAE BREOEEE EREOEE
(Witl) (Hieti) (Hiet(ii)
Director
EE
Wu Jiahong 608,175 - - - 608175  3January 2008 3January2008to  HK$5.9950
20 October 2014
Bx4 ZETNE ZEENE 5995057
—R=H -f=R%
—T-mE
tA=+H
Mr. Li 127,500 - - - 127500 3January 2008 3 January 2008to  HK$5.9950
20 October 2014
T4 ZETNE ZZENE 59950
-A=H -A=A%
—3-mF
+A=1H
Other employee
AftEE
Xu Lidi 608,175 - - (608,175) - 3January 2008 3 January 2008to  HK$5.9950
20 October 2014
i “EENE ZEENE 5995087
—-A=R —A=A%
It 2
tA=tH
1,343,850 = - (608,175) 735,675
Weighted average exercise price  HK$5.9950 - - HK$5.9950  HK$5.9950
IETHER 5.99507T - - 599507 5.9950%T
1 48 Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@) Movements of the share options and their
exercise price (continued)

Notes:

(i) No share options were exercised during the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

(i) All share options granted vest on the date of grant.

(i)  The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

(b) Financial effect of the share options

No share options were granted during the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. As at 31
December 2014, the Company had nil (2013:
735,675) share options outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining
share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of nil
(2013: 735,675) additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of nil (2013:
approximately HK$0.1 million) and share premium
of nil (2013: approximately HK$4.3 million), before
the netting-off of the related shares issue expenses
and the amount that would be transferred from
share option reserve to share premium.

33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS - GROUP AND

COMPANY

On 12 March 2010, the Company and Victory Investment
China Group Limited entered into a subscription
agreement in respect of the proposed issuance of zero
coupon bonds (“CB4") in the maximum principal amount
of HK$1,200.0 million. CB4 is repayable after 3 years
from the date of issuance or convertible into shares of
the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.1 per
share (subject to the standard adjustment clauses relating
to share sub-division, share consolidation and/or rights
issues).

On 2 December 2011, the Company issued zero coupon
bonds in the principal amount of HK$200.0 million (the
“Fifth Tranche of CB4").

32. BT &)

(a)

(b)

BRESBRHETEEE)

it

() BE-F-MER-F-=F
+=A=+—ALFE L
P (A A o

(i) FMERLZERESRLAR
AJTTfE

(i) FEARIE 2 (T AR A AR
S BATAL R SR B 2 LA
PR F B -

BREZOKEE
REZE-ZT-—NFER-T—=4F
+-A=+—HItEE IR K
BEMERE - R —HF
+—A=1+—8 " AR RRZ:t
EETTE(ZF —=F:
735,67517 ) RIT{E BEARAE - TR
NAREEZRARET 2HE1T
{EEA T AE AR A BRI T
AAREBRR(ZZE—=%F:
735,6750% ) TR E A FEINRAR
—Z— =4 : #100,0008T)
Rt 8( T —=ZF: 4
4,300,000 7T ) 0 Br A8 BE A% 17 32
TBRARZBESBEABREGG
ERERNHER -

33. TRREZ -FEERALQT

n=

T-2F=A+=A AAFR

Victory Investment China Group
Limitedt ERBETHRS AL HEAR
1,200,000,0008 T 2 T E B & &
(TR EZA )T RE R - A3k
REFABNET A PEF =F1RE
R AR REERR0.1ET(XREH
R - BRD& O R R IR
EFRGERR G ERAARR R -

R-EBE——F+-_A—H ARF%E
177K 4 %8 /5200,000,000/8 T2 B =
BEHF([ERMtTERES4L])-
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33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS - GROUP AND 33. fAREBEH - AEBERADQT

COMPANY (continued)

On 11 October 2012, the conversion price of CB4 was
adjusted from HK$0.1 per share to HK$1.0 per share
upon the approval of the capital reorganisation pursuant
to a special resolution passed on 10 October 2012.

The Company has early redeemed the Fifth Tranche
of CB4 by settling off with deposits paid for potential
investments and the other receivables at HK$200.0
million on 14 November 2013. A gain on redemption of
convertible bonds of approximately HK$129,000 which
represented the difference between the redemption
price allocated to liability components amounted to
approximately HK$191.0 million and the total carrying
amounts of the liability components of convertible bonds
amounted to approximately HK$191.1 million has been
credited to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2013. Upon
the early redemption of the convertible bonds, the
difference of approximately HK$15.3 million between
the carrying amounts of equity components included in
equity component of convertible bonds of approximately
HK$24.4 million and the redemption price allocated to
equity components amounted to approximately HK$9.0
million was released to accumulated losses/retained
profits.

The Fifth Tranche of CB4 was valued at the redemption
date by an independent professional valuer. The fair value
of the liability component of the Fifth Tranche of CB4
was calculated using discounted rate method.

The initial recognition of Fifth Tranche of CB4 in the
consolidated statement of financial position was
calculated as follows:

(%)

R-ZE——F+A+—8 REX=
E-—_FtATHRBZEIRESR
RELERAEARR - AIRRER4Z B
BEHEKR0.1IETHAEEEM.08
7TEO

RAARERZ_ZE—=%+—A+MWWH
REBELOERAHMUTBRBKESSL K
200,000,000 TH#EEREERED
1% K& E fib fE UL 5K I8 - FE [B] AT $R A%
BEHFERISWNR41129,00058 7T Ao
TAIMRRES 2 BEH D < BREL
191,000,000/ jt E2 & E 30 5 B8R ™
{E%7191,100,000/8 T 2 M=% - 2
HAHE—_E—=F+-_A=+—8H
FFEZHFEE2EKER RNIZRE
Bl Z A MRESE BRSO EHER
FEAI AR B AR 7 509 924,400,000
BTESE TR ZEBREL
9,000,000/ JT 2 # 58 915,300,000
BB AZRAER REBEH -

% A B AT MR (R AR B EL B B
ST 8 4 T 1A - 3 Bt AT AR
B4z BEBH 2 AT EERFRE
FREE -

RERA MR RV T ERE DR
BMREHATHRAT A E -

CB4
HK$'000
AR ER4
FHET
Proceeds of issue BITAT1S R 700,000
Equity component R ER 1D (90,100)
Liability component =R ) 609,900
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33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS - GROUP AND 33. AIERES - SEERAEA T
COMPANY (continued) (&)
Movement of liability component is as follows: BEHHZESHNT
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NE —E—=F
FHET FBTT
1 January n—H—H - 184,050
Interest expenses FEFRZ - 7,072
Early redemption during the year FRIREER - (191,122)
At 31 December Rt+_A=1+—H - -
Interest expense on the convertible bonds is calculated BHE—_T—=F+_-_A=1+—HI®#
using the effective interest method by applying the ErREs s M B E i EBER
effective interest rates of approximately 4.42% to the MESE  RFE AR ELS4E ED
liability components of the Fifth Tranche of CB4 for the 2 BERREFELAL A42%ETE o

year ended 31 December 2013.

34. RESERVES 34. #&
(a) Group (a) *x&£H

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the REBNNFEE RBEFE 2

movements therein for the current and prior years ERESEFNGEE T ERR 24

are presented in the consolidated statement of EREREBBIRANELR -

changes in equity of the consolidated financial

statements.

() Share premium account of the Group includes () ARARREEBITRHE
the premium arising from issue of shares of b 7R EBANER 2 &
the Company at a premium. P BAR

(i) Capital redemption reserve arose from (i) FEEEARD ARG EEH
the purchase of the Company’s share for MEAZEARNELFHE Ty
cancellation and represents a transfer from B AN R ZREB SR
the Company's retained profits equivalent to A - BEEHEE R B E T
the nominal value of the shares purchased for ZRAn 2 A
cancellation.
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34. RESERVES (continued) 34. #EE)

152

(@) Group (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(iv)

Contributed surplus of the Group arose as
a result of (i) the Group reorganisation in
1997 and represents the difference between
the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued under the reorganisation scheme and
the nominal value of the aggregate share
capital of the subsidiaries then acquired;
(ii) the Group reorganisation in 2007 and
represents the reduction of capital of HK$64.1
million pursuant to a special resolution passed
on 1 November 2007; and (iii) the Group
reorganisation in 2012 and represents the
reduction of capital of HK$641.4 million
pursuant to a special resolution.

The capital reserve arose from the capitalisation
of retained profits of a PRC subsidiary.

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations,
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required, at
the discretion of their directors, to appropriate
a certain percentage of their profit after tax, if
any, to the statutory reserve fund for the future
development and capital expenditure on staff
welfare facilities purposes.

Pursuant to regulations in the PRC, certain
subsidiaries of the Group were required to
make a transfer of production maintenance
fee to other reserve based on RMB8.5 per ton
(2013: RMB8.5 per ton) of raw coal mined less
the depreciation expenses of the underground
coal mining equipment. According to the
China Accounting Standards Explanatory
Notice No. 3 and other relevant regulations
issued by the Ministry of Finance in June 2009,
effective for the financial periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2009, instead of making an
appropriation of funds from retained earnings
to reserve, production maintenance fee and
other expense of similar nature are required to
be charged to cost of production and credited
to reserve. Accordingly, the related funds are
appropriated from retained profits.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

(a)

FEE(E)

(iii)

(iv)

(iv)

AEBEZHABBKRTIRERR
IWR—hAhtFETZE
EEA EREEEEAR
FFEARE 2B BEITRG
HAEEMEEBENBARZ
BABEEZZ58 ()R
—ETLFETZEEE
W THEBRE_STLF
+—A—HBRBZERR
& 2R 2 I 464,100,000
BT RINR—_E——F
EITZEEEAR  JHERE
Rl RZERB DR AR
641,400,000/ 7T °

BRI BN —EHE
P 8 X B B 4R B2 Ot A B AR
femESE -

RIBEBETEER  A&HE
RABZHBRRIEREE
EMBERBERT  BEB
BEM(ME) 2HE TP
BEREELRTEENUER
BERZA  REARFHZIA
EBTRAREZA -

BERBER  AEBET
B AREKEHRRE
B ARESST(ZZ
—=F: ARS8 55T)
I TR R 2 T ER
X GEERGEERER
ol  ARIBEP B SR
Y BIR TR 5355 N BA BB
—ETNFEANABRMBL A
—ETThAFE—F—A=%HE
BB B AR 2
HRBERG  BRgnE
REMBUME 2B R
ANEERARGHER - mIE
BRBEFPEESEH
H-AiL BERESD AR
Bia FEL B
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34. RESERVES (continued) 34. RfE(E)
(b) Company (b) AT
Equity
component
Capital Share of
Share redemption Contributed option convertible Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve bonds losses Total
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
gx TREES

RoEE REORRE  SARB RRERE ZBERG  ZHER aE
TEL TEL TEL  TEn TEL  TEn  TER

At 1 January 2013 R-E-=%-A-H 235,334 50 491,030 3,847 24,351 - 754,612
Early redemption of REEORRES

convertible bonds - - - - (9,008) - (9,008)
Transfer upon redemption  FE[R A R AR A

of convertible bonds - - - - (15,343) 15,343 -

Transfer from contributed  {E& \ RAEERE
surplus to accumulated 2B

losses - - (5,354) - - 5,354 -
Forfeit of share option R UkEfRiE - - - (1,741) - 1,741 =
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (22,438) (22438)
At 31 December 2013 and R=E-=%1_F
1 January 2014 “T-RRZE-ME
—-A—H 235,334 50 485,676 2,106 - - 723,166

Transfer from contributed A BHEEE
surplus to accumulated ~ B3HEE

losses - - (18,433) - - 18,433 -
Lapse of share option BRELN - - - (2,106) - 2,106 =
Loss for the year EEFR - - - - - (20,539) (20,539)
At31December2014 ZE-MEFZA=t-8 235334 50 467,243 - = - 102627
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34. RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company (continued)

34. f#E &)
(b) EAF(E)

154

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as
a result of the reorganisations referred to in note
34(a) and represents (i) the excess of the fair value
of the shares of the subsidiaries then acquired,
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange thereof; (ii) the reduction of
capital pursuant to a special resolution passed
on 1 November 2007; and (iii) the reduction of
capital pursuant to a special resolution passed on
10 October 2012. Under the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 (as amended), the contributed surplus is
also available for distribution to the owners of the
Company. However, the Company cannot declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus, if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

Details of share premium account and capital
redemption reserve of the Company are set out in
note 34(a) above.

Pursuant to the special resolution, the directors
of the Company be and are hereby authorised
to use the amount standing to the credit of the
contributed surplus in any manner as may be
permitted by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981
and the bye-laws of the Company including,
without limitation, eliminating or setting off
the accumulated losses of the Company from
time to time without further authorisation from
the shareholders. During the year, contributed
surplus of approximately HK$18.4 million (2013:
approximately HK$5.4 million) was set off with the
accumulated losses.
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NN E) A #E 1T Y §E34(a) Pt
BHEAZBABGBTE(E R
FTUBERKT B A RIS 2 A BB
HRWEBZENB AR METZ
RABIDEEZ 8 : ()RE
—ET+F+—A—HBBAZE
PSRRI IT ZBRANER  Kiii)
BER-_ZE——F+A+HEAE
A RRBR LT Z BRANE R o
BEBREZE—NLN\—FRRE
(RRIEET) A BRI A DR
FAAGHEBA AWM WER
IATER - BIARRRTEEHA
BHPE RSN E SRS
K

() REEX(THBIHER R
EHIRN R EEEER
R

() HEEZAIZREEER
HBEEREZETERARRK
s (B 2 #ME -

BREARRRMDER N EAEE A
EEN EXHiFE34(a)-

BEBEFIARE AARESEUE
BRELZARE—NN—FRDERAR
REZARIMA A geRF ] 2 ER AR
FRSARGY &R 2 EMERER
BARRE —FPEE BEETRER
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35. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

Jinfeng, a 90% owned subsidiary of the Company, has
material non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The NCI of
all other subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by the
Group are considered to be immaterial.

35. FIERESR
AR BB EIO% R~ M B A 74 L
A EANFELTRER(HEERE
B FMAHMGEEAEEES
100% %5 7 B BB A 5] 2 3E1E AR AE 25
W ATREA o

RS L RANBARZHBEER
(REBAED A R Y80 8t

Summarised financial information in relation to Jinfeng
and its subsidiaries, before intra-group eliminations, is

presented below: N
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-F —E—=F
FHET FBIT
For the year ended 31 December BZE+-A=+—HILLEE
Revenue W %5 475,418 322,897
Loss for the year FRNEE (261,137) (240,834)
Loss allocated to NCI DELE IR E R 2 B 1R (26,114) (24,083)
For the year ended 31 December BE+t-A=1+—HLEE
Cash flows from operating activities KEEBZRENRE 82,758 11,271
Cash flows from investing activities WEEBRZHESRE (291,502) 22,938
Cash flows from financing activities MEEBRERE 168,794 (128,713)
Net cash outflows REeEnHFE (39,950) (94,504)
As at 31 December R+=-HA=+—H
Current assets MENE EE 967,605 1,007,218
Non-current assets EMBNEE 1,239,695 1,304,267
Current liabilities VEI=RI (2,030,315) (1,910,897)
Non-current liabilities SEREEE (118,202) (73,097)
Net assets BEEFE 58,783 327,491
Accumulated balance of NCI SIS RS 7 Bt iE s 8,192 35,551

RMEEREREMRAT 2014FER

155



T
Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

36. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 36. WiE—REMEB AR

On 16 December 2013, the Group has conditionally
agreed inject approximately HK$152.1 million to Huirui
(the “Capital Injection”), a company incorporated in
PRC which principally engages in trading of purchased
coal, construction materials and accessories of mining
machineries. Upon the completion of the Capital Injection
on 16 December 2013, the registered capital of Huirui
would increase from RMB5.0 million to RMB125.0 million
and would be owned as to 96% by the Group and as to
4% by NCI. The acquisition was made with the aims to
develop the trading of purchased coal business through
Huirui.

As at the acquisition date, the Group has control over
Huirui through nominating members to the board of
directors of Huirui. The details of net assets acquired and
goodwill at the acquisition are as follows:

RZZE—=F+=-A+H X&EE
ERHREMRERITALY
152,100,000/8 7T ([ BARZEA ) ZA
RIARPEGFMEZ 2 AF  EEH
EWBARKE S BEME REEA
HHEE - ERXFARTE—=F+=
B+ NBRElE Bz ZfMEXRSE
B A K #5,000,0007C & & A B ¥
125,000,0007T * M 4% Fh 7~ £ (& B JE 47
MR D B EBI6% 4% - W iE 5
EERAERERBARRE HEK -

REERR AEEFRMIERES
FIREKEMEGER BB 2E
EFERRIER 8 2 FIEEYIa
I

HK$'000

T IT

Total consideration BB 152,148
Fair value of net assets acquired Fri i S EE 2 A TE (148,215)
Goodwill (Note 17) EE(faE17) 3,933
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36. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 36. WEE—REIMIEBAT(2&)
RUBEEZABIEERABZA

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities

arising from the acquisition are as follows: FEIT
Fair value
HK$'000
AFHE
FAT
Property, plant and equipment L ER N 113
Inventories FE 1,121
Prepayments, deposits and other BNRIE EHE Rk
receivables H th & W KT8 80,085
Amount due from a director B —REEHIE -
Amount due from an equity owner N — B iERER AKIE =
Amount due from non-controlling R FE 2= A% 4 2 SRR
interest 1,268
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary e U —E[R) 8 A R/ IB 150,430
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEEE 48
Other payables and accruals H b & 5RIE R FEET B A (78,649)
Provision for tax A (25)
Net assets FEE 154,391
Less: Non-controlling interest B FEPERR AR (6,176)
Net assets acquired FT g S B E 148,215

Total consideration satisfied by:
Deposits

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition:

ATHIRBIBEZERE

o

R EEL < RS RMAFHE:

152,148

Cash consideration paid ERBReRE -
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriiEIR & &

ReEEEE 48

48

As Huirui was inactive since August 2014, based on
assessment of the Group’s management, the goodwill of
approximately HK$3.9 million arose from the acquisition
has been fully impaired during the year ended 31
December 2014 (note 17).

HRERE —E—NE N\ A RRERKT
TER BEASEEEENH 8
UG B8 B £ 2 72 493,900,000/ 7T E
REE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—A8H1t
FE2EREGERHMEI7).
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37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 37. REHNEIE
As at 31 December 2014, total future minimum lease R-E—NNE+-_BA=+—H K&
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in B R E AR K S H L 5h it L
respect of land and buildings and office equipment FERBNEZEESNS B BRFEBL
payable by the Group are as follows: R ABREIBRIAT
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—MF —F—=
FHERT AT
Within one year —F R 2,090 2,063
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEFERF
(EEMEREEAN) 1,150 727
More than five years il Ak 13 26
3,253 2,816
The Group leases certain properties under operating REERBREHOHEES TWE-
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to MO ZEBYLTEHE—Z+F R
ten years, without option to renew the lease term at fEm B TR EEBAEL - FHA L ML A
the expiry date. None of the lease includes contingent HE
rentals.
1 58 Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have capital
expenditure commitments in relation to the purchase
of property, plant and equipment contracted but not
provided for, net of deposit paid (2013: approximately
HK$29.1 million).

On 10 September 2014, the Company entered into a
joint venture agreement with two independent third
parties (collectively the “JV Parties”) to establish two
companies, the joint venture manufacture company
(the “Manufacture Company”) and the joint venture
sales company (the “Sales Company”). The JV Parties
intend, through the two companies, to explore the
liquefied natural gas tank containers related business.
Upon completion of establishment of these companies,
the maximum registered capital of the Manufacture
Company will be RMB100.0 million in which the Group
will contribute 27% of the registered capital or RMB27.0
million to the Manufacture Company, while the maximum
registered capital of the Sales Company will be RMB10.0
million in which the Group will contribute 51% of
the registered capital or RMB5.1 million to the Sales
Company. These companies have not yet established as
of the date of the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
significant capital commitments as at 31 December 2014
(2013: Nil).

38. EAREIE

R-—E—WmE+=—_A=+—H &&
EYEEHEEME BERKHEZ
EEIHERBEEARNAT AEGIR
ENEE N DT — = F: 8
29,100,0005# 7T ) ©

R—ZFE—NFNA+H ARAIEW
BELE=H(BBEIEEF 1AL
BEWEKME AT BIE &8RS
ARA([REQAT D REEHELQT
([HEAT D - A2 FEERAMAE A
AERBRERARENSEAEBE
e RTERKLZ AR &iERQF
LEATFMEABEAEARK
100,000,0007T ' A AREE iR R
REHEFMERZ27%H AR
27,000,0007¢ * M8 E A 7 Z & At
it & A # & A R #10,000,000T » H
FAEEFEEEATHERFMER
2Z51%3k A R#¥E5,100,0007T ° 4R &
BIgRR B ZE AR RARAAL ©

BREXFAHEEN R_ZE—WF
TZA=+—R AEEAEIWE
REXAPFE(ZT—=%F: §)-
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - GROUP 39. BEA LR S —&A&KH

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BrANER A SRR E MBI E 2
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the RS RSN ANEBEEEALTR
Group had the following material transactions with FAREF—FEBEUATEARRS :

related parties during the year and in the prior year:

(a) Compensation of key management (a) TEEBAEZHE
personnel
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-IF —T-=F
FHET TET
Total remuneration of key FRNETEEEBAEZ
management during the year Bl 4858 8,572 8,480
(b) Purchase of coal (b) BEHRR
As at 31 December 2013, included in prepayments, R=F—Z=FF-A=+—8"
deposits and other receivables were deposits BNFOR R REAMEKE0R
amounted to approximately HK$4.9 million @ﬁ.ﬁ,ﬂ%j@‘fgﬁﬁﬁiﬁ—\%ﬁ%ﬂ%
(equivalent to approximately RMB3.9 million) arising %\th{ﬁ%’w%:’:ABO0,000?%E(*E
from the purchase of coal paid to a supplier, in 2R #) ARM3,900,0007T) " A&
which a director of a major subsidiary of the Group SE-HEBEMBARC—EE
is a director of this supplier. The director of a major FRANEHLIES- %%_
subsidiary of the Group has been the director of this AEEMBRAZZEERA =
supplier since August 2010. The deposits were paid %—%i)\ﬂﬁ_ﬁ}%‘{{%ﬁ{\#\ﬁ’gﬁz
in the Group’s normal course of business. B - ZEEAAKER KR
B@igH X ft o
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40. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH

41.

FLOWS - GROUP
Major non-cash transactions

There was no material non-cash transaction during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, convertible
bonds of HK$200.0 million was settled with deposits
paid for potential investments of approximately HK$69.6
million and other receivables of approximately HK$130.4
million; other receivables of approximately HK$223.8
million were settled with other payables; consideration
paid for acquisition of a subsidiary of approximately
HK$152.1 million was settled with deposits paid.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@) On 3 March 2015, Kaisheng, an indirectly non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has
reached an agreement with an independent third
party and all existing shareholders of Baiyitong,
to transfer certain obligations and rights under
the capital injection agreement entered in January
2013, from Kaisheng to the independent third party
(note 20(b)). Upon the transactions completed on
3 March 2015, Kaisheng is entitled to 23.11% of
equity interests in Baiyitong.

(b) On 18 March 2015, Xinfa, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into
an agreement with an independent third party.
Pursuant to the agreement, both parties agreed
to wind up the jointly incorporated company in
Indonesia and the independent third party agreed
to repay all the capital injected by Xinfa in the
joint ventue company, amounted to approximately
HK$26.6 million (equivalent to US$3.42 million),
and handle the winding up procedures within 60
days since 18 March 2015 (note 22).

40. BERERME - FEH

41.

FEFBEERH
R-ZZE—NME+=-_A=1+—HILFE
MEERERERH -

REZ-_Z—=F+—"A=+—H1t
£ [Z 200,000,000 7T 2 A] ¥ % (&
FUNBEEEBEEREZENIEESY
69,600,000/% 7T & £ th f& U 5K 1B 49
130,400,000/ 7t : H il & UL 5K B 49
223,800,00078 JT LA H th & 1~ F 1B E
B WE—FHNBRARENZREY
152,100,000/ 7T LAE R & (& ©

WREHBREE

() R—ZT—AFE=A=H ARQ7
M2 EHREHN B R R SR E
— BB E=F RAERBER
BRRZET R LAEES R
T —=F—RARMZEREA
MmN ETES K ER T B
F=H(RKFE200) R -F
—AE=ZA=BERX 5% 5l
BB AR 22311 %M AR

(b) W"—_Z—ARE=ZA+/N\B AR
RIZEHENBARFEE—F
BN E=Z ARk RIE R
HEHREERRBRAERE
HEZFMAIZIHEERT - Kz
BUE=FRER=ZE—AHF=
A+ N\B%60KKN  REFMA
M EMZEERRIEAN
& 7K26,600,000/8 T 4 & R
3,420,000 E=7T) MR
REEEEF (RMHEE22)0
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42. B EKRERE

162

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
results from both its operating and investing activities.
The Group does not have written risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the board of directors
of the Company meets periodically to analyse and
formulate strategies to manage the Group's exposure
to market risks, including changes in interest rates and
currency exchange rates. Generally, the Group introduces
conservative strategies on its risk management. The
Group’s exposure to market risk is kept to minimum. The
Group has not used any derivatives or other instruments
for hedging purposes. The Group does not issue
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group's exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary
course of its operations and its investing activities.

Carrying amounts of the financial assets presented
in statement of financial position are net of
impairment losses, if any. The Group minimises its
exposure to the credit risk by rigorously selecting
the counterparties, performing ongoing credit
evaluation on the financial conditions of its debtors
and tightly monitoring the ageing of the receivables.
Follow-up actions are taken in case of overdue
balances. In addition, management reviews the
recoverable amount of the receivables individually
or collectively at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents is also limited because the
Group's pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents are all deposited with major banks
located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit
risk to a desirable level.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has a certain concentration of credit risk
as 81.8% (2013: 84.0%) of the Group's accounts
receivable was due from a major customer of the
Group.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from accounts
receivables is set out in note 24.

At each reporting date, the Group reviews
prepayments, deposits and other receivables for
evidence of impairment on an individual and
collective base. As at 31 December 2014, the
Group determined deposits and other receivables
of approximately HK$42.1 million as individually
impaired (2013: approximately HK$12.0 million).
Base on this assessment, impairment loss of
approximately HK$31.5 million was recognised
during the year (2013: approximately HK$11.9
million).

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.
Financial instruments bearing variable rates and
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of the
Group’s bank loans are disclosed in note 29. The
Group's exposures to fair value interest rate risk and
cash flow interest rate risk on financial liabilities are
minimal. The directors of the Company consider the
Group's exposures to cash flow interest rate risk on
bank balances as follows:

42. RBEREE#)

(a)

(b)

EER(EZ)
AEBZEERBRIEXSER
FEZERIE R 2 - RiRkEH
K AEEELETEERRES
ZIER REAREE —ZFE
EEERKERZ81.8%(-F
— =% :84.0%)°

EEAEEABERERESZ
EERBRZE - FTHEREHR
BizE24 o

RE®RE B AEEZER &
SREERIBMARE BHER
H {th B W SR 2 A IR R B B
Z - R-_ZET—NE+_A=+—
B ANEEREENBEZIZS
N E b fE R FRIE 4)42,100,000/8
JTL(ZZF— =% : 412,000,000
PETT) o AR IR ML IEFT S - FATER
Rk (B &5 48 %493 1,500,000/%8 (=
T—=4: #11,900,000/8 7T )

A 2= @by
MEEREEBTAZAFENK
RaenEeRmEHN R md
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses and

the Company’s loss after tax and accumulated losses
to a possible change in interest rates of +/- 0.5%

—mE+-A=1—HIFE

42. MBEBREE®)
(b) FIEmB(4H)
B 5T

TREMEFIR AEERK
BEBRZERARARA AR
Mgz BERRFTEEEFIET
e EIR4/-05%( B — =4

(2013: +/- 0.5%), with effect from the beginning of +/-0.5% ) B8 2 BURE - L TR
the year. The calculations are based on the Group’s %FK'?E lﬁéi&i HEEEA Z8R1T
bank balances held at the reporting date. All other EEAETE - PR A Hfth n] B R E (R
variables are held constant. %T\*ﬁﬁ
Group Company
rEEH b NG|
(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/ (Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
increase in  increase in  increase in  increase in
Loss after Accumulated  Loss after Accumulated
tax losses tax losses
HK$"000 HK$°000 HK$"000 HK$°000
BB
ﬁﬁéﬁﬁ 25 EE BE Rt EE
HD)/ B (HD)/ B (HD)/8m (HD)/ M
TET TET TET TET
31 December 2014 —E-mF
+-RA=+—H
+0.5% +0.5% (2,624) (2,624) (13) (13)
-0.5% -0.5% 2,624 2,624 13 13
31 December 2013 —E—=F
+-A=1+-H
+0.5% +0.5% (2,057) (2,057) (12) (12)
-0.5% -0.5% 2,057 2,057 12 12

The assumed changes in interest rates are
considered to be reasonably possible based on
observation of current market conditions and
represents the management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate over the
period until the next annual reporting date.

The sensitivity analysis included in the consolidated
financial statements of the year ended 31 December
2013 has been prepared on the same basis.

The Group manages interest rate risk by monitoring
its interest rate profile regularly. The Group adopts
a policy of ensuring that most of its borrowings are
on a fixed rate basis. The policies to manage interest
rate risk have been followed by the Group since
prior year and are considered to be effective.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

ﬂTZiLF““EENQﬁﬁﬁﬁ

%518

E’ﬁ%%@@%ﬁﬁT

Mifﬁ

EEHI SRR AR TEED

S o

BE_T—=F+"A=+—HIt#F
B2 B mRAE 2 HREDN
TERERELERR -

KEILL%%H
% o AN 5= B R A
%@Fﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂiﬂﬁgﬁ

A EIEE AR
—IHER ERE

° IEI8

MERBREERRE LFEEBARE
Binf - BRRRIT2BR-



Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

()

(d)

Foreign currency risk

The sales and purchases of the Group are
predominantly in RMB which is the functional
currency of the related group entities. The directors
of the Company therefore are of the opinion
that the Group’s and Company’s sensitivity to the
changes in foreign currencies are low and the Group
and Company do not hedge their foreign currency
risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of
its financial obligations, and also in respect of its
cash flow management.

The Group's objective is to ensure adequate funds
to meet commitments associated with its financial
liabilities. Cash flows are closely monitored on an
ongoing basis. The Group will raise funds from
the realisation of its assets if required. As at 31
December 2014, the Group and the Company
had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$372,966,000 and HK$1,768,000 respectively.
The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on
its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from
operations and from the measures adopted by the
directors of the Company as detailed in note 3.1
to the consolidated financial statements to meet its
debt obligations.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered as
effective in managing liquidity risks.

ot 3% ¥R AR MY A

—mE+-A=1+—HIFE

42. RBEREE#)

()

(d)

SMEE LB
AEEEETEUEBREEE
BZNEEBARKET A
o ARAREFTRA AKER
ARPHINERE 2 FRE R
1K - B 7N SR [ Ko AN R R 4
HhELINE R o

RBEEEE
mﬁéﬁﬂ 2 ) BN 5 B K BE

Hﬁé&ﬁ@%ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂ
BITemaEREETcRBRE
o REERBEEEMBEER
HemeEEEmMAZRBESR
ﬁnu °

REBZ ERRREERCES
Xt e@aE s BEAE AR
RIERBFEREETYEERER
BE-AEERRUERERERE
NEEER RZE—WF+=
A=+—B xEBEEXRAEIZ
RBEEFEDNAOR
372,966,000/ 7T 1,768,000
BL-AEEZRDESETEZM
ARERERANRBIEERET
E%%%ﬁhﬂthﬂﬁFﬁ
WiRa M BmAME3 2R RE
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42. IEEMEREE)

(d) Liquidity risk (continued) d) ABELERKRE)
The table below summarises the maturity profile of TEAES L) RITIR R E R it
the Group’s and Company’s financial liabilities based REBENAGEHEEZ D E
on contractual undiscounted payments: (=
Group
At 31 December 2014
T5E
W-2-mE+=A=1-8
Within 6 Total
months or 6-12 undiscounted Carrying
on demand months  Over 1 year amount Discount amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
~ERR
FREX ~E S iig]

&8  T-EA SR kR it HHEfE
TR FERL FERL TR TR TR

Non-derivative financial {44 REE

liabilities
Accounts and bills ENRTRERE
payables 390,089 - - 390,089 - 390,089
Other payables and EthEMFER
accruals fE;HER 471,654 - - 471,654 - 471,654
Amount due to an Fﬁ Gl ING ]
associate - - 99,442 99,442 - 99,442
Bank loans RITER 384,124 192,955 - 577,079 (16,2600 560,819
Total At 1,245,867 192,955 99,442 1,538,264 (16,260) 1,522,004
Group
At 31 December 2013
A£E
RZF-=E+ZR=1-H
Within 6 Total
months or on 6-12 undiscounted Carrying
demand months  Qver 1 year amount Discount amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
~MERR
IEER NE AR
(=4 +Z{ER HR—F Be8 ez KEE

TR TR TR TR TR TR

Non-derivative financial #fT££RERE

liabilities
Accounts and bills ENEZRZE

payables 301,465 - - 301,465 - 301,465
Other payables and EihENZER

accruals B ER 548 649 - 11,532 560,181 - 560,181
Amount due to an B TR AT

associate - = 38,439 38,439 - 38,439
Bank loans RITER 368,617 105,192 - 473,809 (12,697) 461,112
Total it 1,218,731 105,192 49,971 1,373,8% (12,697) 1,361,197
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42. IEKREREE)

(d) Liquidity risk (continued) d) REBELEREE)
Company
At 31 December 2014
N
R-2-BE+ZA=1-H
Within 6 Total
months or 6-12 undiscounted Carrying
on demand months  Over 1 year amount Discount amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AMEAREE
EXEE AET-fA SRN-F AFRALE it e
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
Non-derivative FTEemas
financial liabilities
Other payables and HitENT B R e ER
accruals 4,635 - - 4,635 - 4,635
Amount due to a N —-RRBARNE
subsidiary - - 15,033 15,033 - 15,033
4,635 - 15,033 19,668 - 19,668
At 31 December 2013
RZB-ZE+t-A=1-H
Within 6 Total
months or on 6-12 undiscounted Carrying
demand months  Over 1 year amount Discount amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NMEARSE
ZRER ~ET=EA SN—F ARREE Vit RAE
TEn TER TEn TEn TEn TARL
Non-derivative ¥ieemas
financial liabilities
Other payablesand ~ EAMEMFEREFER
accruals 5,237 - - 5,237 - 5,237

Business risk

(e) KRB

AEEZEREBRNTELE
KSR E BT A R =B AR K E

(e)
The Group’s primary businesses are the production
and sales of coal and the trading of purchased

coal in the PRC. The Group’s financial results are o RER VI RE BT IHEE
influenced by the changes in prices of coal, as well FNAEEEAREHEETE R

HR R BHASENTBEEER
fﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁﬁ% #F
ERERARZBENTE -

as by the Group’s ability to maintain or renew all
requisite certificates, permits and business licences
from relevant regulatory authorities in the PRC
which is required for the Group to operate in the
production and sales of coal in the PRC.

BESFERERAT 2014FE5H 167



T
Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

for the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE_—F—WF+=—H=+—HILFE

43. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 43. RERAS 2 EMEERTR

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEHSE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company’s AEERARTR-_ZE—NER=F
financial assets and liabilities recognised as at 31 —=F+_A=+t—BHRAZeHME
December 2014 and 2013 may also be categorised as ENBEREEIAR N ET
follows. See notes 3.14 and 3.19 for explanations about SE-FHAeRIASBRUOMTER
how the category of financial instruments affects their BRETBEZHMEZ2HM 314K
subsequent measurement. 3.19 ¢

Group Company

rEE AT

2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-NFE ZT=F —B-OmF —T=

FRET THBIT FET T

Financial assets SRMEE
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ A - H & £ B & & 26,566 26,566 - -
Loans and receivables ER K W RIE
— Accounts and bills receivables —FEUBR TR N =48 169,995 298,216 - -
— Deposits and other receivables — — 3% 4 K H b FEUL
I 147,055 201,020 - -
~ Pledged bank deposits —BEEMRITIFR 255,922 124,286 - -
— Amounts due from subsidiaries  — FEUZ BT B A &)
PIA - - 398,363 398,363
- Cash and cash equivalents —BHENREE
5 H 524,835 580,835 2,576 3,215
1,124,373 1,230,923 400,939 401,578
Financial liabilities El =R
Financial liabilities measured at REHEAANFTEZ
amortised cost CA =N
— Accounts and bills payables —ENERRER 390,089 301,465 - -
- Other payables and accruals — B At T RIE
JEETE F 471,654 560,181 4,635 5,237
- Bank loans —IRITEK 560,819 461,112 - -
— Amount due to a subsidiary — N —HE
AZ|EIE - - 15,033 -
— Amount due to an associate — [ — A &
ATEIE 99,442 38,439 - -
1,522,004 1,361,197 19,668 5,237
1 68 Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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43. ZERHI 2 EHEER TR
SESE#)

43. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(continued)
(a) Financial instruments not measured at fair (a) WHZEAFEFEZESHMIA
value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
include available-for-sale financial assets (non-
current), accounts and bills receivables, deposits and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, accounts and bills payables, other
payables and accruals, amount due to an associate
and bank loans.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying value
of accounts and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, accounts and bills payables, other
payables and accruals, amount due to an associate
and bank loans are approximates to their fair value.

The available-for-sale financial assets (non-current)
are measured at cost less impairment at each
reporting date because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant and the probability
of the various estimates is significant. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the fair value cannot be reliably measured.

YIRAFHEAEZERTAE
EAftHEeREEGERE )
R R R N RE TRk EME
WIE - EEARITER B
EReFEERB BHERIARE
& HENRIENETER
N — B 2 A RIRIB M RITE

e
A °

RN IEE RREH - s MR
SR FREEMEEREA B
ERRTEX R LkReFE
HE BAERERR HidE
NHOR R ERH &M - B — R
ERBIFERRITERZEEE
EE N FERE

AL E S BEE RSN E
#5 B BERAR B
RERAF (K2 A BREA
X BRI 2 7B MRS -
Bl AR FAEERADTER
EASEHE -
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43. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 43. RERAS 2 EMEERTR
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEBE#)
(continued)
b) At 31 December 2014 and 2013, all financial b) R_E-—NEFR-_ZFT—=F+—
instruments are carried at amounts not materially AR=+—RH FEeRIAZK
different from their fair values except as follows: HESRAEAFEL/ERNER 2

SRR - MDA T EDIERRSD -

Fair value measurements

as at 31 December 2014
Group Company categorised into
R-2-R%
tZA=t-H
48 K07 AFEHE22H

Carrying Carrying

amountsat  Fairvalueat  amountsat Fair value at

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2014 2014 2014 Level1 Level2 Level3

R-B2-0%F RZZ-BF R-B-0F RNZZ-BF

tZA=t-B +ZA=+-B t=ZR=t+-RA tZA=t-H
ZIREE ZATE ZIREE ZATE B8 E-f  E=R
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT TET TEr TErx THEx T#Ex

Amounts due from FEMFIEAR

subsidiaries* R - - 398,363 N/A - - -
rER
Amount duetoa  JEff—FIMBA
subsidiary* Bl IE* - - (15,033) N/A - - -
TEH
Amount due to an  [fEff—FEEEE
associate* ARIFRIE (99,442) N/A = = = = =
TEH
1 70 Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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43. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 43. REHHs 2 eMEER SR

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEHBE®)
(continued)
b) (continued) b) (#&)
Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2013
Group Company categorised into
RE-=%
t-A=t-H
A5H VNG AYEHEZDE
Carrying Carrying
amountsat  Fairvalueat  amountsat  Fair value at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2013 2013 2013 Level 1 Level2  Level 3
RZZ-=F RIT-=F RZT-=F WZT-=f
+ZA=+-A +ZA=t-F +ZA=+-B +ZA=t-A
LIRE(E LRTHE AR ZOHE BB EZR F=R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL Tér  TEr ThEr TEx
Amounts due from  FEHHEAR
subsidiaries* T - - 398,363 N/A - - -
TR
Qther payables** H e[ EE* (11,532) (10,879) - - - - (10,879)
Amountduetoan  Eff—FEEIL
associate* NGVl (38,439) N/A = = = = =
TER
& The fair values of these balances have not been @ ZEEBZ AT EEKRERE

determined as the timing of the expected cash flows R ZBHRERMBEZEER

of these balances cannot be reasonably determined
because of the relationship.

**  The fair values of the other payables are estimated
as being the present values of future cash
flows, discounted at interest rates based on the
government yield curve as at the end of the
reporting period.

ZIERREREZBFE TS
IRFETE ©

e EABRNHORZ AFETIR
KRS R 2 REER RS
REER BRI AR 2 P47
R 17kt o
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44. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 44. EXEE

The Group's objectives when managing capital are: AREFBZEAERAEZS

(@) To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as (@ REXEBEENEBERFE
a going concern, so that it continues to provide KENR) BB AR HEERD
returns and benefits for stakeholders; S

(b) To support the Group’s stability and growth; and () ZEAERETLENER K

(c) To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening () AREEREERLNEEERR
the Group’s risk management capability. BEIERE

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its REBTEHRBERG NEIEEE R

capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and o TR E AN R A O 5= Bl

shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future ERE ZEREEPHEASERKE

capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, AREREEARN D - & MTBE AT

prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating BE TEEHIZEIRSRE TEEE R

cash flows, projected capital expenditures and projected A REHRRERERE AEE

strategic investment opportunities. The Group currently B eI SR AEMERRERE B

does not adopt any formal dividend policy. Management 12 JE R AR AN 42 58 49775,400,0007% 7T

regards total equity of approximately HK$775.4 million (Z=—=% : #41,165,200,0007% 7T )

(2013: approximately HK$1,165.2 million) as capital, for RBER EERER -

capital management purpose.
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